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China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) recovered in 2012 with a profit of
HK$94.53 million, which manifested a significant comeback
from 2011’s HK$654 million loss. Turnover surged about 34%
and reached a new height of HK$1,465 million, priding itself on
a good step forward in rewarding shareholders with fair return.
To the Group and the shareholders, 2012 is a year that turns
around; a year that begins to thrive; a year that shareholders
begin to see their returns justified and sustained with growth.

For quite some time, mainland China was plagued by the
continuing quantitative easing monetary policy deployed
by the U.S., thus fueling our country’s economic growth
with overheat that unavoidably attracted macroeconomic
adjustment measures from our government. China’s real GDP
therefore lost some steam and went down from 2011’s 9.2%,
but still achieved a growth rate of 7.8%. The slower pace
rippled through Hong Kong that probably could only grow by
1% in GDP. Yet, spending from mainlander tourists remained
robust and drove Hong Kong's retail industry to grow by
9.8%, reaching HK$445.4 billion in sales. Our close neighbor,
Macau, also had a cool down in its GDP growth to a 9.9%
speed. Nevertheless, the growth of its retail market remained
impressive, which went up by 22% to 52.9 billion in Macau
currency in terms of sales. In the two cities, the market just
continued to flourish.

| anticipate that China would in 2013 continue to adopt a
conservative yet relatively easy economic policy. The global
economic climate shall remain overcast with uncertainties and
hot money shall be there to stay. If China ought to maintain
a 7.5% annual growth rate in the year, its monetary policy
would have to be agile. This, coupled with the continuing
appreciation of Renminbi, will attract consumers from China to
continue their consumptions in Hong Kong and Macau.
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% Ji% $#it 3% Chairman’s Statement

As the public has been well aware, Macau, has since its
return to China, been the only and important city in the greater
China region that embodies gaming, tourism, recreation, etc.,
especially the gaming industry that boasted a growth rate of
13.4% and a new high of 305 billion Macau dollar in income,
representing more than 87.5% of Macau’'s GDP growth in
2012. Years before, the Board and | made a forward looking
evaluation, and decided to renovate Hotel Lan Kwai Fong
Macau and introduce gaming and recreational services in the
hotel. The result has been obvious and encouraging. On 17th
July 2012 the Group went further to acquire the remaining
equity stake in the hotel and turned it into entire wholly owned.

As at 31st December 2012, the Group’s investment in the hotel
and gaming service operations achieved a size of HK$1,594
million in terms of total asset value, representing about 57%
of the Group’s total asset, a significant increase from the
41% recorded in 2011. Its business turnover increased from
2011's HK$998 million to 2012’s HK$1,317 million, an increase
of almost 32%. Before deducting unallocated corporate
expenses, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau recorded an overall
profit high of HK$193 million, an increase of 80% comparing
with HK$107 million in 2011, and is the Group’s only profit
contributor.

Furthermore, during the short 3-year period since launching,
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has been awarded with several
international accolades, which included the” 5th China Hotel
Starlight Awards 2009 -Best Designed Boutique Hotel of
China” and the “2012 Tripadvisor Travelers’ Choice 2012
Winner — Trendiest”. In the respect of promoting the notion of
environmental protection, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau has won
the “AHF Asia Awards 2010 — Leading Green Hotel of Asia”
and the “Macao Green Hotel Award 2010 - Bronze Award”.

Since the Group owns the entire Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
only in July 2012, profit and cash flow derived from the hotel
will only be fully reflected in 2013. | therefore foresee that
through the dual propelling drives of the hotel's organic growth
and the acquisition, a larger revenue growth of the hotel will
be recognized in 2013 and it shall remain the core profit of the
Group in years to come.
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To the best interests of our shareholders, the Board and |
have for the Group aspired to fortify a solid and sustainable
base of development and to formulate a clear direction. To
this end, we had in prior years identified the two new business
directions — property development and Chinese healthcare
products — as the Group’s medium/long-term core business
development.

In the aspect of property development, the Group began
acquiring certain sections of land in Macau in prior years,
which now aggregate around HK$500 million in market value.
Those sections of land properties were located in the area
that is adjacent to Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau, Instituto
Politéchnico de Macau, Forum de Macau, and A Praca Flor
de Lod&o, and are in the vicinity of Macau Fisherman’s
Wharf and Sands Casino. The development of which is in the
planning stage and the blueprint plan has been submitted to
the Macau government for their approval. It is planned that
the land properties will be developed for sale. With the rapid
development of Macau and the continuing low interest rate
environment, we believe that property development can be
our medium/long term development target of the Group, which
can be benefited by the cash flows sourced from the operation
of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau, serving as the gateway for
the Group's long term development. | personally foresee that,
those sections of land would bring about significant profit and
cash flows for the Group after they have been developed and
sold.

On the sales of Chinese healthcare products, the Group
acquired a time-honored brand of retail shop network, Nam Pei
Hong, at the end of 2011 which sells ginseng, antler and dried
seafood and will aspire to develop it as a retail shop network
that focuses on ginseng, antler, dried seafood, and Chinese
healthcare products. The “Nam Pei Hong” brand has a long
history in Hong Kong. Its healthcare products retail shop
network spans Hong Kong, and is well trusted by the general
public. Shoppers from China also tend to cherish Hong Kong’s
time-honored brands of ginseng, antler, and dried seafood
shops as their targets for shopping the products. Now the
retail shop network has fifteen branch stores and a concession
counter in Hong Kong.
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% Ji #it % Chairman’s Statement

During the financial year of 2012, the Chinese healthcare
segment was boosted by the acquisition of Nam Pei Hong for
about HK$132 million in income that was however offset by
the impairment of intangible assets, thus resulting a small net
loss of approximately HK$968,000. The Board and | are firmly
convinced that with the committed effort of the management
and our staff force in running the business, it is going to bring
about profit and cash flow for the group very soon. In view of
this, the Group in the beginning of 2013 invested more than
HK$90 million for the acquisition of a shop space located in
Hong Kong’s Mercer Street, which is intended to be developed
into a flagship store of Nam Pei Hong. In the long-run, the
acquisition of the shop space is poised to contribute to the
Group in fending off increasing rental heights. To this end,
the Group would grasp an appropriate timing to increase the
number of our self-owned stores so as to alleviate the pressure
from the ever-rising rental adjustments in the retail sector.

In terms of financial management, the Group has deployed
a stable financial policy with the best interests of the
shareholders in mind. In the year 2009, a subsidiary and
Ms. Chen Ming Ying, Tiffany, an executive director of the
Group, entered into an agreement to acquire a piece of land
from Ms. Chen for a consideration of HK$900 million. The
agreement was finally withdrawn by the parties concerned,
which resulted in a release of deposit of HK$360 million in
cash. The cash flow released was soon used to acquire rest of
the shareholdings of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau at HK$631
million. In the inception of 2013, the Group placed 400 million
shares of its shares and raised HK$55.3 million in cash, which
was used to pay for the fund required to acquire the shop
space for Nam Pei Hong's flagship store.
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In order to maintain a fair market value for the Group’s listed
shares, the Group during the year drew HK$218 million
to repurchase 624,235,579 shares of its listed shares for
cancellation, signifying our confidence in the Group's future
development and our positive expectation for its future. The
Company maintained a good cash position, which posted
an amount of HK$579 million as at the year end of 2012.
Borrowing was relatively stable with bank borrowings of about
HK$421 million, slightly less than the HK$467 million in 2011.
Bank borrowings were mainly used to serve the operating
requirement for running Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. | firmly
believe that only through solid financial planning can we
effectively build up a solid ground work for the development of
our real estate business and retail shop network.

The successful transformation of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
to a boutique hotel that embraces gaming, recreation and
tourist accommodation has solidified our role in Macau’s hotel
and gaming industry. The land properties that were acquired
in prior years would also be benefited by the profit and cash
flow derived from the principal core business of our operation
— Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. The foundation of the Group’s
various investments in Macau will hence be enhanced and
synergistically boosted. Capitalizing on the profit and cash
flow generated from Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau and through
the effective allocation of cash reserve, the Group managed
to acquire Nam Pei Hong, speeding up the Group’s debut
into the Chinese healthcare products retailing market — an
enormous potential market for growth. We envision that by
entering into Hong Kong’s retail market, our ultimate goal is
to prepare ourselves for a even greater market in China’s
under-fledged healthcare industry in years to come. Thus, |
anticipate that the Group will continue to seek for sustainable
profit growth for the shareholders in 2013 so as to reciprocate
our shareholders and business partners for their relentless
support and cooperation they have demonstrated.

Finally, | would like to extend my appreciation to the
shareholders for their relentless support, and am heartily
thankful to the Board and the management for their leadership
and our staff force for their strenuous efforts. Let's hold hand
in hand for the betterment of the Group and let's work hard
and strive for a brighter future.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March 2013
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group’s turnover
increased by 34% to approximately HK$1,464,979,000 (2011:
HK$1,096,762,000).

Profit from operations and profit for the year amounted
to approximately HK$139,597,000 and HK$94,526,000
respectively as compared to loss from operations and loss for
the year of HK$628,717,000 and HK$654,106,000 respectively
for last year. The turnaround of the current year’'s profit was
mainly attributable to the decrease in impairment loss of
HK$24,327,000 as compared to the last corresponding period
of HK$700,085,000 recognised in respect of the intangible
assets with regard to the decrease in sharing of profit streams
from investments in gaming and entertainment business in
Macau from Best Mind International Inc. (“Best Mind”). Best
Mind is the profit receiving company from Ocho Sociedade
Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), one of the gaming promotors
at one of the VIP gaming rooms at the Grand Lisboa Casino in
Macau.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2012 was HK$53,360,000, representing
a 108% increase over loss of HK$683,234,000 in the last year.

DIVIDEND AND DISTRIBUTION

The Board do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31st December 2012. The Board declared
and paid a special dividend of HK3.3 cents per share to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 17th November 2011.

The Board proposed a special distribution to be made out of
the contributed surplus account of the Company of HK4 cents
per share and is subject to approval by the shareholders at
a special general meeting to be held and convened by the
Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has five reportable segments — (1) hotel and
gaming service operations; (2) gaming promotion operations;
(3) film distribution operations; (4) property development
operations; and (5) Chinese health products sales operations.

Of the total turnover amount for the year, HK$1,316,553,000 or
90% was generated from hotel and gaming service operations,
HK$15,544,000 or 1% was generated from gaming promotion
operations, HK$683,000 or 0% was generated from film
distribution operations, nil or 0% was generated from property
development operations and HK$132,199,000 or 9% was
generated from Chinese health products sales operations.

Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (“Lan Kwai Fong”)
which was recorded in an indirect subsidiary of the Group,
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel LKF”) and
services provided to the casino situated in Lan Kwai Fong (the
“Casino LKF”") which was recorded in an indirect subsidiary of
the Group, Classic Management & Services Company Limited
(“Classic”) and the marketing promotional services provided
by Best Mind to Casino LKF. Lan Kwai Fong presents a total of
approximately 200 guest rooms, casino situated in the ground,
first and 18th floor, restaurants, flower shop, retail shop, spa
and medical clinic.

During the year, the Group acquired the remaining equity
interests in Hotel LKF and Classic. Afterwards, they changed
from 50% indirect subsidiaries to wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group.

Casino LKF is run by licence holder Sociedade de Jogos
de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”). Classic has entered into gaming
operation service agreements with SJM. Under the
agreements, Classic will shared certain percentage of service
income from SJM based on the gross wins of the table gaming
and slot machines in Casino LKF. As at 31st December 2012,
Casino LKF operated a total of 84 tables, targeting both for
the VIP market and the mass market. It also operated a total of
121 slot machines.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E$£ 2012



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ol 2O AR A F

% BIJE ik K% 43 Bt Management Discussion and Analysis

AEEGEEREYRBELEXEBHEEIERERSHE
i A 49 /1,316,553,0007% 7T (ZF —— 4 : 998,027,000
#7T) }192,827,00058 7T (= — — 4 : 107,143,000/
TT) DRI R32%K%80% o BIE R EHRELEEEK 2
W EBBEAERE R A,436,0008 L (Z 2 ——
£ : 64,955,000/ 7T) ~ R dn & &1 0 8H 526,092,0005% 7T
(ZZ——F:16,769,0008 L) - 5B R  BEEEHR
ERABTFERBEZIREKA S R A798,755,000% 7T (=
T — — £ : 548,390,000 7T) - 184,330,000 7T (=&
——% : 307,178,000 7T ) %.16,251,000 7T (ZF ——
4 : 11,968,000/ 7T) WA K 18 ¥ # E 196,689,000/ 7T
(ZE——F :48,767,0008 L) - RAFE BEHZ
EESABE REBEREYRBELEEEB2TEHE
AlE# =2 ——4F 25 A83,169,0008 LEEF AN
109,713,000 7T - F ZHRKREFHEHRE 2T ARS
WA ZT——F 2% F45,699,0007 7T 1% MN46% = =
T— % 2% F66,563,0008 T WIKEBHEEEHE
K28 ARBWAR T ——F 225,598,000/ 7T &
40%% —F — — 4 215,361,000/ 7T - 187 # & & 1% A
TR EEFISER 2 e B E o

BYHRELEER
REENHREBRHEELCEER R E LD EEED
Al 49 £15,544,000% 7T (== — — 4 : 68,669,000/ 7T)
19,022,000/ 7T (=& ——4F : 632,729,000 7T) * »
B TBE77%%99% °

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2012

The Group had shared revenue and segment profit of
approximately HK$1,316,553,000 (2011: HK$998,027,000)
and HK$192,827,000 (2011: HK$107,143,000) from the
hotel and gaming service operations, an increase of 32%
and 80% respectively. Revenue in the hotel and gaming
service operations mainly comprised of hotel room income
of HK$94,436,000 (2011: HK$64,955,000), food and
beverage sales of HK$26,092,000 (2011: HK$16,769,000),
services income received from mass table gaming, VIP
table gaming and slot machines of HK$798,755,000 (2011:
HK$548,390,000), HK$184,330,000 (2011: HK$307,178,000)
and HK$16,251,000 (2011: HK$11,968,000) respectively
and gaming promotion fees of HK$196,689,000 (2011:
HK$48,767,000). This year, the performance of Lan Kwai
Fong was also encouraging. The average monthly revenue
from the hotel and gaming service operations increased to
approximately HK$109,713,000 per month from HK$83,169,000
per month in 2011, mainly reflecting 46% increase in monthly
service income from mass table gaming to HK$66,563,000 per
month in 2012 from HK$45,699,000 per month in 2011, which
was partly offset by 40% decrease in monthly service income
from VIP table gaming to HK$15,361,000 per month in 2012
from HK$25,598,000 per month in 2011. The gaming promotion
fees increased because it was directly related to the revenue
from mass table gaming.

Gaming Promotion Operations

The Group had shared revenue and segment loss of
approximately HK$15,544,000 (2011: HK$68,669,000) and
HK$9,022,000 (2011: HK$632,729,000) from the gaming
promotion operations, decrease of 77% and 99% respectively.
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Since the end of the last year, the growth in revenue from
casino VIP room slow down and even declined in July 2012.
Besides, the competition in gaming industry continues to be
intense. One of the characteristic of the VIP gaming is that
the majority of the business volume is highly volatile. The
publishing on 10th August 2009 by the Macau government in
its official gazette an amendment to an executive regulation
that would enable the Financial Secretary to set a cap for
promoter commission in Macau and its implementation from
December 2009 had resulted in Ocho lost its competitive
advantage as it cannot offer a better than market commission
to its quality sub-junkets or customers. The decrease in
revenue sharing also impact and decrease the expected
cash inflow from this operation and thus impairment loss in
respect of the intangible assets of HK$24,327,000 (2011:
HK$700,085,000) was recognised. After the substantial
impairment recognised in the year ended 31st December
2011,
are comparatively stable this year and thus the impairment loss

the market situation and decrease in gaming revenue

recognised in respect of intangible assets was substantially
decreased.

Film Distribution Operations

Film distribution operations included production and
distribution of motion pictures and television drama series and
provision of other film related services. During the year, the
Group did not distributed any new film and new productions
are in planning stage.

In year 2012, turnover for film distribution operations amounted
to HK$683,000 (2011: HK$1,602,000) and its segment loss
amounted to HK$1,630,000 (2011: HK$16,037,000). The
segment loss was mainly attributable to impairment loss
recognised in respect of film rights of HK$1,605,000 in the
year. The impairment loss recognised in respect of film rights
and films in progress in the year 2011 was HK$619,000 and
HK$15,928,000 respectively.
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Property Development Operations

Property development operations included sales of properties
located in Macau after the completion of the acquisition of
the property leasehold right over Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and
Lot 6E, located in Macau at Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior
(ZAPE) (the “Sites”). The Sites will developed into commercial
units and residential apartments for sale.

The Group did not recorded any revenue for years 2012 and
2011 and shared segment loss of approximately HK$90,000
(2011: HK$33,000) from the property development operations
since the development plan of the Sites is in the process of
seeking approval from the relevant authority.

Chinese Health Products Sales Operations

Chinese health products sales operations included sales of
Chinese and other medicines pharmaceutical products, health
products, ginseng and dried seafood products to wholesalers
and retailers as well as Chinese clinical services after the
completion of the acquisition of group headed by NPH
Holdings Limited (“NPH”) on 28th October 2011. One of the
subsidiary of NPH, Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Company
Limited (“Nam Pei Hong”) has engaged in the business of
trading and retail of “Sum Yung” and dried seafood products
since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong” is highly
recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

In year 2012, revenue for the Chinese health products sales
operations amounted to HK$132,199,000 and its segment
loss amounted to approximately HK$968,000 (after deducting
amortisation of intangible assets in aggregate of HK$1,226,000
in respect of trademark and customer relationship of
HK$735,000 and HK$491,000 respectively). From 28th
October 2011 (completion date of acquisition of NPH) to 31st
December 2011, the Group had shared revenue and segment
loss of approximately HK$28,464,000 and HK$278,000 (after
deducting amortisation of intangible assets in aggregate of
HK$217,000 in respect of trademark and customer relationship
of HK$130,000 and HK$87,000 respectively) from the Chinese
health products sales operations.
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Geographical segments

For the geographical segments, turnover of the Group during
the year were mainly come from Macau as revenue from hotel
and gaming service operations, gaming promotion operations
and property development operations are all sourced in
Macau.

Administration Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2012, administrative
expenses (net of amortisation of leasehold land and
depreciation on property, plant and equipment) amounted to
HK$321,809,000, a 4% decrease from HK$335,634,000 as
compared to the last corresponding year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in casino management
fees paid by Lan Kwai Fong, which were partly offset by
the increase in staffs costs and overhead expenses in the
hotel and gaming service operations during the year. Such
management fees decreased because it was based on a fixed
percentage of service income from VIP table gaming that had
decreased by 40% in year 2012. Employee benefit expenses
increased by 34% to HK$145,682,000 from HK$109,123,000.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2012, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$2,780,606,000 and a net current assets
of HK$1,221,422,000, representing a current ratio of 3.9
(2011: 6.9). The Group had cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$578,863,000 (2011: HK$903,094,000). As
at 31st December 2012, the Group had total borrowings of
HK$762,260,000 which comprised a secured bank term loan
with remaining balance of HK$400,000,000 (the “Term Loan”),
unsecured bank loans in aggregate amount of HK$20,875,000,
an outstanding convertible bonds with liabilities component
of HK$341,231,000 and obligations under finance lease of
HK$154,000. The Term Loan was interest bearing at 1.75%
per annum below the Hong Kong Prime rate quoted by
the bank, repayable by remaining of 11 equal consecutive
quarterly installments of HK$12,500,000 each and a final
repayment for the remaining balance of HK$262,500,000.
The unsecured bank loans comprised import trade loans (the
“Import Loans”) of HK$14,929,000 and two unsecured bank
loans of HK$3,946,000 (the “Loan I”) and HK$2,000,000 (the
“Loan I1") granted under the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme
of the Government of HKSAR (the “Government Loans”). The
Import loans were interest bearing at 2% per annum over one
month HIBOR, repayable on demand and guaranteed by an
ex-shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company. The Loan
| was interest bearing at 2.5% per annum over one month
HIBOR and repayable by remaining of 37 equal consecutive
monthly installments of approximately HK$105,000 per month
and a final repayment for the remaining balance. The Loan
Il was interest bearing at 2.5% per annum over one month
HIBOR and repayable by remaining of 20 equal consecutive
monthly installments of HK$100,000 each. The Government
Loans are 80% guaranteed by the Government of HKSAR
and 100% guaranteed by an ex-shareholder of a subsidiary
of the Company. The outstanding convertible bonds were
unsecured, interest bearing at coupon rate of 8% per annum
and will mature on 6th July 2016. The convertible bonds carry
the right to convert into shares of the Company at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.12 per share as of 31st December
2012. As at 31st December 2012, the Group had banking
facilities amounting to HK$558,000,000 which were utilised to
the extent of HK$526,929,000. The Group’s gearing was low
during the year with total debts of HK$762,260,000 against
owners’ equity of HK$1,587,401,000. This represents a gearing
ratio, calculated in the basis of the Group’s total borrowings
over owners’ equity of 48% (2011: 41%).
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As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Macau
Pataca, United States Dollars and Renminbi, the exposure to
fluctuation in exchange rates was considered to be minimal
and no hedge activity were considered necessary. As at 31st
December 2012, the Group had no contingent liability.

On 21st January 2011, the Company and Eternity Investment
Limited (“Eternity”) entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue and Eternity has conditionally agreed to subscribe or
procure subscription for convertible bonds in the maximum
principal amount of HK$650 million in two tranches at their face
value. The convertible bonds are unsecured, interest bearing
at 8% per annum and carried the right to convert into shares at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.80 (subject to adjustment)
and will mature on the fifth anniversary from the date of issue.
The estimated maximum net proceeds from the issue of the
convertible bonds of approximately HK$649.5 million would
be used for financing the acquisition of the property leasehold
rights of the Sites, the development of the Sites and/or the
general working capital of the Group. On 7th July 2011, first
tranche convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$350
million were issued to a company procured by Eternity. As
at 31st December 2012, the adjusted conversion price of
the convertible bonds is HK$0.12 per share. As at 29th June
2012, the Company and Eternity entered into a supplemental
agreement pursuant to which both parties agreed to extend
the completion date of the second tranche subscription in the
principal amount of HK$300 million from 30th June 2012 to
31st December 2013.
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On 4th June 2012, the Company announced that a conditional
cash offer (the “Offer”) would be made by Get Nice Securities
Limited on behalf of the Company to repurchase up to
982,830,877 shares for cancellation at a price of HK$0.35 per
share. The Offer would be available for acceptance in respect
of shares held by the shareholders of the Company. As at that
date, except for those undertaking parties (the “Undertaking
Parties”) that agreed not to accept the Offer, the consideration
for the Offer would be approximately HK$276,520,000
(assuming none of the share options, warrants and convertible
bonds of the Company were exercised or converted on or
before closing of the Offer) and HK$343,990,000 (assuming
all of the share options, warrants and convertible bonds
of the Company were exercised or converted on or before
closing of the Offer, except for those Undertaking Parties that
had agreed not to exercise or converted their share options,
warrants and convertible bonds before closing of the Offer).
The Offer was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting of the Company
held on 25th October 2012 (the “SGM”). Upon closing of the
Offer on 9th November 2012, a total of 624,235,579 shares
were repurchased and cancelled by the Company and
total consideration paid by the Company for the Offer was
approximately HK$218,482,000.

Pursuant to a mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company at the SGM, the Board resolved to implement a
bonus issue (the “Bonus Issue”) for the issue of bonus shares
by the Company on the basis of two bonus shares (the “Bonus
Shares”) for every one existing share held on 6th December
2012 with an option to elect to receive bonus convertible
bonds (the “Bonus CBs”) in lieu of all or part of their
entittement to the Bonus Shares in order to comply with Rule
8.08(1) (a) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Upon completion of the Bonus Issue on 9th January
2013, the Company has issued 514,463,056 Bonus Shares
and Bonus CBs in an aggregate amount of HK$28,471,249.34
which are convertible into 2,847,124,934 new shares at
subscription price of HK$0.01 per share (subject to adjustment
in accordance with the deed poll of the Bonus CBs).
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During the year ended 31st December 2012, 345,432,177 new
shares were issued upon conversion of the warrants of the
Company, of which 82,266 shares, 340,226,148 shares and
5,128,763 shares were converted at the subscription prices
of HK$0.835 per share, HK$0.207 per share and HK$0.069
per share respectively. The net proceeds from the conversion
of the warrants of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$70,849,000 were used as general working capital of the
Group. On 2nd January 2013, further 2,407,201 new shares
were issued on the conversion of the warrants of the Company
at the subscription price of HK$0.069 per share. Thereafter,
the Company has no more outstanding warrants.

No share options or convertible bonds of the Company were
exercised during the year ended 31st December 2012. On
14th January 2013, the Company had granted 203,000,000
share options to subscribe for an aggregate of 203,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at exercise price of HK$0.163
per share to certain eligible participants.

Subsequent to the statement date, 900,000,000 new shares
and 100,000 new shares were issued and allotted upon the
exercise of the conversion rights of HK$9,000,000 Bonus
CBs and HK$1,000 Bonus CBs at the subscription price of
HK$0.01 per share on 16th January 2013 and 14th March 2013
respectively.

On 10th January 2013, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place on a best effort basis
up to 400,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.14 per share. 400,000,000 new
shares was issued on 30th January 2013 under the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$55,300,000 were intended
to apply for property investment in Hong Kong.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E$£ 2012



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

ol 2O AR A F

% BIJE ik K% 43 Bt Management Discussion and Analysis

EARBESE

RZTE—ZF—A+—HB ARAZ2ENB LA
Exceptional Gain Profits Limited ([ Exceptional Gain])
HSIM-EEBR AR ([SIM—EE ) FILE THE -
It - SIM—#& & [Al & 1 & st {2 {7 1 & K Exceptional Gain
B AZEEERENBAES BITEERMN 21% K&
Charm Faith Holdings Limited ([ Charm Faith] + £ &
BELMBEITERERND 21%) B BITRAN Z 1% % -
# 8 /513,000,007.807& 7T ([ 1% KB EIE]) - Z5 W
FERZZE——F—-A=+—HBxK MARAAER
BAMESEE - Charm Faith K 48 8 7 51% 8% 4

RZF—ZFZ_A+HHB ARQAI2ENE 2R FChina
Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited ([CSBVI]) &A% 3%
FETRAEEDICEGRGEESERE Bk MEE
B &M R E L& MCSBVIA 164 A 2 # EMost Famous
Enterprises Limited ([Most Famous]) 2% 2 Z /TR A K
#1277,420,0007% 7T 2 i & B 5 - 421X {E /618,000,000
B ([FESKESIE]) - Most FamousZ EZEE A
HON B 2 5708 5 2 49%0% # K 7 Charm Faithz 49%7%
o M LETRA  BHEDIRESEBKADNE—BEHE
FEARBEELEERS  THECEARRBILRE
RZE—ZFLA+ ABRTZRREFERNRNE LHLE -
BEGRBEEN T ——FLA+EARK -BRE
REIRFI M Z B HABEYDEE « Charm Faith
R4S 7 51% % - Bt - Most Famous + B HEE
Charm Faith [ 45 #2785 55 Wt 38 = 18 58 A 12 B B A A 8]
ZEEWBLRR -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2012

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS

On 11th January 2012, Exceptional Gain Profits Limited
(“Exceptional Gain”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and SJM - Investment Limited (“SJM-I") entered
into agreements pursuant to which SJM-I has agreed to sell
or procure the sale of, and Exceptional Gain has conditionally
agreed to purchase, 1% issued quotas in Hotel LKF and 1%
equity interest in the issued share capital of Charm Faith
Holdings Limited (“Charm Faith”), a company beneficially
owned 1% issued quotas of Classic, at a total consideration
of HK$13,000,007.80 (the “1% Acquisition”). The agreements
were completed on 31st January 2012 and the Company
became interested in 51% equity interest in Hotel LKF, Charm
Faith and Classic.

On 15th February 2012, China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited
(“CSBVI”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr.
Heung Wah Keung (“Mr. Heung”) entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Mr. Heung
has conditionally agreed to sell and CSBVI has conditionally
agreed to purchase the 100% of the entire issued share
capital of Most Famous Enterprises Limited (“Most Famous”)
and a sale loan amounted to approximately HK$277,420,000 at
total consideration of HK$618,000,000 (the “LKF Acquisition”).
The major assets of Most Famous are its 49% equity interests
in Hotel LKF and 49% interest in Charm Faith. The LKF
Acquisition constituted a very substantial acquisition and a
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules
and was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting held on 16th July 2012.
The LKF Acquisition was completed on 17th July 2012. As
the Company has already owned 51% equity interest in each
of Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and Classic as at the date of this
agreement, Most Famous, Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and Classic
became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company upon
completion of the LKF Acquisition.
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On 1st February 2013, Star Hope Investments Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”)
and Wing Shan Int'| Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement pursuant to which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell 1 share of HK$1.00 in the entire
issued share capital of Well Full Limited (the “Target Co”)
and a sale loan amounted to approximately HK$29,603,055
at a total consideration of HK$93,700,000. The major assets
of the Target Co are a property located at Cockloft Floor
and the Ground Floor of Nos. 1 and 3 Mercer Street, Hong
Kong (the “Property”), bank deposits of HK$9,220,000 and
Renminbi bonds of RMB5,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,750,000). The acquisition was completed on 28th
February 2013 and the Target Co became wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Board intends to develop the
Property into the flagship store of retail chain of Nam Pei Hong
in Hong Kong.

Termination of the Proposed Acquisition of the Entire
Share Capital of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited and Reform
Base Holdings Limited and the Sale Loan

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited (“Bestjump”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”), an executive director of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which
Bestjump has agreed to purchase and Ms. Chen has agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Modern Vision (Asia)
Limited and Reform Base Holdings Limited (the “Targeted
Companies”) and outstanding loans in an aggregate amount
of HK$750,810,007 due by the Targeted Companies to Ms.
Chen at an aggregate consideration HK$900,000,000 (subject
to adjustment) (the “C7 Acquisition”). The major assets of the
Targeted Companies are their aggregate 75% equity interests
in Over Profit International Limited. Over Profit International
Limited, through a Macau company, Legstrong Construction
and Investment Company Limited (the “Macau Co”), indirectly
owned 100% beneficial interest in a lot of land named Lote C7
do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de Praia Grande, located
in the Nam van Lakes Zone, at Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho,
registered with the Macau Land and Real Estate Registry
under no. 23070 (the “Macau Land”).
approved in a special general meeting of the Company held

The transaction was

on 3rd September 2009. The longstop date of the agreement
had further extended to 31st December 2012.
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One of the conditions to completion is the publication by
the Macau Government of a master zoning guideline for the
“C” area of Nam Van Lakes Zone and the results of a new
amendment to the land grant under which the Macau Co
holds the Macau Land from the Macau Government executed
on 14th August 2001 to be submitted by Macau Co having
been, in light of the master zoning guideline, gazetted by the
Macau Government. In the third quarter of 2010, the Macau
Government invited Macau citizens as part of this process
to submit their conceptual planning proposals for the Nam
Van area with a view to optimising the benefits to the city’s
infrastructures as a whole. Afterwards, the Macau Government
has not yet issued any update on the master zoning guideline.
On 15th February 2012, Bestjump and Ms. Chen entered into
a deed of termination to terminate the sale and purchase
agreement of the C7 Acquisition. Given that (a) it did not
appear that the master zoning guideline for the Macau Land
would be issued anytime soon by the Macau Government;
and (b) the ultimate target of the LKF Acquisition was the
49% equity interest in Hotel LKF which had been operating
with positive earnings before interest, tax and depreciation,
the parties had decided to terminate the sale and purchase
agreement of the C7 Acquisition in order to release the
Group’s internal resource for the LKF Acquisition.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2012, the Group employed 744
staffs (2011: 726 staffs) with employee benefit expenses
of HK$145,682,000 (2011: HK$109,123,000). The directors
believe that the quality of its employees is the single most
important factor in sustaining the Group’s reputation and
improving its profitability. The staffs are remunerated based on
their work performance, professional experience and prevailing
industry practices. Apart from basic salaries, pension fund,
housing allowances, meal allowances, medical schemes and
discretionary bonuses, share options are awarded to certain
staffs according to the assessment of individual performance.
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PROSPECT

Hotel and gaming service operations in Lan Kwai Fong
are proved to be a successful investment of the Group
given its contribution of profit and cash to the Group. It has
successfully positioned to be a boutique hotel with excellent
services and guest satisfaction. Given the moderate size of
Lan Kwai Fong, we can enjoy the benefit of fast response to
the changing market conditions in the Macau casino market.
Mass table gaming operations are more profitable than VIP
gaming operations and thus Casino LKF has spent resources
to expand its market share in the mass table gaming
operations and targeted the high end customers in the mass
table gaming and was continued to be successful during this
year, particularly the 2nd half of the year 2012. The growth in
revenue from VIP table gaming operations in Macau was slow
down since the end of last year and even set back in July
2012, the strategy in Casino LKF was proved to be effective.
After the completion of the LKF Acquisition on 17th July 2012,
the Group owned 100% interests in Lan Kwai Fong and can
solidify its profitability and capture the full potential growth in
the hotel and gaming service operations.

The development of the Sites will be the Group’s medium to
long term core investments. It will not only directly contribute
revenue to the Group but also provide synergy with Lan Kwai
Fong. The Group continues its preparation for the Sites and the
development plan is currently under the approval of the Macau
government. Given the superb location of the Sites which is
adjacent to Lan Kwai Fong, Macao Polytechnic Institute, Forum
de Macao and Golden Lotus Square and is a couple blocks
away from Macau Fisherman’s Whalf and Sands Casino and
the recognized and solid experience in renovation of Lan Kwai
Fong, the Group is confident that the development project will
be another success investment of the Group.
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At the end of 2011, the Group had acquired Nam Pei Hong in
view of the increasing awareness in health. Given the aging of
population of Hong Kong, demand for health care products,
especially Chinese medicine, “Sum Yung” and dried seafood
in Hong Kong has grown steadily in recent years. Afterwards,
the Board has been seeking suitable retail shops to expand
the business of Nam Pei Hong and strengthen the retail
network of Nam Pei Hong. In the beginning of 2013, the Board
has acquired 100% equity interest in Well Full Limited which
major assets is holding the Property located in Cockloft Floor
and the Ground Floor of Nos. 1 and 3 Mercer Street, Hong
Kong and the Board intends to develop the Property into the
flagship store of retail chain of Nam Pei Hong in Hong Kong.
With self owned retail shops, Nam Pei Hong can decrease its
rental expenses and thus keep its overheads under control. In
the near future, the Board will continue to seek suitable retail
shops to expand the business of Nam Pei Hong with budgeted
overheads.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 64, is the Chairman of the
Company. He is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany,
Vice Chairman of the Company. He has over 30 years of
experience in the entertainment and multimedia industries. He
was the founder of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win’s”) and
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred
Years”), which produces films recommended by audiences
and distributors around the world. He is also the vice-chairman
of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture
Industry Association Limited. He was an executive director of
China Media and Films Holdings Limited (formerly known as
KH Investments Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the
GEM Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”)) during the period from 6th August 2009 to
20th January 2010 and the chairman and executive director of
Eternity Investment Limited (“Eternity”, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) during the period from 2nd
August 2001 to 31st January 2010. Mr. Heung was appointed
as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 56, is the Vice Chairman
of the Company. She is the wife of Mr. Heung Wah Keung
and has over 25 years of experience in the entertainment and
multimedia industries. Ms. Chen has produced a number of
blockbuster films for Win’s and One Hundred Years. In 2003,
she was selected as one of 2003 Women in Entertainment —
International Power by The Hollywood Reporter. Ms. Chen was
responsible for all planning and monitoring of the purchase
of Macau Kingsway Hotel in 2007 and then renovated and
designed it into two years later’'s Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
that launched in August 2009. Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau
has been awarded with several international accolades, which
included the “5th China Hotel Starlight Awards 2009 — Best
Designed Boutique Hotel of China” and the “2012 TripAdvisor
Travelers’ Choice 2012 Winner — Trendiest”. In respect of
promoting the notion of environmental protection, Hotel Lan
Kwai Fong Macau has won the “AHF Asia Awards 2010 -
Leading Green Hotel of Asia” and the “Macao Green Hotel
Award 2010 - Bronze Award”. The result has been obvious
and encouraging. She was the vice chairman and executive
director of Eternity during the period from 2nd August 2001 to
31st January 2010. Ms. Chen was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 45, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 20 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 2001.
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Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 72, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been
the chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories
Motion Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and
was the chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association
from 1992 to 1995. He was also appointed as a director of
the China Film Association since 2009. Mr. Hung is also a
member of the 1,200-member-HKSAR Election Committee and
a vice-chairman of the Cultural Profession Committee of the
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion
Council (EREEBREEREGVLEXZEGRAIETEEE).
Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the
HKSAR Government in 2005 in recognition of his contribution
to the Hong Kong film industry. Recently, Mr. Hung has
been appointed by the HKSAR as a member of the Working
Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative Technology,
and Cultural and Creative Industries under the Economic
Development Commission on an ad personam basis for a term
of two years with effect from 17th January 2013. Mr. Hung is
currently a non-executive director of Capital VC Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He
was also appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited and Mascotte
Holdings Limited since 9th January 2013 and 22nd January
2013 respectively, both companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is the managing
partner of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was an independent non-executive director
of Eternity during the period from 30th September 2004 to
24th May 2010. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited and Ngai
Hing Hong Company Limited, both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company in 1996.

Mr. TANG Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 62, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. He is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior partner
of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He was a director of Pok Qi
Hospital in 1993 and a member of the Kowloon West Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Bank Foundation District Community
Programme between July 1991 and November 1995.
Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma in
Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in Macau. He
was an independent non-executive director of Eternity during
the period from 6th February 2002 to 30th August 2011. Mr.
Tang was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Company in 2011.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Cheuk Fai, aged 55, is the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Ng is well versed in the Macau gaming market
and is responsible for providing updated market information as
to the trend, the move as well as the performance of various
market practitioners in Macau. Mr. Ng joined the Group in
2008.

Ms. LI Yee Mei, aged 50, is the Talent and PR Controller of the
Group, has 30 years of experience in entertainment business
and culture industry. Ms. Li joined the Group in 1996.

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 48,
Administration Department of the Group. She has over 15

is the Manager-Legal

years of experience in the TV and film industry and with
extensive knowledge and expertise in all legal aspects relating
to production, distribution and copyright enforcement. Ms.
Tsang joined the Group in 1999.

Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 50, has served as the Group’s Film
Consultant since 2000. He has produced and directed films
and television drama series for more than 20 years, many
of which earned awards and were screened at international
film festivals. Mr. Wai's “Look Back with Anger” and “The
Greed of Man” were hugely popular television drama series
attracting over 100 million viewers when they were on air. Mr.
Wai's feature films “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”, “Fat Choi
Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All Seasons”,
“Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics”, “Mad
Detective” and “Written By” have earned a total of over
HK$200 million dollars.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 47, is the Financial
Controller, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
of the Company. She graduated from the City Polytechnic
University with a bachelor degree in Accountancy in 1990.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001,
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Mr. MAK Wai Kai, Gary, aged 40, is the General Manager of
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He has over 12 years experience
in serviced residences and hotel operations and pre-opening
project execution in Hong Kong, Shanghai, Beijing, Singapore,
Malaysia and Macau. He is a Certified Hotel Administrator by
American Hotel & Lodging Educational Institute (AHLEI) and
is an Advanced Certification holder in Strategic Hospitality
Management at Cornell University. Mr. Mak was appointed as
General Manager in 2008.

Mr. LEI Weng Cheong, William, aged 37, a senior gaming
industry participant, is the Vice President of the Marketing
Department, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau. He has over 12
years experience in marketing strategic planning and has a
thorough understanding in Macau gaming industry. At the
present moment, he focuses mainly in the market planning and
the operation of marketing department. Mr. Lei was appointed
as the Vice President of Marketing Department, Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau in 2012.

Mr. LEONG Heng Seong, Antonio, aged 65, is the Vice
President of Casino Operations, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau.
He has over 45 years experience in gaming industry. He has
thorough knowledge in gaming operations and customer
behavior. Mr. Leong was appointed as the Vice President of
Casino Operations in 2008.
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INTRODUCTION

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and the management of the Company are committed
to establishing good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the goals of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, successful business growth and a healthy
corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Group believes that its accountability and transparency will
be improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders
and the public. Throughout the financial year ended 31st
December 2012, the Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions laid down in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices and the revised
and renamed Corporate Governance Code (both hereinafter
referred to as the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) save for one deviation, details of which will be
explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report. The Board
has, since the amendments to the Listing Rules regarding
corporate governance practices were first proposed by the
Stock Exchange, continued to monitor and review the Group’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance. Meetings were held throughout the year
and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes
were issued to directors and senior management of the
Group to ensure awareness to issues regarding corporate
governance practices.
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THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of the
Company including: the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and overall
strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the senior executives. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Company in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by these senior executives
and the Board has the full support of them to discharge its
responsibilities. The statement of the auditors of the Company
in relation to their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 55 to 57 of this annual report.

Composition

As at 31st December 2012, the Board comprises six Directors:
including three executive Directors, namely, Mr. Heung Wah
Keung (Chairman), Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany (Vice Chairman,
performing the role of chief executive as stated in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules) and Ms. Li Yuk Sheung and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Hung Cho
Sing, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert.

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The number of
independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the Chairman and other
Directors are set out in the sub-section “Profiles of Directors”
on pages 24 and 25.
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The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive and non-executive Directors. The Board is of the
opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks and
balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and
of the Group. The non-executive Directors provide to the
Group with a wide range of expertise and experience so that
independent judgement can effectively be exercised as well
as ensuring that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. They are also responsible for participating in Board
meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest, serving
on audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, scrutinizing the Group’s performance and
reporting. Through their active participation, they provide their
valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and
the committees on which they serve so that the management
process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All the Directors give
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio of executive to non-executive
Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide checks and
balances that safeguard the interest of the shareholders and
the Company as a whole.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
new director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”), the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. Any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the next following annual general meeting. Any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting

of the Company and shall then be eligible for reelection.
Pursuant to bye-law 99(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Hung Cho Sing

will retire at the annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman (performing the
role of chief executive) are separate and not performed by
the same individual to ensure that there is a clear division of
responsibilities at the board level to entail a balance of power
and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the presence of
the executive directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENCE

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
at least one of whom has appropriate financial management
expertise, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Group
has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence. The Company
considers these Directors to be independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship among
members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung, the
Chairman, is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the
Vice Chairman of the Company.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND DEVIATION FROM THE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31st December 2012, the Company
complied with the Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except for the following exception:

o Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Bye-laws. The Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times every
year to determine overall strategic direction and objectives
and approve interim and annual results, and other significant
matters. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meeting
are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion.
Apart from regular meetings, senior management from time
to time provides directors with information on activities and
development of the businesses of the Group. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the
meeting and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations
in connection with the meetings are observed and complied
with. The finalized agenda and accompanying board papers
are then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes
of the meetings and keeps records of matters discussed and
decision resolved at the meetings.

During the year under review, 10 board meetings were held.
Details of the attendance of the directors at the general
meetings, meetings of the Board and its respective committees
are as follows:

HEERRE
Number of meetings attended

RERBEF IR R 4% 5l BREES Mz REZEES

& rE a3 =k =k

Annual Special S8E Audit Remuneration  Nomination

EEHE General General Board Committee Committee Committee

Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
DEL:

Heung Wah Keung 1/1 3/3 10/10 2/2 1/1 1/1
5 B 2

Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany 1/1 3/3 10/10 2/2 1/1 1/1
R

Li Yuk Sheung 1/1 3/3 10/10 2/2 11 1/1
HAEE

Hung Cho Sing 1/1 3/3 10/10 2/2 1/1 1/1
(G

Ho Wai Chi, Paul 11 3/3 10/10 2/2 1/1 11
BLZ M

Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert 11 3/3 10/10 2/2 1/1 1/1
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During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances and discuss the annual and interim
results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and decide on
other significant matters. The execution of daily operational
matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the
record of all decisions by the Board together with concerns
Drafts of

board minutes are circulated to all directors for comment and

raised and dissenting views expressed (if any).

approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by
any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times as the Chairman ensures that the management
will supply the Board and its committees with all relevant
information in a timely manner. They may make further
enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to

request for further information.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for
providing Directors with board papers and related materials
and ensuring that all proper Board procedures are followed
and that all applicable laws and regulations are complied with.
If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at
the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a
substantial shareholder or a director, such matter will be
discussed in a physical meeting and will not be dealt with
by way of written resolutions. Independent non-executive
Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The board committees, including the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in

board meetings for all committee meetings.
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The annual general meeting and other general meetings of
the Company are the primary forum for communication by
the Company with the shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
must keep breast of their collective responsibilities as
the

Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction to each

directors and of the business of the Group. As such,

newly appointed director upon his/her appointment. Briefings
and orientations are provided and organised to ensure that
the new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board, their
legal and other duties as a director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes
are tailored to each individual director taking into account
their background and expertise. The company secretary will
continuously update all Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all
Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes provided or procured by the
Group, such as external seminars organised by qualified
professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of
the training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter
on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and
nature of offices held by such Director in public companies
and organizations and other significant commitments.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was formed with specific
written terms of reference. As at 31st December 2012, the
remuneration committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang
Chak Lam, Gilbert, and an executive Director, namely, Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Mr. Hung Cho Sing is the chairman of
the committee.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating
and recommending to the Board the remuneration policy,
determining the remuneration of executive Directors
and members of senior management of the Group. This
committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice
if deemed necessary. The remuneration committee is also
provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its
duties.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee
are posted on the Company’'s website. The remuneration
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held 1 meeting to determine the remuneration package for the
staffs of the Group.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee was formed with specific written
terms of reference. As at 31st December 2012, the nomination
committee consists of two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Hung
Cho Sing, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Heung Wah
Keung. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
nomination committee.

The duties of the nomination committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting individuals nominated for directorship,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the vice
chairman.
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The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee
are posted on the Company’s website. The nomination
committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee held
1 meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules requires that the audit committee
must comprise a minimum of three non-executive directors
only, at least one of them should be independent non-
executive directors with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
main duties of the audit committee include the followings:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
external auditor before submission to the board.

To review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which are posted on the Company’s
website. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.
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As at 31 December 2012, the audit committee has three
Ho Wai Chi, Paul (chairman of the
Hung Cho Sing and Mr. Tang Chak
Lam, Gilbert, all being independent non-executive Directors.

members, namely Mr.
audit committee), Mr.

No member of the audit committee is a former partner of
the existing auditing firm of the Company within one year on
the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial
interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
with the management team of the Company. During the year,
the audit committee held two meetings to review the Group’s
annual report and interim report.

The audit committee has also reviewed the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes as well as
the re-appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. There is no disagreement between the Board
and the audit committee regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December 2012 has been reviewed by the audit committee.
The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited be nominated for appointment as the auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent with
Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft and final
versions of audit committee meeting minutes are circulated to
all members of the audit committee for comments, approval

and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December 2012, the remuneration
in respect of audit services provided by the auditor, HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, amounted to HK$882,800. For
non-audit services, the fees paid amounted to HK$1,012,487.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members of
the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st December 2012. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group. The auditor is responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the
financial statements prepared by the Directors and report the
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board will therefore be responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements etc.

During the financial year ended 31st December 2012, the
Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, with the audit committee, is responsible for
overseeing and maintaining sound and effective internal
control systems for the Company to safeguard its assets
and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the
effectiveness of such systems. The Board from time to time
conducts a review of the Group’s internal control systems. The
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions during the year under

review.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such
as changes since the last review, scope and quality of
management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of significant
control failings and weaknesses identified; and effectiveness
relating to financial reporting and compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations including the Listing Rules.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall
strategic development of the Group’s business. All Directors
have formal letters of appointment setting out key terms and
conditions relative to their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group’s business, responsibility in relation
to the daily operations and execution of the strategic business
plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee, have specific terms
of reference clearly defining the authorities and responsibilities
of the respective committees. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to
their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain
specific situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking
any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company
as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the Board members and senior
management members of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be
reflected in many aspects.

In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders, the annual general meeting provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organizing, and
personally held the annual general meeting in 2012 in order
to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated to the
Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each separate issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure the Company conforms to the best
practices regarding corporate governance. The annual general
meeting circular, which is circulated to all shareholders at least
21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting,
sets out the details in relation to each resolution proposed,
voting procedures (including procedures for demanding
and conducting a poll) and other relevant information. At the
Company’s 2012 annual general meeting, all the resolutions
were put to the vote by poll and Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the
votes were properly counted. The rights of shareholders
and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at
shareholders’ meeting are contained in the Bye-laws.
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The Company also communicates to its shareholders through
its annual and interim reports. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders and
investors.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’s website (www.chinastar.com.hk)
provides a communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

The Bye-laws was amended on 25th October 2012. Details
of the amendment disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
28th September 2012. The new set of the Bye-laws is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in maintaining investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthen and improve the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group.
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The directors are pleased to submit their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31st December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, sales of
Chinese health products, investing in operations which receive
profit streams from the gaming promotion business, property
and hotel investment, and property development.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associates are set out in notes 49, 50 and 51 to
the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2012 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 58
and 59 respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2012.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board
proposed a special distribution to be made out of the
contributed surplus account of the Company of HK4 cents
per share and is subject to approval by the shareholders at
a special general meeting to be held and convened by the
Company.

The Board declared and paid a special dividend of HK3.3
cents per share to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
17th November 2011.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2012 is set out on page 219.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment, interests in leasehold land and investment
property of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the
financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Details of movements during the year in the share capital and
warrants of the Company are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 63 to 65. Movements during the year in the reserves of
the Company are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,471,751,000 as at 31st December 2012
(2011: HK$2,594,052,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2012, turnover attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 85% of the Group’s turnover and turnover
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 68% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31st December 2012, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 90% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 65% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Hung Cho Sing

Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’'s Bye-laws, Mr.
Hung Cho Sing shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for
re-election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
principles. These mainly relate to transactions entered into by
the Group in the ordinary course of business, negotiated on
normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis. Details
are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constituted “Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules, as identified below.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

C7 Acquisition

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump, the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered the C7 Acquisition
with Ms. Chen. The C7 Acquisition was regarded as a
connected transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of the C7 Acquisition were set out
in the Company'’s circular dated 17th August 2009.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed
that the terms of the agreement of the C7 Acquisition
were fair and reasonable and the C7 Acquisition was
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The C7 Acquisition was approved by
independent shareholders on 3rd September 2009.

On 15th February 2012, Bestjump and Ms. Chen
entered into a deed of termination to terminate the C7
Acquisition.

1% Acquisition

On 11th January 2012, the Company entered the 1%
Acquisition. The 1% Acquisition was considered as
connected transaction for the Company according
to Rule 14A.13(1)(b)(i) of the Listing Rules and was
only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but was exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.32(1) of the Listing Rules. The 1% Acquisition
was completed on 31st January 2012. Details of
the 1% Acquisition were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 11th January 2012.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) LKF Acquisition

On 15th February 2012, the Company entered the
LKF Acquisition with Mr. Heung. The LKF Acquisition
constituted a very substantial acquisition and a
connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules and was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in a special general
meeting held on 28th June 2012. The LKF Acquisition
was completed on 17th July 2012. Details of the LKF
Acquisition were set out in the Company’s circular
dated 27th June 2012.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed
that the terms of the agreement of the LKF Acquisition
were fair and reasonable and the LKF Acquisition was
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The C7 Acquisition as set out in Connected Transactions
constitutes a contract of significance of Ms. Chen, the
executive director and substantial shareholder of the Company
as Ms. Chen is the vendor in the C7 Acquisition.

The LKF Acquisition as set out in Connected Transactions
constitutes a contract of significance of Mr. Heung, the
executive director and substantial shareholder of the Company
as Mr. Heung is the vendor in the LKF Acquisition.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2012, the interests of the directors and
their associates in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register (“Register of Interests”) maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

1. KA EERESR 1. Interests in ordinary shares of the Company

s

BALEAH

FERGEE Approximate

EEHE 51 Number of percentage of

Name of director Capacity shares held interests held

%% REEEZER 1,109,814,315* 65.82
Mr. Heung Interest of controlled

corporation

B 2z + REEE 2 ER 1,109,814,315* 65.82

Ms. Chen Interest of controlled

corporation

LESERER -

* It 2 R 19 & #1,109,800,6130% i 17 £ 14 5% 4 R BR &
+ 9 B #150% & 50%H# & 2 A AlHeung Wah Keung
Family Endowment Limited§7%8 }&13,7020& i& 15 g1 IR 22
TRAEEDRIEXEBE0%NA0%ERZ NEIZEAR
BAR([ZE]DIFEA -

All interests stated above represent long positions.

* These shares are held as to 1,109,800,613 shares by Heung
Wah Keung Family Endowment Limited (a company owned
as to 50% by Mr. Heung and as to 50% by Ms. Chen) and as
to 13,702 shares by Dorest Company Limited (“Dorest”) (a
company beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen and as to
40% by Mr. Heung).
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Egi&ﬁ&mgﬁﬂgﬁgé(%@ DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2, BEXARRG ZER 2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company
BRI Share options
RZE——F+-A=+—H ARAEEHE As at 31st December 2012, the directors of the
ATAERAIRBARR RN 2 ERERER Company had interests in share options to subscribe

for shares in the Company granted as follows:

HATEBRESR ZEBRHEE
Number of underlying shares comprised in the
outstanding share options

P s
BERA AALAH
BRTEE BEEER EERER Approximate
ESnP T#H  Exercise price Direct Deemed #%  percentage of
Name of director Exercisable period per share interest interest Total interest held
(Hitc) (Hista)
(note ¢) (note d)
BT
HK$
% & 17.07.2008 - 16.07.2013 40.714 3,168 3,168 6,336 0.00
Mr. Heung (Hizta)
(note a)
Bt 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 40.714 3,168 3,168 6,336 0.00
Ms. Chen (Hritb)
(note b)
FEERL 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 40.714 31,674 - 31,674 0.00
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung
LR AR o All interests stated above represent long positions.
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EECROREBERG ER(ZF

2. BEAQBRG ZEF (F)
TR ()
et -

a. HEBRRERRZ L (AEEZEB)BE A
EERU WA SEE L SREERER

b. WEBBERALEESE R TEBEER
BEUL SRR

c. TEMmR L ARBREE BSR -

d. FRHRTRZEREZTEEIEEEER
RABEMTFARE BR-FT——F+ At
B4R -

BERMEBESN N-F——F+-A=+—8 &
Y i 25 2 0 T 208 o 4R 44RO < B/ K 2L B R
R 2R ARAEERBETRABRES 2 HE
ATEBARA AR EAERED (THRBHRH
R EXVED) 2 TR - R BB R
IR A A -

Br DHLPTREE SN AR R REEANBRRIRFEANE
AEHTES2BEMNLYE  REARFAZEST KELZ
e RimI8m e FTRA BB ARR B SEMEAMIEA
B B8 (T A S B 55 1 M 2t o

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company (Continued)
Share options (Continued)

Notes:

a. These share options are held by Ms. Chen, the spouse
of Mr. Heung. Mr. Heung is therefore deemed to be

interested in these share options.

b. These share options are held by Mr. Heung. Ms. Chen
is therefore deemed to be interested in these share
options.

C. The exercisable period commenced on the date of

grant of the relevant share options.

d. The exercise prices and numbers of share options
which remained outstanding during the year have been
adjusted with effect from 7th December 2012 due to
the Bonus Issue.

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2012, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or the
spouse or children under 18 years of age of such director, to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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# 3 it ¥ Directors’

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Report

As at 31st December 2012, the register of substantial

shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of

NHiEBEAETESZERIN UWTREHEBEARAARESE  the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
FTRE A% A 2 3k in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company:
FEEREILAY
FEROSEERDER Approximate
&% g Number of shares percentage of
Name Capacity or underlying shares held interests held
KEBREREBRRA REEE R 3,220,657,004*
Eternity Investment Limited Interest of controlled
corporation
ERBEAA 681,818,182

Riche (BVI) Limited

Eternity Finance Group Limited

Heung Wah Keung Family
Endowment Limited

Simple View Investment Limited

LR R

o

iy

*

Beneficial owner

REEE
Interest of controlled
corporation

ERBEAA

Beneficial owner

ExEEA
Beneficial owner

ExlEBA

Beneficial owner

It B5 15 sk AH BE B 19 2 5 fASimple View Investment

Limited#s 5235,990,338% * Eternity Finance Group
Limited+5 £2,916,666,666% X Victory Peace Holdings

Limited+5 #568,000,000/% °

B BRI EE SN

N-ZBE——F+-_A=+—H0 K

RAVARENEEEAEMALTHEERRADEITRAE%

A L2 B HIKE

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

3,902,475,186
3,220,657,004*
2,916,666,666
1,109,800,613
235,990,338

All interests stated above represent long positions.

232.18

191.62

173.63

65.82

14.04

These shares and underlying shares are held as to 235,990,338

shares or underlying shares by Simple View Investment Limited,

as to 2,916,666,666 shares or underlying shares by Eternity

Finance Group Limited and as to 68,000,000 shares

or underlying

shares by Victory Peace Holdings Limited respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been

notified of any other interests or short positions representing

5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st

December 2012.
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K@ AT E

AEEZRARA G EFBHER M B wRME6 -

BE - HEREEAARZ LS
e
EETBRRARREFRAG LIE RAFEEEREL -
RZEOBRARERRERF 2887,901,665/k & K H(E
0.01BTTZEBITEARUETHE REAOTME  &H
ATEERETEEMNEN R_T——F+—AhBB
DB E ARAR - E——F+—-AALBEEY
624,235,579 BRE BB T ZEEITEBKR - B H
ENBRZFE H2BARARBHMAS —ZF1+—
ANBZRASE -

B EXHRBESN AR AR EANER B SRR
E-T- A T-AST-ALFEARE HELE
BEAARRZ EHES -

B BUR
FAEBREFHERETHEBRRERENE B
BRABAE -

ARRIEF HMEmFHZESGRERNESFRRALTS
LB AT AT BB E ©

ARARMERETIERHEETRAERER ZSE -
BRARRZ BRAE B FBRR M IRKRMT 46

BrBEERE
ARAZ R AMBIRE R A AR
BT+ AT AR B 1R A R B AR

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

With the approval by the independent shareholders at the
SGM, the Company has implemented the Offer to repurchase
for cancellation up to 887,901,665 issued ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each held by the shareholders of the Company.
In relation to the Offer, the Undertaking Parties had given
undertakings not to accept the Offer. Following the close of
the Offer on 9th November 2012, a total of 624,235,579 issued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were repurchased and
cancelled by the Company in November 2012. For details of
the result of the Offer, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9th November 2012.

Save as aforesaid, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the listed
securities of the Company for the year ended 31st December
2012.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
share option schemes of the Company are set out in note 46
to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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TEER
ARRABARERRERZIERERKFE - BRALRT
Rz XEARRANERBRNFRFELBERA[BE
BRREIA -

NBRERE

RZE——F+_A=Z+—8 BRERARAEENHAH
BRREBEZHANE ARRNAREFRELN H1558%
BMER LR BIZE8.08(1)(a)EFTRE 2 RIEAFIERE -
BIBITANEBTRAERAKLEZDBEBRHAR
ATHEE((RRER=ERE]D -

EREZENERRR-Z-—F1+-AXHMEREZYN
MEMBNER  ARBRARFERERRRARFTREBRTE °

AMEREARERERTAEN EFQR_Z—=
F+—AZ+EEH REXATBREARREN RS
IERTHEN EFEECRRABETRELAR -BERZ
T—=F-ANABTHMRELAR  ARBIEHITAH
514,463,056 % 41 Fi| f% 17 K 42 & %828,471,249.34/ 5 0 2
KRR RES (TR FZRBRESRK$H0.0158 T (7
REFBRBRIETAAE IFE) K18 52,847,124,934
IR ) - RATMR-—E—=F—A=B= - Bk
MAATRBESFNRELER  REXABRCK D BHAR
AIZBMIREREARHREMRTE -

RAHER  NRFFA LMRAFES.08(1)EER AR
RIREBZHE -

REHREE

RBERREE CBEREEFBEH NP BERERMESS -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 28 to 42 to the
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at 31st December 2012, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the percentage of shares being held by the
public was approximately 15.58% which was below the public
float requirement as set out under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules that requires at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued
share capital must at all times be held by the public (the
“Public Float Requirement”).

Following closing of the Offer and cancellation of all the
accepted shares under the Offer in November 2012, the
shares held in the hands of the public shareholders falls below
the Public Float Requirement.

For the purpose of restoration of minimum Public Float
Requirement, the Board announced on 20th November 2012
that pursuant to a mandate granted by the shareholders of the
Company at the SGM, the Board has resolved to implement
the Bonus Issue. Upon completion of the Bonus Issue on
9th January 2013, the Company has issued 514,463,056
Bonus Shares and Bonus CBs in an aggregate amount of
HK$28,471,249.34 convertible into 2,847,124,934 shares at
initial subscription price of HK$0.01 per share (subject to
adjustment in accordance with the deed poll of the Bonus CBs,
if necessary). The Company announced on 3rd January 2013
that based on the election results of the Bonus CBs, the Bonus
Issue was successful in assisting the Company to restore the
minimum Public Float Requirement.

As at the date this report, the Company complied with the
Public Float Requirement under Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing
Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 53 to the financial statements.
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B ED
ARRMBHRRCHBEFETMEERBERIAER
WREBRITZRRBFAE LRE ERATERL
BEEESERADNAREE - ARAHEREBRTZ
BREFAELRE-BRBRZTHGEAMELM
BRABRARRAERE 2 ZEE -

BR-B-—F=ZARFENEEREAREHE:
MEBMERARIN ARAAEBRE=FHLBEFTHE
fi Az B

AEEED
TE
BE3:

B —B-=F=A=+xA

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company have been audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditor of the Company for the subsequent year
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

There have been no other changes of auditor in the past three
years except for the reorganisation of Messrs. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited in March
2012.

On behalf of the Board
Heung Wah Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th March 2013
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HL

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

BHEEEEERAGDEZERR
(RERER R T2 ERAF)

TELEERERBERINHE N ESE2I8EHREEELEEBARA
A((E28) RENBRABIUTHBIERE]) 2K
EMBME  WGEMBREBER-ZT—ZF+=HA
St AZBEERARAVBRAREHEZALEFEZ
BRARAR HE2EABAR REAEIEDRRES
ReRMEXR URFBZSHBRMEREMHBER -

ESNGAUBRRARZER

BEARIEZRERBEEBEMASRMZEENBR
SEAURBERAGIZBEERERAEZEFEERAY
ZEAMBHRER UHARREEECHRUELESERN
HRRL (BEREARGFRBER) G BRRMEBL
BZRBNMNEZERE -
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

B&E 31st Floor
PIREITH115R Gloucester Tower
BihEi5 The Landmark
HERTITKE3E 11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STAR
ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 58 to 218, which comprise the consolidated and the
Company statements of financial position as at 31st December
2012, and the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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¥ 5. ¥ B ) % Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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= OPINION

EERE SAVEBRRCBEFBUBHELEIESE  In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a

FALMBR EARE S£EEN_ZT—_-F+_-H true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and

=S+—BZHBRR R BEEEEZZBILFEZHE  of the Group as at 31st December 2012, and of the Group’s

FMEREnE  WIEREBARIGHZRBHREL AEE - profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BEEEstMmEEMERALT HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
WE R RTAD Chartered Accountants

BB D ELETHD Certified Public Accountants

RER Yu Chi Fat

HEZFERM  P05467 Practising Certificate Number: P05467
BB ZE—=F=A=+H Hong Kong, 26th March 2013
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-
5 E RN

E7

H b e zs
HA A
TR

ISR HEREITHX

DERFEEEZER
BEZAFEEZEHM
EEZER

ERBTVEEZEHER
B 18

BREXREZEER
WEEE

BRARETEZ ZEER
BB E R

e, (BER)

B AR

& {1 2K [R) 42 1) (2 58 &5 18
FEE B2 R R E R

BB AR (ER)
IR

FERM/(EBE)

AT AL REMEF SR,
(BR)
RRBHEEA
SRR s

BREF(HE)
E-N

%58

BEPN Z Pt BRIt E M BT 2 — 71 - RE K DK Z

FEERH BRI FIZ

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other income

Administrative expenses

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses

Loss arising on change in fair value
of financial assets classified as
held for trading

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of film rights

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of films in progress

Profit/(loss) from operations

Finance costs

Share of losses of jointly controlled entities
Share of losses of associates

Profit/(loss) before tax
Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying

—E——fF %

2012 2011

ok THT FET
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
7 1,464,979 1,096,762
(809,166) (481,744)

655,813 615,018

8 18,415 18,972
9 377 1,421
(441,234) (462,600)
(51,582) (16,059)
(16,260) (68,837)

22 (24,327) (700,085)
27 (1,605) (619)
28 - (15,928)
139,597 (628,717)
10 (45,589) (31,456)
23 17) (1,344)
24 - (8)
11 93,991 (661,525)
12 535 7,419
94,526 (654,106)

53,360 (683,234)

41,166 29,128

94,526 (654,106)

14 HK cents 0.9271l  HK cents (18.46)75 1l

14 HK cents 09231l HK cents (18.46)/& 1l

notes form an integral part of these

financial statements. Details of dividend and distribution are

set out in note 13 to

the financial statements.
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—E——fF —E——fF
2012 2011
FERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEHHN,(FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 94,526 (654,106)
Hit2EBKA Other comprehensive income

BEBINEBEEZIEN %  Exchange differences arising on translation

of foreign operations 20 16

REEREEBINE 2 Reclassification adjustments relating to
Eibage b foreign operation disposed during the year - 24
FEHMEERA Other comprehensive income for the year 20 40

FEE@MWA(EIB)#%E  Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year 94,546 (654,066)
LTATEEFEEREA Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
WA (F518) 85 - attributable to:
RRAEEB A Owners of the Company 53,381 (683,196)
SRR B Non-controlling interests 41,165 29,130
94,546 (654,066)
B BT B ST R B ML S B B sk 2 — &B 19 o The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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R-Z——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2012

—E-——F —E——F
2012 2011
Hiaz FERT FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
kRBEE Non-current assets
P - e R Property, plant and equipment 17 547,062 637,702
HE s Interests in leasehold land 18 484,492 507,359
BEME Investment property 19 - -
EES Goodwill 21 3,030 3,030
mVEE Intangible assets 22 75,176 100,729
7 2k R4 I (B BS i 2 Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 28,639 28,656
REE A FER Interests in associates 24 2,377 7,977
1,140,776 1,285,453
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 53,345 38,639
MEES Stock of properties 26 561,976 550,312
BN E Film rights 27 18,156 19,761
BUHERER Films in progress 28 3,190 3,150
Z 5 EWERR Trade receivables 29 329,937 143,008
Be  BNRBEREAm Deposits, prepayments and
& e other receivables 30 42,822 396,386
FIEEEIRE Held for trading investments 31 30,189 50,797
& W & R B SR I8 Amounts due from associates 32 21,176 16,854
TR 1A Prepaid tax 176 86
B & MIRITHE & Cash and bank balances 33 578,863 903,094
1,639,830 2,122,087
HEE Total assets 2,780,606 3,407,540
BARFE Capital and reserves
& 75 Share capital 34 16,859 19,647
7 & Reserves 1,570,542 1,948,945
RAEEB AEE#ER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,587,401 1,968,592
SEE MR A Non-controlling interests (191) 306,317
RS Total equity 1,587,210 2,274,909
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R-ZT——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2012

—E-——F —E——F

2012 2011

H st FTET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

FRBAE
RITEE
BEMERER
AR E S
EEFRIBAR

nREBAE
RITEE
BEMERER
B 5 ENRR
BEREZESE - BEFRE &
H & 5 50IR
FE IR
J& 1< Bt 2 2 B 3UR
JRE A< 22 S & SRR

BERAR

REREEAE

REBEEFE

BREERRBAE

Non-current liabilities

Bank borrowings 36 350,000 400,000
Obligations under finance leases 37 43 153
Convertible bonds 38 341,231 339,187
Deferred tax liabilities 39 83,714 84,253

774,988 823,593

Current liabilities

Bank borrowings 36 70,875 66,674
Obligations under finance leases 37 111 128
Trade payables 40 251,821 139,080
Deposits received, accruals and
other payables 41 75,166 68,244
Tax payable 4 4
Amount due to an associate 32 20,279 34,906
Amount due to non-controlling interests 32 152 2
418,408 309,038
Total liabilities 1,193,396 1,132,631
Total equity and liabilities 2,780,606 3,407,540
Net current assets 1,221,422 1,813,049
Total assets less current liabilities 2,362,198 3,098,502

BRAVBHRERZZE—=F=-A=ZF+/ BHHAEEEHME The consolidated financial statements were approved and
REETZIRTIEESARES authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26th March

2013 and signed on its behalf by:

#7538 Heung Wah Keung BRBi3E Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
ZE £ Director E Z Director
BEMT 2 Ml st Rt SRR 2 — 301D The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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R-Z——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2012

—ET——%
2011
B it FAET
Notes HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current asset
G IEINGIE: Interests in subsidiaries 20 1,278,976 2,273,803
REBEE Current assets
JE U2 BT B8 B 3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 606,255 560,117
Re - BRFKERHEA Deposits, prepayments and
JiE U 3R E other receivables 30 366 559
JE W Hs: & R R FOR Amount due from an associate 32 7,881 7,873
B RIRITHE 8 Cash and bank balances 33 253,135 240,479
867,637 809,028
wWEE Total assets 2,146,613 3,082,831
BARFE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 34 16,859 19,647
7 & Reserves 35 1,534,688 2,656,989
B Total equity 1,551,547 2,676,636
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
FE BT B 1 B R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 224,517 38,938
AR (B 55 Convertible bonds 38 341,231 339,187
FERIBEEE Deferred tax liability 39 1,447 1,784
567,195 379,909
REEE Current liability
Bl HZES  EEIEE R Deposits received, accruals
H b BT SRR and other payables 41 27,871 26,286
EE8%HE Total liabilities 595,066 406,195
REREEHE Total equity and liabilities 2,146,613 3,082,831
REBEERE Net current assets 839,766 782,742
BWEERRBERE Total assets less current liability 2,118,742 3,056,545

BHBFRARAE—=F=Z"A=_F+ "BHEEeH ERE The financial statements were approved and authorised for

BHEYHTIEFAEREE

issue by the board of directors on 26th March 2013 and
signed on its behalf by:

[ # 3 Heung Wah Keung FRBIE Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
ZE % Director E % Director
Babt 2 s Bt S B HEKR 2 — 215 - The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFJE For the year ended 31st December 2012

URARA TR Bx  REER/
B RHEE AAB4  EXGE  EERE 2HERE  RREE MEBE  (RHER) Nt FERER a3t

Retained
Share-based ~ Convertible Capital  earnings/ Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Exchange  Statutory ~ payment bonds  reduction (Accumulated controlling
31 ] The Group capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) ~ Sub-total interests Total

L ThAL T T Tt Tt Tt Tk Tikn ThAL T Tt
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
(ita)  (W#p) (i) (BEd) (W) (i) (i)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note &) (Note f) (Note g)

RZZ-—5-A-8 At st January 2011 43,340 609,421 1,056,041 888 259 59,978 - 316,008 216,840 2,302,775 217,181 2579956
FE(BR) /&7 (Loss)/profit for the year - - - - - - - (683234)  (683.234) 29128 (654,106)
EEABZEUA Other comprefensive income

for the year - - - 38 - - - - 38 2 40

FERENN/ (BE) 8% Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year - - - 38 - - C (83234 (683,196) 29,130 (654,066
BR4E Capital reduction (44,206) - 44,206 - - - - - - - -
iR FhRhER Exercise of listed warrants - 2 - - - - - - - 2 - 2
fRERE Exercise of share option - 1 - - - - - - 1 - 1
BRENH Expiry of share options - - - - (6,844) - - 6,644 - - -
ARRAEEAZRH1E Income tax relating to transactions
LHER with owners of the Company - - - - - (1937) - - (1937) - (1,987)
REHRAEHR Issue of new shares upon rights issue 14735 353650 - - - - - - 368385 - 368385
WEEEE 2k Non-conirolling interests arising
Bies on acquisition - - - - - - - - - 6 6
e 3t Payment of dividend - - - - - - - (64,83)  (64,836) - (64,836)
RERR Placement of shares 5778 34,672 - - - - - - - 40,450 - 40,450
BANERES EETH Recognition of the equity component
of convertible bonds - - - - - - 11,740 - - 11,740 - 11,740
BAIRGAR Share issuing expenses - (4792) - - - - - - - (4792) - (4,792)
BREZEREE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 28 - - - (28) - - -
RZZ-—F+ZA=+-H  At31stDecember 2011 and
k=5-%-f-H at 1st January 2012 19,647 992,954 1,100,247 926 287 53,134 9,803 316,008 (524,414) 1,968,592 306317 2274909
FRER Profit for the year - - - - - - - 53,360 53,360 41,166 94,56
EELB2ERA/ (BB Other comprehensive incomel(loss)
for the year - - - 21 - - - - 21 (1) 20
EERANALE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 21 - - - 53,360 53,381 41,165 94,546
WERELAENMES Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidaries - - - - - - - S 3%)  (30) (G467 (631.000)
e LhARESR Exercise of listed warrants 3454 67,39 - - - - - - 70,849 - 70,849
BORG Repurchase of shares (6242 (212.240) - - - - - - (218482 - (218482
R EROER Share issuing and cancelling expenses - (3612) - - - - - - - (3612) - (3612)
BREZERHE Transfer to statutory reserve - - - - 4 - - - @ - - -
WZB-ZE+-F=+-0  At31st December 2012 16,859 844,497 1,100,247 947 291 53,134 9,803 316,008 (754,385) 1,587,401 (191) 1,587,210
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BE-NAN—FERERREEER)  BOEEANS
ERRARRZ RETRG  ERBRAKRETTAR
ABR -

AREZANBABBLEREN " _FALATHE
BB RERZREREIRMEERARZ A% o

BEARE-NAN-FREERIER) SARBAH
DIk o R RATER  ARBNEEMARGDE
HAK : (VAR ERINDIRE S EELTHEEH
BE: ()RR REECAERELATMEREERE -

ERRBESARESNEB 2 FEEARDEREER
HEALE2YEE (BT R ELZ/  MER
EEDERRAMEABAERLNEL RBRT - %
EREXFRERFCERZENHEBIEBHEND
BERBEN,/(RFEE) -

REBPIREAMR 2 X ARAFRPIEMAL 2B
REVAERFEFuf 2 RIEB%BEEEZERG BEE
BEENEEREEZ0%AILE - ERAFERH X
ERBTAUREREREMEADIK -

AR S 2 SRS - HER R AR BRER G
AREEGERBENREIREZATEE  ERET)
NRHEREHBREZATEERNERE - ERE
BRE#E AR ERBREZ A FEEEEES
BHE (B NEAFE - YIEABEMX KB
HE AR WARERS ARG 2 KB -

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the share premium of the Company can be used in paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members of

the Company as fully paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Group brought forward
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due
to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002 and
various capital reduction subsequently.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than its liabilities.

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated
in the exchange reserve are reclassified to retained
earnings/(accumulated losses) on the disposal of the foreign

operations.

In accordance with the provisions of Macau Commercial
Code, the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Macau are
required to transfer a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits
to a statutory reserve until that reserve equals 50% of the
nominal value of their capital. The statutory reserve may not be
distributed in the form of cash dividends or otherwise, during
the life of the companies.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-

based payment reserve.
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B

et - (%)

()

BIEEBGER (R ER)) F325k 24 TA -
2] BT ZABRBESFIRIRERED BAR
A kEmE D TARRAFEERBEERN (2
FEENERERATBREES  THANTERE) - M
BOMGHRARABOZIAFEEREZZRAURERN
A AEBNHERDVRCBHEXATE - Em
NERANRAARESHE  EErRREFRER (B
BREHRERNEE) XTRARESHED (BEREE
BEREREAEN/(RHER)) RLE -

& 7 B R 6 48 P — U\ 7R 2 F1332,640,0004%
BETRMHZEESESREETOBTHRESREE
O0SBTAHEAZ 8 - RANRIBEEREARAZA
FMARIE1206MiBA s —BRER - RAHIRFEE ]
AEINAQREREZSE BB HAEE UK
ARAEEREREER HEREKEMARBEFR A
BRZAR-
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ZHE+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

Notes: (Continued)

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard (*HKAS”) 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation, convertible bonds issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value which
is determined using a market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts and attributing to the equity component
the difference between the proceeds from issue and the fair
value of the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until the
convertible bonds are either converted (in which case it is
transferred to share premium) or the convertible bonds are
redeemed (in which case it is released directly to retained

earnings/(accumulated losses)).

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to
HK$0.05 each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by
the directors of the Company pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the
Company’s Bye-laws, the capital reduction reserve shall be
applicable for meeting claims on or liabilities of the Company
or contingencies or for paying off any loan capital or for
equalising dividends or for any other purpose to which the

profits of the Company may be properly applied.
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—E-——F —E——F
2012 2011
it FTERT FH&T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
REERCHESRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BrEiAE A (BE) Profit/(loss) before tax 93,991 (661,525)
AT BIEAEFE Adjustments for:
BE R Finance costs 45,589 31,456
FE KA Interest income (7,005) (6,783)
| A = Amortisation of intangible assets 1,226 217
7 & ot e 2 B Amortisation of interests in leasehold land 22,867 22,866
Y MR RBETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 96,558 104,100
HESIEARBIEEEZ Loss on disposal of financial assets
CREECEE classified as held for trading 328 2,490
DEAFIEEEZ S/ Loss arising on change in fair value of
BEZATEBZESF financial assets classified
EEXZBE as held for trading 15,932 66,347
EHEETREZEHER Impairment loss recognised in respect
RIEEE of film rights 1,605 619
FHERERER Impairment loss recognised in respect
EERREEE of films in progress - 15,928
EHE SRR FEZ Impairment loss recognised in respect
R EEE of trade receivables 200 394
FHBVEEZERR Impairment loss recognised in respect
HEEE of intangible assets 24,327 700,085
HEME  #Ek® Loss on disposal of property, plant and
(53! equipment 510 265
WIFFER — KB AR ZEE Loss on derecognition of a subsidiary - 24
BB R AEBE Share of losses of associates - 8
JE {5 3 ) 422 51 18 B 5 48 Share of losses of jointly controlled entities 17 1,344
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—E-——F —E——F

2012 2011

M iF TExT FHET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000

EEECBEFI 2 LE
BeERe

FEGGEMm R
YT E M

B MRER D

B R E R N

Z 5 [ Mg BR I N

e BRZREREMER
B (M) R

JE Lz B 5 X B IR N
Z 5 BRFE N
BUEZES - BFTEE R
H e A SRR
JEAT B2 R R FUA
CrA) /380

FE FEIE R =
I, CRA)

BEELE/ (R ZHE
(B /BR@HBIEA

REXBEE (A2
REFE

REXBRERE

RGN
WHEBE AR ZEDR
Yo B SR 2 ) 88
WEBHE AR (Re
)
RERERE
HEDHEAREESR
ZEBMEEMGSIA
HEME - Bz RRE
FRiS 3R
BANDBERKIEEER
ZEBMEE
BAME  HERRE

Bt & X B EE R

REEBEE(FA)
REFE

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital 296,145 277,835
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (14,706) 3,309
Increase in stock of properties (11,664) (550,312)
Decrease in film rights - 941
Increase in films in progress (40) (40)
Increase in trade receivables (187,129) (71,470)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits,

prepayments and other receivables (6,296) 4,942
Increase in amounts due from associates (4,322) (3,140)
Increase in trade payables 112,741 104,431
Decrease in deposits received, accruals

and other payables (7,423) (14,658)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to

an associate (14,627) 9,140
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to

non-controlling interests 150 (65,520)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 162,829 (804,542)
Tax (paid)/refund (94) 152

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities 162,735 (804,390)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 6,865 6,783
Acquisition of interests in associates - (8)
Acquisition of jointly controlled entities - (30,000)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net cash

outflow) 42 - (28,086)
Refund of deposit for investment 360,000 55,000
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

classified as held for trading 4,348 7,919
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 8 -
Purchase of financial assets classified

as held for trading - (33,503)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17 (6,436) (10,627)
Repayment from associates 5,600 8

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities 370,385 (82,514)
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Notes

MEFDRERE
WRE I B A R R ME &

B FE

EfRE

BITAI AR A 7
HILIRITIEE
MREHEER

f& 0 AR 4 P S SRR
IR B T 21T B D
A8 508

1T R HE & P 1S 3R
i & B A0 AT 1S 3R IR
1716 BB UM FT 1S 508
EERMEHEERD

BERITEE
BT REHRNDAX

MEEH (A EE
ZREFE

RekBREZEEER
(R 4) /#m

REMUZ2EERERES
ZE®EAE

NEERESEIHE

BEMRZEER
RE&%EER
B RIRTTHEH

BEMT 2 HIE AU S M B RER 2 —#F D

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries
Interest paid
Dividend paid
Issue of convertible bonds 38
New bank borrowings raised
New obligations under finance leases
Proceeds for repurchase of shares 34
Proceeds from issue of shares
upon rights issue
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Proceeds from placing of shares
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Repayment of obligations under
finance leases
Repayment of bank borrowings
Share issuing and cancelling expenses

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the reporting period
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the reporting period
Cash and bank balances 33

financial statements.

B 4 i &  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—FE+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

—E-CF —ET——%

2012 2011
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(631,000) -
(29,200) (16,843)
- (64,836)

- 350,000

55,924 -

- 73
(218,482) -
- 368,385

70,849 2

- 40,450

- 1
(127) (141)
(101,723) (58,144)
(3,612) (4,792)
(857,371) 614,155
(324,251) 277,251
903,094 625,827
20 16
578,863 903,094

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
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—F+=H=+—HI4EE For the year ended 31st December 2012

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun Tak
Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar, which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, sales
of Chinese health products, investing in operations
which receive profit streams from the gaming promotion
business, property and hotel investment, and property

development.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning from
1st January 2012. A summary of the new and revised
HKFRSs adopted by the Group is set out as follows:
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures - Transfer of

Financial Assets
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ZERIRELZHIE  KOHBEEE] - RIEZE
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5 RBEB R ENBIORREY LI UAT
BEERHEZRANERBRATEBHEK
B AEEBIEH & - B ERERRE -

ERVMBREEAFIR2BIFREBHER
RABBEREMNEZREE R H
BRVBRERNE VR RN REZ BRI BE
RIRBE B BIEAH I ANRBRER \ BRTEZRE
B -HEAHERARE ZEERAREENFTEY
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BRTVEZEENRABIHEERAE - ZFE MK T
ERMBREENEIFPEAL LERAREREEK
GRBRZRXFGEARTAY - AN AKE L IEFEH
BRELNZERRNE  ZSETTEHREREK
MGRE -

ERUMBBERAFTRZETARE-SRS
MEE]
EEMBBREENETR IR RE-BRHEE)
2 MBBRARERZARUIBRZICBERSME
ERHEC2EKLIBRRAZEASES R CERSR
BEFHAETHE MIAREBEEISANEL - R
- ERBARNENEFRALRBBIREER - K
SENBERBAAHEL BETEMRBRETAER
A ML RBECERSRAESE -

2.

=+—HI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets in the current year. Under the
amendments, investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 Investment Property are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale for the purposes of measuring
deferred taxes unless the presumption is rebutted.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

The amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
introduce a new deemed cost exemption for entities that
have been subject to severe hyperinflation, whereby
these entities can elect fair value as the deemed
cost for assets and liabilities affected by severe
hyperinflation in their first HKFRS financial statements.
The amendments also remove the legacy fixed dates
in HKFRS 1 relating to derecognition and day one gain
or loss transactions. As the Group is not a first time
adopter of HKFRSs, the amendments have no financial
impact on the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets require certain disclosures to
be included in the financial statements in respect of
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety and for any continuing involvement in
transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety, irrespective of when the related transfer
transaction occurred. However, an entity need not
provide the disclosures for the comparative period in
the first year adoption. The Group did not have any
significant transfers of financial assets in previous
periods or the current period which require disclosure in
the current accounting period under the amendments.
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HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

S o

]}H‘_ piausl

EEHH
% %
L E
Al :

o

Rz F

ER2EAAEREZZH

EEEF
BUBBRE
REENERAELE
IR Be
BHEBEER
LREE
RZE-——F~ABHz
ZEENEEZT——
FRMZERYBRE
B F ke
B E#
RE-HEHeRER
ReBaRE
BRMBRELNER
GHERASLAE
B
SRIA
GEMBRE

KRZH
BREREMAR 2 ER

APEEHE

BARTER - KARH
RERRER 2 E
TR

REMEE

REERBRRRER
BECER?

2.

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 28 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income'
Employee Benefits?
Separate Financial Statements?
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle Issued
in June 20122
Government Loans?
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures*
Financial Instruments*
Consolidated Financial
Statements?
Joint Arrangement?
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?
Fair Value Measurement?
Consolidated Financial
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2013

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st

January 2015

The directors of the Company have commenced their
assessments of the impact of the above new and
revised HKFRSs, but it is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, HKAS and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instrument that are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.
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(b) HEEE(E) (b)  Basis of consolidation (Continued)
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subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E$£ 2012



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R E AR A A

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

Z2-E——F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

B

3. IESTHRRMEE)

(b)

REERE(E)

EAEBEKREMB AR I - )R
REZHIRE BRI ERZME R ARE
HEFECEERBE (BREBE) (i)
KR LIS B A& RN ATHE A F]
ZEMFEREE CREE(BERREE
HEMEEBRAZ EREBL) - K(ii) 2
B EZ A FEERERNRE#ERZ
RFBEZBBEUNRENEERENASK
BlAR A AR AL AR AN SR E 8 o i
MBARZETEAEREMSBERLFE
Bt 8 MEBREMHBERENEM
EEME NN EE RET R BRERE
i R ER R RN R Rt RR 2 2 ERE
MAKECERHERBEE AR (BE
MEEBM GRS EANMREER D EEEL
AUARKEEEERE R, (RFE
B)) - REBEFEGFERIEIR /M T
A ERRSE) HWEREPRZER
REBRERREZHREAZLFER
BIENM P HERE 2 A FEE  AHRERE
TR R (WER) R ERRBER
Ak —RAREH ERREBRERA

ANNUAL REPORT 4E# 2012

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it (i) derecognises the assets (including any
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their
carrying amounts at the date when control is lost,
(ii) derecognises the carrying amounts of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in the consolidated
income statement attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to the consolidated income
statement or transferred directly to retained
earnings/(accumulated losses) as specified
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.
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Fff 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in the consolidated income statement
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net of the amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed in
the acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition date exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement as gain on bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another standard.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting periods
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting periods in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period, and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

Business combinations achieved in stages
were accounted for as separate step. Goodwill
was determined at each step. Any additional
acquisition did not affect the previously
recognised goodwill.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of the reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of the
consolidated income statement on disposal.
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(e)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint controlled
entity. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, interests in associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of results and
other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of loss of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the
acquisition date is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment.
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3. TEEHMERES) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(e)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after re-assessment, is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

The requirements of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
applied to determine whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s interest in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the interest (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the interest. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the interest subsequently
increases.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in
the Group losing significant influence over that
associate, any retained interest is measured
at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The difference between the
previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair
value is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to the consolidated income
statement on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to the consolidated income
statement (as a reclassification adjustment)
when it loses significant influence over that
associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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3. —rﬁkﬁmg (/“ ) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) RAREHEE 2R (f) Interests in jointly controlled entities
EREDCETHP IR B IR - mEFR Joint venture arrangements that involve the
AeEYWZBEBZEEEISES LRIEH establishment of a separate entity in which
TS 51 4 £k R 1 I 12 B2 venturers have joint control over the economic

activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

HAZHEREEREERBERPER The results and assets and liabilities of jointly
Equ/fqu)\ B BWmE BEBEERE controlled entities are incorporated in the
REREHIER 2 R RY T WR AR consolidated financial statements using the
Rira M BRRERIE - WAL E &N equity method of accounting. Under the equity

HEZEHEEEEEEREM 2SR method, interests in jointly controlled entities
RUEL T - MAEEENE —KEREH are initially recognised in the consolidated
&2 E5 18 AR S5 7 ol B H H 7 s FL [R5 Il statement of financial position at cost and

Bz (BEEAEEE LB AEE adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's

RzAREGIERREFE RPER) - share of results and other comprehensive
BIAREBKRILEREEH2E PR - income of the jointly controlled entities. When
BINGEBERNEAEEEEELATHHET the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
BESIRKRZLRZEFIERMRK - entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly

controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the jointly controlled
entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

A {R AT BE X SRR N 52 (B R {1 A UK B B HR Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
BRzARZEHEABATZNEE  BER the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
FREBBEATFECEZHERR[E  H identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
HEREERENKREBES - liabilities of a jointly controlled entity recognised

at the acquisition date is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Interests in jointly controlled entities
(Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after re-assessment, is recognised immediately
in consolidated income statement.

The requirements of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
applied to determine whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled
entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the interest (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the interest. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the interest subsequently

increases.
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3.

#F Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Interests in jointly controlled entities
(Continued)

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that
results in the Group losing joint control over that
jointly controlled entity, any retained interest
is measured at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The difference between the
previous carrying amount of the jointly controlled
entity attributable to the retained interest and
its fair value is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly
controlled entity. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that jointly
controlled entity on the same basis as would
be required if that jointly controlled entity
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by
that jointly controlled entity would be reclassified
to the consolidated income statement on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to the consolidated income statement (as a
reclassification adjustment) when it loses joint
control over that jointly controlled entity.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly
controlled entity, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the jointly controlled entity
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the jointly controlled entity that are
not related to the Group.
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(9)

Revenue recognition

Film distribution fee income is recognised when
the master materials have been delivered.

Sales of film rights are recognised when the
master films are delivered and the film title has
passed perpetually.

Service income and management fee income are
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
assets to that asset’s carrying amount.
Revenue from hotel accommodation is
recognised upon the provision of the
accommodation services. Revenue from food
and beverage sales and other ancillary services
are recognised upon the provision of goods and
services.

Revenue arising from service provided for
gaming operations in mass market hall, slot
machine hall and VIP rooms is recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered and
the Group is entitled to the share of gaming wins
from the gaming operator.

Receive profit streams from the gaming
promotion business is recognised when the
rights to receive profit is established.

Gaming promotion fees are recognised when
certain level of achievements are achieved after
the promotional services are rendered.

Revenue from sales of Chinese health products
are recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the products are delivered to
customers and title is passed.
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(hy BREEE (h) Intangible assets
5K IE 2 EREE Intangible assets acquired separately

ERKEYABEERAEAFHLETLE
ETRRAR Rt # i M R E (1nF)
JIfk - AABEMRAERFH BN EER
HEEAME M F R B REREREE - (4
AAEREFRREETEARSRESR
T At mEEREY  ERERA
o ERKRBYAEERAERAFHZE
WERETZRKARRFTRE(AE) AR -

REBEHKBEZEBEE

REBAHUBZEVEE (RBHEDH
R MAERR/RENKB AR 2R
BEE/BREZMRA)

EGAHKRBYARERIEAFHE
WEERNRERBEIZKAR R # R
ZEtHE (WA IR -REERARA
FHBVEERAEMGAIERFHNE
REREREY - At ERFHRREES
ERBBRERRT AR - BB ER
28 ERARAKR- ERURBLARER
AERFH BV EETRRAR R R
B(E) ARk -

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives are recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
in a business combination are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives are recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment, if any.
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E-T—

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

U]

Intangible assets (Continued)
Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset.

Building transferred from investment properties
is stated at deemed cost, which is equal to its
fair value at the date of change in use.
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M- BERRE(E)
REBEHENKAEZEEABREEZMN
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful lives on
the same basis as owned assets. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the

lease term and their useful lives.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates are

as follows:
BF 2% - 5% Buildings 2% — 5%
HEMEEE 20% — 33% Leasehold improvements 20% — 33%

B HEREE 10% — 50%
B 15% - 20%

ME - BERREHREREERREHA
BT EARECREERGKENGR
RILHER - A% BERREBALE
HEHMELE ZEMENREBREER
BRAEEZEERMEZEZR YRGS
WA R AR

10% - 50%
15% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(k)

Interests in leasehold land

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interests in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “interests in
leasehold land” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Investment property

An investment property is property held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property is initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, an investment
property is measured at fair value. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment property is included in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which they arise.
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(k) BREWEE) (k)  Investment property (Continued)
KENMENHER N IREDEXKETEFE An investment property is derecognised upon
sk BN & B & 2 Y 3 M B R RAE disposal or when the investment property
EF SRR R IEEREEMES is permanently withdrawn from use and no
ZHEMBHNRER (REEZHERER future economic benefits are expected from
BEHKREE ZHE) R IERER the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
¥R AGEBAERA - derecognition of the property (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
EHEAMRBEADERS  WERERA An investment property is transferred at fair
TEEEEEYE  EBENEE-KEY value to property, plant and equipment when the
X¥ERNEAATEEEmMES 25K property begins to be occupied by the owner.
BETFAGZERARK - Gain or loss arising from change in fair value
of the investment property upon the transfer is
included in the consolidated income statement.
) BEREFEE 2 REFIE (FERM) 0} Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

REREHR AEEEEHNAEFART
FERFHz2BERREREEZEREE U
ErTELCAANTRBEREEEELER
BEEE METNERTRBETEHEE
HIRFME - AIEETZ & E 2 AU e & 28 A
ETREBBZRE (I0F) - M7
HE—AEZANESE  BAEEERN
HHEEMBRSEAENZAIRES
B oRUHBAEER—BENREEIE
AT CEEENSHESIEZEBACE
FBA FRAIKERSIRETHNASRE
MR—BHREEZ &/ ReEFBLUR -

other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).
recoverable amount of an individual asset,

When it is not possible to estimate the

the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.
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Fff 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit/(loss) before tax” as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it
further exclude items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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(m)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with interests
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
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#F Notes to the Financial Statements
F+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
property that is measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such property
is presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for such investment property is measured
in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how property will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the

accounting for a business combination,

business combination.
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HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

3. TEQNHEME(Z) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) EERAK (n) Borrowing costs
EEEWE ErRtELSREERE Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
Ak Ey T EME Y EERA - e acquisition, construction or production of
BRAEERNEZESERES  HERE qualifying assets, which are assets that
BEADAEERERS Y HBIERESE necessarily take a substantial period of time
ey HBEEEAL - to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.
FEEMmEERARELBE S WA All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
ERER - consolidated income statement in the period in
which they are incurred.
(0) L E A1 (o) Stock of properties

BEHEZNEFENRRARAERF
EMEREEINR - RAR A BB FEZ
MTETE :

HELHEZRRETWE

RELEZBRETORZKABE  LH
ERBKABRE LI WEKA  AEE
A EREAERE - MR T
B HpEERAXREESN 2 —RITR
BR -BTUE2RFER2ZEAEER
BREPEENEZBERFHE  HER
ZAEHERXMNEETKE Z AKX
A HAEEERERTHRMFELAEREK

EE-

BROFERIEMMERRIAR 2 ERBRF
EREREEEY  ERPOFREXT
XHEERBOBARDEE -
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Stock of properties, which are held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost and net realisable value are
determined as follows:

Properties under development held for sale

The costs of properties under development
held for sale comprises specifically identified
costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing
costs capitalised, material and supplies, wages,
other direct expenses and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
management estimates based on prevailing
marketing conditions.

Properties under development are classified
as current assets when the construction of
the relevant properties commences unless the
construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be
completed beyond normal operating cycle.
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3. TEEHMERES) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

98

) By (p) Inventories
BERRARTEESEME Y RIEE Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
ABE o IF I AR AN IR S A 4E B ok i T net realisable value. Costs of inventories are
YSEEE (@) S8 o A IS E I determined on first-in-first-out basis or weighted
BEEHEERSHRETHNE Y KB average basis as appropriate. Net realisable
SRR value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
SEEENE  ZEFEERERESR When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
BEWABEAIESYERNT AR - of those inventories is recognised as cost of
MR S EE Y A EREE sales in the period in which the related revenue
FT 75 165 18 B AL K 5 18 B¢ 4F H RS R 2 25 4 is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
ERRT LR o 4TS MOR > 4T ] 5 inventories to net realisable value and all losses
[B] 34 18 [3] 2= 4 HA RS 7 10 5 5 7 7 9 5 4% of inventories are recognised as cost of sales
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is offset against the cost of sales in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
Q) B (9) Film rights

EYMESAEERFABAZEZRE
REER - THIRRAR RET#E R RETR
EBE(MmMBE) AR

ERAIT 3 TGy A YN
EEYREB A BSARA Z L HIREGES
WARAER  EFYREZHBETSBHE
Z+F o

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by the
Group and are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment loss,
if any.

Amortisation for film rights is recognised to the
consolidated income statement based on the
proportion of actual income earned during the
year to the total estimated income from the sale
of film rights. The amortisation of film rights will
not exceed twenty years.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

B

3. IESTHRRMEE)

(a)

(n

(s)

EERE(E)

REREREHR  AEESERAMLEIN
BHZEM  NFEREAEANTRER
EYMECRE - WEANFBFREFE
AlglitEEC T REEHE YERFEE
B REBRERAR BEERERZH
AEf AT ESER - ZEREBEBDINEGE
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HETEY
REFEFHEBEFETLEZRERERE
Bl REBEEZEANRAHEBBRARERR
EER(WE) A& - KAREERHIEE
FLMBEEKA - EXRAKRTHKE
ERBETREALR -

REBEREHR  AEESRHAMRIN
HmSEN  UFBEREEEMPRETR
HEFEFCRE NEMEBETRE
H-AlgRatEEZREEE YR
FERBREBEBRERAR BEERE
EHUWEHE - ZFREBBRDINGS
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E@MIA
TREENERABIREEREEKRST
BENBER AT RER -
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(s)

Film rights (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal
and external market information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
film rights are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the carrying amount of such asset is
assessed and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
estimated recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost at the date incurred less subsequent
impairment losses, if any. Costs include all direct
costs associated with the production of films.
Costs of film are transferred to film rights upon
completion.

At the end of each reporting period, both
internal and external market information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that films in progress are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such asset is assessed and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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3. TEEHMERES) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(s)

EWMIA(E)
TREENRERABINIUNAFERE
T E EERERNBEXBRITEIMEE
remaBEERBERTEEIERZ
TREERTBABRIN ZRIRAR
MAERRFASTNEETREERS R
BEWMER) cAFEE-BEERER
BEABRBEURATFERIGZEREE
KEMABIRIUANERGEABAR
PR o

ETHEE
EREERBRUTHETER : EBAE
SARFEENR] (BB EEARFE
B 2 EREERERRERFR -
DENEREEZHERRAERE - AR
MPBEREET - MFAERERTABEX
HEZEREE HEXFHABEETHE
RRKIEER - NEATABERLES
REEZREMREMS 2 RUIEIIRE
ZERARNEE -

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans
and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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HE-ZZT——F+=-HA=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2012

3. TEEHBERE (L) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) SWMIAE) (s) Financial instruments (Continued)
EHEE(E) Financial assets (Continued)
BERAE L Effective interest method

ERMNBZRARERPHEMEEBIAZ
BERARDBENBBRAZTE - BEA
KTIRKEENRBEBEE TR ZEHRF
MBI HE (mER) Bt R KRS K
K (ERBERERFNEDASRREAH 2 —
NENHERERRAEZE KIHKRA
REAMGEERITR) ENRERE ZRE
PR

%?&IQZ?'NJ SWA TR BIR A R &R
CEDBRERBENATFEEIELZ
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁl\ °

BBEGURFEEINRZEBEE

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the carrying

amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than

those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

FRERUATFEEVIEZSREED A Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
Wi TE?%{’EEE%EEEE&EMB?’K&E including financial assets held for trading and
REETAEBEEIAANFEEYEZS those designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.
BMEE -

ERMEENTIBERTHERARTFEES

(i) BATZZRIOEHHE X

(i) BRAKEAHEENHEETSH
TREHAGW—#HOKAEEROE
BRGHEMEN - X

(i) SBREERKKEERATEBE
REPTANTETA -

ANNUAL REPORT 4F#t 2012

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

() it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

(i) it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Fff 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset

held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL

upon initial recognition if:

(i)

(iii)

such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally
on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to
be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at

fair value, with change in fair value arising

from remeasurement recognised directly in the

consolidated income statement in the period

in which they arise. Fair value is determined in

the manner described in note 5 to the financial

statements.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, other deposits, deposits for
investment, other receivables, amounts due from
associates and cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less subsequent impairment
losses, if any.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

() significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

(i) breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency interest or principal
payments; or
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

(iv)  disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period of 60-90
days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in
the consolidated income statement. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the consolidated
income statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income
statement to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

105



106

BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

3.

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

o RS A R A F

TESHERBE(E)

(s)

EWMIAE)
EHEEREZRMTA

EEERRT2EBEEREEETAT
BEMTIANEHZHENERERE
BB TR 2R SR ALRA RS
s -

EmtTA
BEETADBENIRERAEERA
EEEENGBER 2 TMAL - REFH
TSN TERAERIEREEET
AR AR T IATERR -

BEARAIBEAREUE TADNERNE
RN EEANERNR - BE HE -
BOREHARBZBAEBEETAKT
ERERRARNER ST HEE -

B FIE

ERASEAREHSETESRARY
BERARDBEMNEFRLZ % - BEF
EREBEEHREREFIAZEEHF
sk E I (ER) B R AR e
F(BEERERANEAA SRS H 2 —
PYENRKERBRARFAEZE XHHA
REAMEESTTR) ENRERR ZERE
Bz HME-

MEBRXTIRERMEEERER -

3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly
in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
payables, deposits received, accruals and other
payables, bank borrowings, obligations under
finance leases, convertible bonds, amount
due to an associate and amount due to non-
controlling interests) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the bonds into equity, is included in
equity (convertible bonds reserve).
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Fff 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible
bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible bonds reserve will be transferred
to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible bonds reserve will be
released to the retained earnings/(accumulated
losses). No gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement upon conversion
or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in retained
earnings/(accumulated losses).
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(1)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in retained
earnings/(accumulated losses). A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at bank, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short
term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on disposal of the foreign operation.

111



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R AR A

H ¥ % Mt 5 Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

3. TEEHMERES) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

112

()

ShEE ()

RENGEPBREME - AEEEIIE
BREERRRERBREMRZERE
KMERAKEE 258 (VBT °
WARFRXIAR DRZFE 2 FIERG
B BRIFERNZHEA LR RERE
AERBERT HARKX S A ZEREX
BE - MEAZEAZRE (WA) DRE
2T A R RN s AFE R EE T
(RENIFEiER  ER) Rat -

BEHE-RSNIEBE (MHEAEER
BONEB 2 MR  HESRREHR
EBNEBHBAR 2EHE  HEPR
KREHREBIEHEHAZG EE KR
BRI E S MR E G REGIN E
BRABIZERFEN)  BARBEEA
FEHEZEEMREREARTZAAELE
BERENMDBERE AN, (REBR) -

(u)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollar) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of “exchange
reserve” (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to
retained earnings/(accumulated losses).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

v)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in
equity under the heading of “exchange reserve”.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position presented as “obligations
under finance leases”.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance costs and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance costs are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.
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3.

Fff 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received
to enter into operating leases, such incentives
are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Employee benefits
Bonuses

The Group recognises as a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and the
amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”), government-managed
retirement benefits schemes and state-managed
retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’

contributions to the scheme at 5%

contributions subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior
to 1st June 2012). The Group’s contributions to
the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested
in accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales.
Where employees leave the scheme prior to
the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to
reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in Macau are members of the
government-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the Macau government.
The subsidiaries are required to pay a monthly
fixed contribution to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the Macau
government is made the required contributions
under the schemes.
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(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specific percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the government of the
PRC is made the specified contributions under
the schemes.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligations in respect of long
service payment to its employees on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefits that the employees
have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods.

Share-based payment expenses

For grants of share options that are conditional
upon satisfying specified vesting conditions,
the fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant is recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with
a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of “share-based payment reserve”.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
the consolidated income statement such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share-based payment reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to retained earnings/(accumulated losses).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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x) ®EE) (x)  Provisions (Continued)
BETIEHRNRERNKRBTEEETRS Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
REEEZ&EGBHHE WA REBER the consideration required to settle the present
FzRERTHERE EBERETR obligation at the end of the reporting period,
REABAMECREREFER - HE taking into account the risks and uncertainties
AEAEMREREZHE(WEBRKH surrounding the obligation. When a provision
BEZZEEKN) - is measured using the cash flows estimated to

settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is material).
ERBREMT ZBOXEHLBENRE When some or all of the economic benefits
A e = WO MARETEEE required to settle a provision are expected to
ENkERFESEIEITETZE - A8 be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
EWHIBRRRBEE ° recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
(y) BEALRS (y) Related party transactions

AT IABRANEBZBEANLMH

(@) MEXLALBATER A%
ALTHZALZRGEZREKE

A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if

TYERAREBEGRIE that person:
(i) N 5 B BE B R ok 0 has control or joint control over the
[ 2 ) 4 Group;

(ii) HAEBREERTE N
1)

(i) ARAKEXAEEZEHR
AZIEERABZKE -

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key

management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the
other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close family members of a person are those

family members who may be expected to

influence, or to be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2

(aa)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised
as a provision.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Contingent liabilities and assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

Intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed for
impairment at the end of each reporting period or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the
asset is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. An estimation of the value in use
of the asset involves estimating the future cash flows
expected to arise from its continuing use and applying
the appropriate discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.

Trade receivables

The aging debt profile of trade receivables is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade receivable
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods
have been exceeded. However, from time to time,
the Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade receivable balances are
called into doubts, specific provisions for bad and
doubtful debts are made based on credit status of the
customers, the aging analysis of the trade receivable
balances and write-off history. Certain receivables may
be initially identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a subsequent
write-off of the related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the collectability of trade
receivables for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Assessment of economic useful lives of fixed assets
and intangible assets other than goodwill

Fixed assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill are depreciated or amortised over their
economic useful lives. The assessment of estimated
useful lives is a matter of judgement based on the
experience of the Group, taking into account factors
such as technological progress, changes in market
demand, expected usage and physical wear and tear.
Useful lives are periodically reviewed for continued
appropriateness. Due to long lives of assets, changes
to the estimates used can result in variations in their
carrying amounts.

Impairment of films in progress

The directors of the Company review films in progress
at the end of each reporting period, and identify the
slow-moving films in progress that is no longer suitable
for use in production. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such films in progress primarily
based on the latest available market prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the Group carries out
review on each film at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for any films in progress that
productions which no longer proceed.

Impairment of film rights

Impairment assessments on film rights are performed
at the end of each reporting period with reference
to both internal and external market information, for
example, sales forecast based on expected popularity
of the respective titles, the expected production, sales
and distribution costs to be reviewed to conclude
the sales, and the general economic condition of the
relevant markets. Changes in assumptions used in
this assessment, including the forecasted revenue,
may result in additional provision being made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining provision for taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises tax liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development classified as stock of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group’s properties under development, the Group
considers the current market environment and the
estimated market value (i.e. the estimated selling price
less estimated costs of selling expenses) less estimated
costs to completion of the properties. An allowance
is made if the estimated market value is less than the
carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
properties under development is less than expected as
a result of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
provision for impairment loss may result.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience on selling goods
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a
result of change in market condition. The directors of
the Company will re-assess the estimations at the end
of each reporting period.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

KEE
The Group
—E-——F —E——F
2012 2011
FET FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SREE Financial assets
BBERAANRNFEE Financial assets at
PR S RBEE FVTPL 30,189 50,797
B3 Elk skE Loans and receivables
(BiERE RIBTHER) (including cash and bank balances) 966,708 1,458,439
SEEE Financial liabilities
B AR Amortised cost 1,108,241 1,047,314
AKATF
The Company
—E-——F —EF——F
2012 2011
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
SREE Financial assets
Bk W s Loans and receivables
(BRERe RIRITEH) (including cash and bank balances) 2,079,323 2,083,755
ot = Financial liabilities
B SRR Amortised cost 593,619 404,411
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
held for trading investments, trade receivables,
other deposits, deposits for investment, amounts
due from associates, cash and bank balances,
bank borrowings, obligations under finance
leases, convertible bonds, trade payables,
deposits received, accruals and other payables,
amount due to an associate and amount due to
non-controlling interests. The Company’s major
financial instruments include amounts due from
subsidiaries, other deposits, amount due from
an associate, cash and bank balances, deposits
received, accruals and other payables, amounts
due to subsidiaries and convertible bonds.
Details of the financial instruments for both
the Group and the Company are disclosed in
respective notes to the financial statements. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
Macau, Netherlands and PRC and
majority of transactions are dominated
in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”), US dollar
("USD”"), Macau Pataca (“MOP”), Euro
("EUR”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The
Company operates in Hong Kong and
majority of transactions are dominated
in HKD, USD, EUR and RMB. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities, which are
denominated in a currency that is not the
functional currency of the Group and the
Company.

The Group and the Company are not
exposed to foreign exchange risk in
respect of HKD against the USD and MOP
as long as these currencies are pegged.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The transactions and monetary assets
in EUR and RMB is
minimal, the Group and the Company
consider there have no significant foreign
exchange risk in respect of EUR and
RMB.

denominated

The Group and the Company currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The
Group and the Company will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its equity investments
classified as held for trading investments
in financial assets at FVTPL which are
measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity securities
operating in acquisition, exploration and
development of mineral tenements in
Australia; exploitation, processing and
sales of mineral resources, including
copper, zinc and lead ore concentrates in
the PRC, provision of limousine rental and
airport shuttle bus services in Hong Kong
and the PRC; and investment in equity
securities. In addition, the Group will
consider hedging the risk exposure when
the need arise.
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HE-ZZ——F+=-H=+—HI5E For the year ended 31st December 2012

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure

to equity price risk at the end of each
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/
lower, the Group’s pre-tax profit for the
year ended 31st December 2012 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,509,000 (2011: HK$2,540,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in fair value
of financial assets classified as held for

trading.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate
risk relates primarily to variable rate
borrowings (see note 36 to the financial
statements for the details of bank
borrowings). The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
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Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each reporting
period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year
ended 31st December 2012 would
decrease/increase by approximately
HK$2,104,000 (2011: decrease/increase
by approximately HK$2,333,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable
rate of borrowings.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and cash and bank balances
and the Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and bank balances. At
31st December 2012, the Group’s and the
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
and the Company due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the statement
of financial position respectively.

As at 31st December 2012, the Group had
certain concentration of credit risk as 98% (2011:
94%) of the trade receivables of the Group
were due from 2 customers. Management of the
Company considered the credit risk is limited
since the Group only trade with customers
with an appropriate credit history and good
reputation. The management monitored the
financial background and creditability of those
debtors on an ongoing basis.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Company has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debtor at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

ANNUAL REPORT 4E$£ 2012



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R E AR A A

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

Z2-E——F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

B

5. ®®WMIEA(#E

(b)

TREREEEAREE(£)

EEmE(E)

AEBRARAREHRAS RIBTHEBRTFR
RERT REEBRTZHIT - ZFHETH
EXENERHEERAEERALAG;
FiRe kRS EEER ZEMWTEES
RERG - ARRZERESRHBELERY
SHRTZEETR  URAEAEEREAR
ARZE—ZF+_A=+—-HEKZE
——FF+-A-+HRAZZEERR
Hik o

AEERARRTEAMBEREE2ED
Bl AEEeHBEERAMEERZEE
R o

MBEEm R
AEBRARREABSEFRERE RS
HEEBE EEEANRERBRSRENR
REeREENABIIBERE  #Fit
EERBES -

EREREEERDESRAR - MART
EENHAREZ BB RBESR KL
BECTHNEEERUUMEN S
B BIEERSEMRTEERELETH

ANNUAL REPORT 4F#t 2012

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group and the Company deposited its cash
and bank balances with approved and reputable
banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks
may cause the Group’s and the Company’s
right with respect to cash and cash equivalents
held to be delayed or limited. Management of
the Company monitors the credit rating of these
banks on an ongoing basis, and considers that
the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to
credit risk as at 31st December 2012 and 31st
December 2011 were minimal.

The Group and the Company does not have
any other significant concentrations of credit
risk. The exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate cash and cash
equivalents, monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by management. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or
refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had banking facilities amounting to
HK$558,000,000 (2011: HK$563,000,000) which
were utilised to the extent of HK$526,929,000
(2011: HK$520,286,000).

The following table shows the details of
the Group’s and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group and the Company can be
required to pay.

Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in “on demand
or within 1 year” regardless of the probability
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, are as follows:
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5. %Eﬂl =1 (ggﬁ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREKREBEBEREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELERE (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
rEE The Group
R=B-Z#+ZB=t-H
At 31st December 2012
EPEN 33} BEfE
BRAZ -FR  ZEIFR LENE BEREHH &3t
On
demand or Total Total
Effective within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

TR TR TERL TER TERL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

FTEeRaR Non-derivative financial liabilities
RITEE Bank borrowings 2.28-3.50% 73,131 362,250 - 435,381 420,875
BEMERH Obligations under finance leases 5,00-5.99% 138 48 - 186 154
AARES Convertible bonds 8.837% - 371,386 - 371,386 341,231
EREMER Trade payables - 251,821 - - 251,821 251,821
BUEES - E:HBE  Deposits received, accruals and

REMBEMFA ofher payables - 73,729 - - 73,729 73,729
E-FEHEREFE  Amount due fo an associate - 20,279 - - 20,279 20,279
EfF2RESRE  Amount due to non-controlling

B interests - 152 - - 152 152
@z Total 419,250 733,684 - 1,152,934 1,108,241
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5. @EQI,E\ (ggﬁ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SRMEKREBEBEREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REBELERE (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
rE The Group
e
At 31st December 2011
BERAR RER KEE
ik —ER  ZERER RERE REREE: it
On
demand or Total Total
Effective within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cashflows amount
TARL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTESRAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
BOEE Bank borrowings 2.00-3.50% 68,780 414,000 - 482,780 466,674
BERERY Obligations under finance leases 5.00-5.99% 155 186 - 341 281
ERES Convertible bonds 8.837% - 369,161 - 369,161 339,187
EREMER Trade payables - 139,080 - - 139,080 139,080
BUEES - EEHBE  Deposits received, accruals and
REBEMFE ofher payables - 67,184 - - 67,184 67,184
E-FEHERE5E  Amount due to an associate - 34,906 - - 34,908 34,906
EfF2RELRE  Amount due to non-controlling
A interests - 2 - - 2 2
& Total 310,107 783,347 - 1,093,454 1,047,314
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5. ¢@MIAE(E 5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SREKREBEBEREEKE) (b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELERE (&) Liquidity risk (Continued)
¥ NN The Company
R=B-Z§+=B=+-8
At 31st December 2012
RERY 33}
ERA= R-%R ZZRER BENE REREAT REELH
On
demand Total Total
Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount

TR TR TER TER TER
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FTEeRAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
mhkES Convertible bonds 8.837% - 371,386 - 371,386 34,231
ENWERANE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 224517 - 224,517 224517
Bliks  JEFPEER  Deposits received, accruals and
At other payables - 27,871 - - 27,871 27,871
@ Total 21,87 595,903 - 623,774 593,619
RZE-——#tZA=t-H
At 31st December 2011
BER AR
BRAE R—ER  ZZERFR RENE BReREL  REESH
On
demand Total Total
Effective or within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cashflows amount
TERL TR TR TEL TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Hirrenak Non-derivative financial liabilities
TARES Convertible bonds 8.837% - 369,161 - 369,161 339,187
ERMBARFNE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 38,938 - 38,938 38,938
Bl - BHEER  Deposits received, accruals and
HtENTE other payables - 26,286 - - 26,286 26,286
@ Total 26,286 408,099 - 434,385 404,411
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5, ®®WMIEA(#E

(b)

()

TREREEHEAREE(E)

HEBELERE ()

REMEEB AN - HHREREIE
RZBITERFTARERSR —F A
BEBERN -R_E——F+-_A=1+—
B ZSROERZBRBBEASENS
5,946,000/ 7T (= Z — — 4 : 8,388,000
BT c BRI AEEZEATBEMRN -
KRR EETEERITBITHITERS
ZEBRERBINER - EFEE - IRIE
EntpanmE A ERAM 54
RITERENBEHEBAFANEE -
RER  KeRFSARBREREBHLE
3,482,000 7T (== — — 4 : 7,543,000
BT e

EMIACAFEE
TREENERABZATEETTRTI
BHEE

. BB REGRR R R AEBER
S EENSREERTRA
B - opl2EmamEERR
EREREEATER:

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or
within 1 year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. At 31st December 2012, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of those
bank borrowings amounted approximately to
HK$5,946,000 (2011: HK$8,388,000). Taking into
account the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank borrowings will be repaid within 5
years after the reporting period in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflow will amount
approximately to HK$3,482,000 (2011:
HK$7,543,000).

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;
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5. ﬁﬁﬂl =1 (HZ/E_ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) EMIBECAFEE(E) (c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

. THETEZRAFEBEDARER . the fair values of derivative instruments
BoMAMGSHEBERS  AIFEH are calculated using quoted prices.
BOTATENTEFH ZERK When such prices are not available,
HHMGETTRBES R M a discounted cash flow analysis is

HETET AN EEES performed using the applicable yield

ETHRBRERIN & curve for the duration of the instruments

for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives;

and
o HhemEERERABE(TRE . the fair values of other financial assets
FxmmE) 2 AFEEIREY and financial liabilities (excluding those
BEATERN (ERFTRALR described above) are determined in
DIT)ETE ° accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

AREIEERE SRHEENSREER The directors of the Company consider that
M mEABERZ RAERL QT EEM the carrying amounts of financial assets and
He financial liabilities recognised in the financial

statements approximate to their fair values.

TR EENTERRIE LT EENE The following table provides an analysis
ZEBMIASH ATEEDRELANE of financial instruments that are measured
RRE B RE—ZE=FH: subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,

grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value is observable:

o E-—ER - NFEEFEDNGE . Level 1: fair value measurements are
HAUBNEEXEELTRREMS those derived from quoted prices
ERBRZERCREHAE) (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

. E_ER LT BEFENSFE . Level 2: fair value measurements are
BRE-—SMBRENREN BE those derived from inputs other than
HBENTEE (AER) SEE quoted prices included within Level 1 that
(B EREEH) BRMSHAME are observable for asset or liability, either
)54 directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices); and
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

o Level 3: fair value measurements are

BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012
5. €@ IR (~&
(c) SMIAZAFEEE)
J FE-EH LT EEFENSFE
HEREN BELFREAHE

MEZEBEETNEEXREBEHA
B(TABREAE) °

those derived from valuation techniques
that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

E—%E; EER BE=ZHK @it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAET FHET FET FExT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
R=ZZF—=—f#+=-H=+—H At31st December 2012
FIFEERE Held for trading investments 30,189 - - 30,189
RZE——F+-F=+—H At31st December 2011
BFIEEERE Held for trading investments 50,797 - - 50,797

RAFERBEFE YEBEE SR
FE_ERRE SR EETEE -

(d EXxEE
AEEERHEER  UHERASEEZ EHE
BARERE  WEBBICEFRERG
BRABRREREADE - NBEFE - &
SEEERBESTE -

AREZEAGRBRERFE HER
RITEE REMEEBRUTERERR
ARNBHEAANRIEER  EBERARRE
e

AEEYL EEFMIPERER

138

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and
3 in the current and prior years.

(d) Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of net debts (which include bank borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and convertible
bonds) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising share capital and
reserves).

The Group is not subject to any external imposed
capital requirements.
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5. ¢®MIA(£ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d)y EBEXREE(E) (d)
BEGMELE
ARRIBERGEEEERMENER - (F
BUHEMHZ —Sh EFEREAKER
HEE[REREBZAR - REEBRIE
EEVHBEREZEBINRE - BITHR
MRBEBGURETHESLERRE
ERmMEPEEEEERLRE -

AEBEEABEERBLXTER
50% c RIMERRZBEEBBLEMT

Capital management (Continued)
Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on the recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends, issue of
new shares and repurchase of shares as well as
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratios at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

—ET——14F

2011

FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BEBR (K ) Total debt (see note i) 762,260 806,142

B Re RIBITA R Less: Cash and bank balances (578,863) (903,094)

&%,/ (Be) FHE Net debt/(cash) 183,397 (96,952)

RNATHER AEML Equity attributable to owners

e R (M) of the Company (see note ii) 1,587,401 1,968,592
i A

B FREERL X Net debt to equity ratio 12% N/A

BEBHEEREE Total debt to equity ratio 48% 41%

Hat - Notes:

(i) EHEOERITEE BREMERBR (i) Debt comprises bank borrowings, obligations
BB ES (BRAFBED &SR under finance leases and convertible bonds as
36~ 37}%38) ° detailed in notes 36, 37 and 38 respectively.

(if) ARAEBEABEERBERA R (ii) Equity attributable to owners of the Company

e
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TRER
AEBRBARRES (X RLEREE) (X
BREERRED BU BEETELEDE N
EENBRARDBRZERD B AR KR
)]'_‘io

ARBBELEATREDBAEREERYE
REXE BEYHERKEER BEFRTLEX
B MERBELEER URPEREEREE
REXB -ZENBNRBEARBEREEBA
BzER(BEERMEERE)ES -

ARBRATHEDBNHEETRAEREE 2 KK
EBEMN - mARBREBETATERBENR
BT 5 SRR - MR ORAERE

REREEBZRIEERMRBOT

B R R R TR P Bl R 0 0 5 1R £
REXRB BEREREEE S
EBRBRAABEY
HEEB
BYHRELEERE — RENBEBYHEE
EBWEUR R 2 %75
BEYRTRERT — HERETEFNER
EEBIA AR E A
B AR RS
MERBEEET — RERFHRUNRFIN
/ES
FRRRERKEE — HEPERHEGBE
REET Em RRE®R 2F

BRERTHEBRETE
78 0A K o 8 B AR AR 75

6.

ET——F+-A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision-
makers (the “CODM”), for the purpose of monitoring
segment performance and allocating resources
between segments and that are used to make strategic
decisions.

The Group has five reportable segments — hotel
and gaming service operations, gaming promotion
operations, film distribution operations, property
development operations and Chinese health products
sales operations. The segmentations are based on
the information about the operations of the Group that
management uses to make decisions.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed
separately because each business has different
markets and requires different marketing strategies.

The principal products and services of each of these
operations are as follows:

Provision of hotel services and
gaming operation services
and related gaming promotion
business in Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau

Hotel and gaming -
service operations

Gaming promotion -
operations

Investing in operations which
receive profit streams from
the gaming promotion
business

Production and distribution of
motion pictures and television
drama series and provision
of other film related services

Film distribution -
operations

Property development -
operations

Investing and development of
properties located in Macau

Sales of Chinese and other
medicines pharmaceutical
products, health products,
ginseng and dried seafood
products to wholesalers and
retailers as well as Chinese
clinical services

Chinese health -
products sales
operations
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6. ﬁﬁﬂ (H/\) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) REEEBR I BE I 2AEEARERER (a) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
i results by operating segments
PERE PEEE
Segment revenue Segment results
—E-Cf —2——F “E-CF 2
2012 2011 2012 2011
TET TET TER FTER
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEREYRELEEH Hotel and gaming service operations 1,316,553 998,027 192,827 107,143
BYRELEEH Gaming promotion operations 15,544 68,669 (9,022) (632,729)
EYRMTEERR Film distribution operations 683 1,602 (1,630) (16,037)
DEREEEER Property development operations - - (90) (33)
MEREEREE Chinese health products sales
BEEK operations 132,199 28,464 (968) (278)
1,464,979 1,096,762 181,117 (541,934)
PEEEERTAN Reconciliation from segment reslts to
WH/(BIB) Z8%E  profit/(loss) before tax
ROECERA Unallocated corporate income 3,801 5,824
K

SBAEEEEZE®  Loss arising on change in fair value
BEZLTEESE®Y  offinancial assets classified

FAEEZER as held for trading (16,260) (68,837)
AELERT Unallocated corporate expenses (74,667) (56,578)
BHAER/(BB)  Profit/(loss) before tax 93,991 (661,525)
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TREN(E)

(a)

(b)

BRREEXRI BRI 2FAEBMUERESR
DI (&)
EXMEHRZBEEREIEHERL 2K
& RMEFELEARHEE -

REXBOBZ G BREAREE 2 &5
BRMAR - DBREEEE N BERDER
HATHARA [ RO BREEMAXIAT 2
RERAK  BEBERRBRREGR
H% HIERERE [ ROEEEKRAIRT
i E e R AR AAR D B AR
FEEZEREEZ A VEELZSMES
ZEEATATRE, (FAdE) 2aFl,/ (&
B) - WARMEIBEERREERENSD
RERRFERBZTE

EREEBIRAD 2XEBHHERR
7

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments (Continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were
no inter-segment sales in both years.

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies. Segment results
represent the profit/(loss) earned/(suffered)
by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, partial finance costs, share
of losses of associates and share of losses of
jointly controlled entities under the heading of
“unallocated corporate expenses”, partial other
revenue and other income under the heading
of “unallocated corporate income” and loss
arising on change in fair value of financial
assets classified as held for trading. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance

assessment.

An analysis of the Group’s financial position
by operating segments

—B-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE ASSETS

DEEAE Segment assets
—BIEREBYREEEEFE - Hotel and gaming service operations 1,594,464 1,399,990
—BRERCEER — Gaming promotion operations 67,699 553,096
—BRBITKEER — Film distribution operations 35,187 36,410
—MERBEEE — Property development operations 573,608 550,312
—FBREEMEELEENS  — Chinese health products sales operations 107,696 89,430
DEEER Total segment assets 2,378,654 2,629,238
KD @Eﬁé Unallocated assets 401,952 778,302
2,780,606 3,407,540
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6. ;’Eﬁﬂ (H/\) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) REEERIBE I ZAEEHHEMNRR (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position
D (E) by operating segments (Continued)
—EB-CF —T——F
2012 2011
FTHET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
&8 LIABILITIES
NEaf Segment liabilities
—BEREBYRBEEER - Hotel and gaming service operations 665,547 600,686
—-BRHEBREEER — Gaming promotion operations 5 60
—BRBITKEET — Film distribution operations 7,478 7,511
—MERBEEE — Property development operations - -
—FEREEMBESLEER - Chinese health products sales operations 42,494 38,074
DEERER Total segment liabilities 715,524 646,331
Ko ET Unallocated liabilities 477,872 486,300
1,193,396 1,132,631
REESFERARESERIRERMS For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between
segments:
o EBEEEDNDRETATRES o all assets are allocated to reportable

MERHEE N AR RN LR segments, other than interests in
AgEz FheHre @A associates, interests in jointly controlled
NEREMERRE BHEEE entities, partial deposit paid, prepayments
RE BP0 R R R R ROE and other receivables, held for trading
EEFIE - BHES RIBTE investments, partial amounts due from
{’IE “:F?TEK}EHLZ*B{’;J\%% . il% associates, prepaid tax, partial cash and
RERAE LRGN bank balances, partial property, plant and

)Sz equipment and interests in leasehold land

for central administrative purposes; and

J FEaENIRTFATRESE o all liabilities are allocated to reportable
AR ES BHREHERE segments, other than convertible bonds,
HoBHEKIERS  EIFHEHE R partial obligations under finance leases,
HihERHE BEERBEAE - partial deposits received, accruals and
ERAFIE RN —EE R AR other payables, deferred tax liabilities, tax
TE RGP o payable and amount due to an associate.
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6. DEBR (& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) HthoBER (c)  Other segment information
AEREY iER £ UECH TEREER
e gz fgz8 fgzh f vl g2
Hotel and Gaming Property Chinese
gaming service promotion Film distribution development health products
operations operations operations operations sales operations Unallocated Consolidated

23-0F Py I-% “5f Ml -7 el -7 il -T-f M lmd -T-—&
2012 201 201 2011 2012 201 2012 201 2012 201 2012 201
47 AT Tir T TR A TAr BT T A TAT
HKS'000 [Rae3V)] HK$'000 HKS000 TN  HKS000 WGTEXIIN  HKS000 MLIEXIIN  HKS000 EIEXIIN  HK$000
EHEH  OTHER INFORMATION
SAHESE  Amounts included in
ZEI2E  the measurement of
BEJHE:  segment results
or segment assets:
EYERE  Amorisaton of fim ghts - - - - - 148 - - - - - - - 1441
BREE  Amorisaiion ofntanglble
assels - - - - - - - - 1,26 all - - 1,226 a7
EELMES  Amorisation of nterests
B i easehod end 2 0W - - - - - . - S e R 8
1% BER  Depreciaton of propery,
REFE  pantadequpment 93413 101,86 - - - - - BT ) 0 a0 195 G 10410
EETZIRE  Impaiment loss
ZBEZ recognised in respect
nEEE of fim rights - - - - 1,605 619 - - - - - - 1,605 619
EBSER  Impaimentloss
EZ2ERT  recogised i respect
AEEE  offimsinprogress - - - - ER 1] - - - - - - -5
EEESEN  mpaiment loss
SELEET  recogrised i respect
AEEE  oftade receivables - - - - 20 3 - - - - - - 0 k]
EBEVEE  Impaiment oss
BB recognised in respect
HEEE  of intangible assets - S W3 700085 - - - - - - - SWI 700085
HENE.  Loss on disposel of
BELZE  popery, plant and
g equipment 504 %7 - - - - - - 1 - 5 8 510 %%
FEERE  Addiions to non-current
ZE(£B  assels (other than
TERN)  dracdisumens 40 440 - - - - - P IRCY TR 1/ B X0 BV T Y
EHHTEEE Amounts regularly
RREREE  provided to the CODM
THAGE bt notincluded in
AEZED  the measurement of
AEEE  segmentresults or
ZHE: segment assets:
HARA5IER Inerests n oinly
b2 3 controlled enfes - - - - - - - - - - W ;6% 286X 6%
AEELA Inerestsin
LER associales - - - - - - - - - - 231 7917 231 1977
RELON Interests income 2147 102 9 - 1 7 132 - 13 4 3740 5750 7,005 6,783
HARK Finance costs 15,078 16,784 - - - - - - 465 8 30,046 14,586 45,589 31,456
FEIEREAS  Share of losses ofjointly
[EEEE  contolled enties - - - - - - - 7 - , 17 134 7 1304
BIEBERE Share of losses of
5 assQclates - - - - - - - - R B - 8 _ g
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁ*&l (/éé’f_ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) BREEXEEFEH (d) Information about major customers
RIBEFEERASE 2 RIHEE10% MU Revenue from customers of the corresponding
ErEPZW&EET years contributing over 10% of the total sales of

the Group is as follows:

—E-C=fF —E—-—F
2012 2011
FiT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

HIENRBERGEELER  Hotel and gaming service operations

EPH Customer A 999,336 867,536
TEA
BREL (M) Customer B (Note) 215,116 N/A
RZE——FR_E—F BEEHE No other customers contributed 10% or more to

FEBAEER ZWEm10%FK A L © the Group’s revenue for both 2012 and 2011.
Kzt : RBE-—ZEZE——F+-A=+—81 Note: Revenue derived from Customer B did not
FERN BELEHAZWHE I X & B contribute over 10% of the total sales of the
BEAEEBHEEE10% ° Group during the year ended 31st December

2011.

(e) HEEFR (e) Geographical information
AEEFRABIINEEEZRRTERGER The Group’s revenue from external customers
B IREER  MAEBZIEREBEE is mainly derived from its operations in Macau,
FEAREPT - and non-current assets of the Group are mainly

located in Macau.

ETFHEREED 2V UFTAARAEEEROM 2 & Certain comparative figures have been represented to
& o conform with the change of resources allocation in the
current year.
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7. TURNOVER

—E——F —F——%F
2012 2011
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BRBEITERA Film distribution fee income 683 1,602
IR &R A Hotel room income 94,436 64,955
R MRS Food and beverage sales 26,092 16,769
SEBBURLLEB ZRBWA  Service income from VIP gaming operations 184,330 307,178
FISEREEEBZ RBEEA Service income from mass table gaming
operations 798,755 548,390
BTFERBEEEBR ZREUKA  Service income from slot machine operations 16,251 11,968
B 185 E S MU A Receive profit streams from gaming
promotion business 15,544 68,669
BRHEESER Gaming promotion fees 196,689 48,767
FEREERZEE Sales of Chinese health products 132,199 28,464
1,464,979 1,096,762
H fth W #8 8. OTHER REVENUE
—®B—=fF —T——%F
2012 2011
FExT FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
RITH BUA Bank interest income 7,005 6,783
BEERA Management fee income 2,330 1,845
E A B R S U e Other ancillary hotel revenue 9,080 10,344
18,415 18,972
Emu&x 9. OTHER INCOME
—¥——F —F——fF
2012 2011
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HNHE g A% R Net foreign exchange gain 310 504
HAith Others 67 917
377 1,421
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10.

11.

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

Eﬂﬁﬁﬁl‘: 10. FINANCE COSTS
—B-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FEEZH - Interests on:
RITIEE-RAFA Bank borrowings-wholly repayable
THEERE within five years 15,507 16,843
BmEMEE Finance leases 32 31
AMRESFCHERNE Imputed interest on convertible bonds 30,044 14,582
H A 7 & B AR Other finance cost 6 -
45,589 31,456
%ﬁﬁﬁ;\%‘i*U/ (Eﬁjﬁ) 11. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

BBADER, (B8 EMBRTHSE :

charging:

R W 4 5
(BREHERAL)

THE £ b 25 18 55

BIVEEHH

T BT B

FERA (BREHEKA)

MR HERRENE

BERANRAX(ZHF15)
BRAEXREZE®ER
B & 1B
BRARETEZ ZCER
VEAI=N R
EHEFEURKEZ

E R RE R
EHEBEVEEZCHR
B E B

HEME  HERREER

HEDHAREERZ
EMEEZER

DEAKFEEEZEREEL
ANVPEEESAELZEBE

FRYEZKEANAES
(ZH17F43)

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales)
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Amortisation of intangible assets
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories (included in cost of sales)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Employee benefit expenses (see note 15)
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of film rights
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of films in progress
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of financial assets
classified as held for trading
Loss arising on change in fair value of
financial assets classified as
held for trading
Operating lease rental in respect
of premises (see note 43)

Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived at after

—E——fF —T——F
2012 2011
FERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
- 1,441
22,867 22,866
1,226 217
1,216 1,190
93,659 25,682
96,558 104,100
145,682 109,123
1,605 619
- 15,928
200 394
24,327 700,085
510 265
328 2,490
15,932 66,347
16,255 6,366
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148

EREMNGHEMBAFEZBAERTENZ
16.5%=T & o 1 BB B 2 7] B M1 F fZ 1225% 5
WP E R ERER o RPN B A R WA F E &
12% @ RFIFT SRR - Etb el ZREEED
BIERABERERER 2 RITHEHE -

RRARRREMBARLEEFAREEEZE
SR M 3K % B R B A B 2 BT AR At
MEBE WA ERLMEE 2 BBNERIEL
B

HRAARRIREKBRRL AR EELERR
B ARYERABRE-_E——-—F+-A=+—
HIEFEREHFPBECEMSRHEE -

12. ﬁ,lﬁ 12. TAXATION
—F-=F —T——%
2012 2011
FHERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BHEEROT : The taxation credit is as follows:
NEAFIIE ¢ Current tax:
RIS AT Macau Complementary Tax 4) (4)
FEI RSN PRC Enterprise Income Tax - (3)
(4) (7)
BT FEBRBEEE - Over provision in prior year:
H b El AR Other jurisdictions - 62
- 62
RIETIIE (R M5739) Deferred tax (see note 39):
KEE Current year 539 7,364
REEMBEE RREE Total taxation credit for the year 535 7,419

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. PRC
subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for both years. Macau subsidiaries are subject
to Macau Complementary Tax at 12% for both years.
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Company and its subsidiaries
have no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or
taxable profits were wholly absorbed by estimated tax
losses brought forward.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made for the year ended 31st December 2012 as the
Company and its subsidiaries have no assessable
profits arising in PRC.
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ERARGEARARABRBIEN, (Bi8) &

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFJE For the year ended 31st December 2012

12. TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the

BReHMIEHREWNT - profit/(loss) per the consolidated income statement as
follows:
—_EBE-_—F —E——fF
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BRELADE R (BE) Profit/(loss) before tax 93,991 (661,525)
BREBNEH E16.5%1 1 Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
—E——F :16.5%) of 16.5% (2011:16.5%) (15,509) 109,152
MBreE Tax effect of:
FE(RESE & N R E 1R Share of losses of associates - 1
JE A 3 [R] 422 1 4B B8 5 98 Share of losses of jointly controlled entities 3 222
T ERTLA Income not taxable for tax purpose 36,280 21,401
R Expenses not deductible for tax purpose (14,268) (131,354)
RER A RIEEE Estimated tax losses not recognised (10,075) (5,353)
WERERZ AR Utilisation of tax losses previously
HIEEE not recognised 3,196 9,635
REBFIFSHTN Exemption for tax liabilities in Macau
HEBE Complementary Tax 64 64
EEMENERREE 2 Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating
M B AR 2 NRF =R in other jurisdictions 844 3,651
FARBEER Taxation credit for the year 535 7,419
149
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13.

14.

Hﬁ%\ };ﬁ ﬁ})‘)ﬁ 13. DIVIDEND AND DISTRIBUTION
—F-=F —T——%
2012 2011
FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
’E Dividend
FAREMEKRE : Dividend paid during the year:
RZE——FENFZ2HRRE Special dividend paid in 2011
—1,964,721,1608 & 15 - HK 3.3 cents per share on
T A%3.37% 1L 1,964,721,160 shares - 64,836

WoB-—FR-F——FEERNREEET
RIS - B R RN S BRI
e

o

7K

RBEMRE EFTEEZEARAZHAARR
RIELFER 2K ER4ABI  XAFRRAERR
ARBITRABRZBRFIAEG LHER 77
fFE -

BREF(BE)
ERREEABESRERRBHET, (58)
TR TS

14.

No final dividend was paid or proposed during 2012
and 2011, nor has any dividend been proposed by the
Board subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

Distribution

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Board proposed a special distribution to be made out
of the contributed surplus account of the Company of
HK4 cents per share and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at a special general meeting to be held
and convened by the Company.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The computations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share attributable to owners of the Company are
based on the following data:

—E——F T ——%F
2012 2011
FTHExT F#&IT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BF, (B#E) Earnings/(loss)
TESREAREERF Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic
(E1B) 2R REHEB A and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
EEEE T, (EE) (profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
owners of the Company) 53,360 (683,234)
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sREN (BB (&

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)
—ET——4F
2011
F &
'000
(&=:51)
(Restated)

R % & E

Number of shares

AEEREAREERTF (FIE) Weighted average number of ordinary

Z I 1 E B R R B

diluted earnings/(loss) per share

AEEREAREERT (BR) HKEARLQE
BEANERGFERT/ (BE) RAESRELRK
BERN(BR) ZNETHEBREE &5
BEURRARRIREABZZE  EESN_F
—ZHETZARNEEREA -BRAARNEIREAM
RAFMBGD KRR ZFE—=F—ANH K (KX
AR -

T EREAREERN, (BR)ARAzAE
TR

AEEREERNT ABRREBLADEZHA
TEABREES ARSZERESIFBE=T
——HE+t A=t -BLFEZEREAEM-

AEEREEEBIABRSBRRTEARAZ
WARITEATRRES RRREE (RIBREF R
1056) RABRFzEBRETERSIBHEZ
——F+-A=t+-BULEFEZEREERD -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

shares for the purpose of basic and

5,815,724

3,701,305

The computations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share are based on the earnings/(loss) for the
year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
as adjusted to reflect the effect of bonus issue for the
issue of bonus shares by the Company on the basis
of two bonus share for every one existing share held
on 6th December 2012 and completed on 9th January
2013 (the “Bonus Issue”).

The denominators used are same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible bonds since their conversion would result in
increase in earnings per share for the year ended 31st
December 2012.

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion and exercise of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and warrants (warrant
code: 1056) since their conversion and exercise would
result in decrease in loss per share for the year ended
31st December 2011.
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14.

15.

Q&E*U/ (Eﬂﬁ) (/ggﬁ 14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)
AEERBEERY ABRITEARRZBRE The computation of diluted loss per share does not
B (RBREEZER :972) - TERKREE 2RE assume the exercise of the Company’s warrants
BRRBEE_Z——F+T_A=T—HLEFER (warrant code: 972) because the subscription price
NERMD 2 FEmE - of warrants was higher than the average market price
of the Company’s shares for the year ended 31st
December 2011.
SEEREEARN (BB TARBRITEAD The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share
AzERE DEBREZTEESREZE does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share
-+ -_A=+-—-BER-Z—%+_-H options because the exercise prices of share options
=S+—HALEFEARBRGZFHIME - were higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares for the years ended 31st December
2012 and 31st December 2011.
EEE*U 5 jz 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—E——fF —T——%F
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BEEH S MHEMER Directors’ salaries and other allowances 10,940 9,720
BEEHe Directors’ fees 360 393
e Rk EAMER, Salaries and other allowances 114,424 84,074
RERB & (ZHiF41) Long service payment (see note 41) 392 -
RARAE T FT & Retirement benefits scheme contributions 2,434 1,205
EERAMFAX Staff welfare expenses 17,132 13,731
145,682 109,123
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15. EEE*U F';ﬁ 3'2 (,.f/gﬁ 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(a) EEMe (a) Directors’ emoluments
ARBEFEEIH=-%(ZE——%F: The Company's board of directors is currently
ME) BUERTESTR =R (ZF—— composed of three (2011: four) independent
F:ZR)PTEFHEK - non-executive directors and three (2011: three)

executive directors.

BESEARIEL FE1616HE 2 = =1 The directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant
a1 to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:

Espe e HeRHMEN RIEA MR E3
Salaries and Retirement benefits
Name of director Fees other allowances scheme contributions Total
I EaEl CTF FF FF
2011 2012 2011 2011 2011
Tt T T T T

HK$'000 EGICIUON  HKS'000 [GTSIIO HKS000  ERLLGHIIE  HK$'000

WnEs Exective directors
MESRLE Mr. Heung Wah Keung - - 5,140 4570 14 12 5,154 4582
BEELT Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany - - 4,860 4310 14 12 4,874 432
EIR%L Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 940 840 14 12 954 852
BUinmgs Independent

non-exective directors
EAEEE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - - - 120 120
fIgEEE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - - - 120 120
BEMRE(EHET)  Mr. Tang Chak Lam,

Gilbert (see note 1) 120 73 - - - - 120 73
REXRE(EH#2) Wr. Leung Hok Man (see note 2) - 80 - - - - - 80

360 393 10,940 9,720 42 36 11,342 10,149
et - Notes:
1. BEMEER_T——FRAZ-+THE 1. Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert was appointed as
HEZEABUIRITES - independent non-executive director on 24th May 2011.
2. REXGER T ——FNLA—HE 2. Mr. Leung Hok Man was resigned as independent non-
EBLIENITES - executive director on 1st September 2011.

FA-AEEBERNARAAEEINNE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
EBMARE B 3N ER 2 RE) ok KB to the directors of the Company as an inducement to
L2 - R ENMEFEHBERNATE join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
EREETMIME o loss of office. None of the directors of the Company has

waived any emoluments in both years.
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ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o R KE AR

15. EEE*U 5| b3 (/ﬁg‘ 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(b) EEERSEMAL (b) Five highest paid individuals
AEERENTRELESEMZ ALaE The five individuals whose emoluments were
MG (—E—— & ML) ALTES . the highest in the Group for the year include
H 5 H3210,028,0008 T (- T — —4F two (2011: two) directors of the Company
8,904,000/% 7) + I B 3 - X K £5(a)Fl whose emoluments are reflected in note (a)
R - RAEERERNES=AL (- above and amounted to HK$10,028,000 (2011:
——E =R TBemnT HK$8,904,000). The emoluments payable to the

remaining three individuals (2011: three) during
the year were as follow:

—E——fF —T——F

2012 2011

TERT FET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

ok EAER, Salaries and other allowances 6,700 5,820

RORAE FFT B K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 28 24

6,728 5,844

—HZ(ZE——F =) Ba¥FHA+ The three (2011: three) individuals include one

BHE—Z(ZE——F: —Z)R[EER (2011: one) senior management as disclosed

EREBAEEN | —FREZERERE in the section “Profiles of Directors and Senior
AB o Management”.

HB=ZZ(-E——F: Z82) 855 The aggregated emoluments of each of these

EEBU HMeLBEBENT remaining three (2011: three) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals

—E——F

2011

1,000,000/ 7t £ 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1 1

1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1

2,500,0017% 7Tt £3,000,000% 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - 1

3,000,001/ 7T £3,500,0007% 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 -

3 3
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16. R IKE 75 &

(a)

REBRE R ERABESFENED 2 A
EBOAEEMERERER Y BRE ST
g VYR -_ZEEFF A —HAKRLTE
HPHRKReETE ([EEHE]) - AEEFAT
EEBREHASMEBESE - A5H
EEEREEITHIET  BEEKES
BREBWRAZSRER  EEAKAL
IR A/ATE 2250008 L (ZE—=—F <A
— H AT /£20,000% 7T) ° AR E AR
BAEBARINR - EENA E RS HR
ERATBRTASEE AW RNEEZERE
"Rz BB (BEEFEER I EE)
BEBAER - AESHECEERAE
BEvEEL HRBE YH-EBUERHE
TEA -

AREZMEBRRNRFIFAEHFRER AR
FI4F IR BRI A8 R S B IBUR & I 2 R IKAR
FEHEIKE - ZEFMBRARAS AMEIK
BB XN —HEREN - B AEF
BE - REEBRFIR R R E B2 RIK
BRI BT AN —EETMZ ST EES
PRAESR « HRTIRER A WA R AT

AEBZMBARRTEMEFRE AT
BT A& i 3t BB R E IR 2 R M
KB  ZEMBARARFMAS A
TEALERKRENEBHER - AEE
RREBA S RNEN A&
ETmZEF B AAMRK - HHRTIR
RalAKRAIIX -

FR - AEBEKREMNGEEIRE LK
HHREA T (ZF——F : 390,000/ 7T)
1 2 FE X B2 4340008 L (& ——
F 1 962,000 7T) °
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16.
(a)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates MPF Scheme under rules
and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all its employees
in Hong Kong and terminated the defined
contribution pension scheme (“Old Scheme”)
on 1st December 2000. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the
MPF Scheme. The Group has chosen to follow
the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the mandatory cap of
HK$25,000 ($20,000 prior to 1st June 2012). The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements as incurred. In respect of
those employees who leave the Group prior
to completion of qualifying service period, the
relevant portion of the employer’'s voluntary
contributions forfeited (represents the assets
transferred from the Old Scheme) will be
reverted to the Group. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administrative fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in Macau are members of the government-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the Macau government. The subsidiaries
are required to pay a monthly fixed contribution
to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the Macau Government is made the
required contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the government of
the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the government of the PRC is made the
specified contributions under the schemes. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statements.

During the year, retirement benefits schemes
contributions of the Group net of forfeited
contributions of nil (2011: HK$390,000)
amounted to approximately HK$2,434,000 (2011:
HK$962,000).
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17. %% N %%&%ﬁﬁ 17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
HENE B
BF #E  HERRE AE ok
Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
FHL THEL THL THL THL
r5E The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
KA Cost
RZE——F—-f—H At 1st January 2011 289,784 298,796 268,297 3,493 860,370
AE Additions - 4872 3,412 2,343 10,627
BREBEH NS Acquisition through business
(ZH##42) combination (see note 42) - 912 1,061 - 1,973
ERARENE Transfer from investment
(Zi19) property (see note 19) 8,086 - - - 8,086
& Disposals - (103) (767) - (870)
RZE——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2011 and
kZZ——F—H—H at 1st January 2012 297,870 304,477 272,003 5,836 880,186
AE Additions - 1,084 4,552 800 6,436
HE Disposals - (384) (1,898) - (2,282)
WZZ—ZF+ZA=1+—H At 31st December 2012 297,870 305,177 274,657 6,636 884,340
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
WNZ_F——F—-H—-H At 1st January 2011 14,754 53,604 67,223 3,408 138,989
FRHE Charge for the year 11,664 39,501 52,518 417 104,100
I E R i Eliminated on disposals - (20) (585) - (605)

WZZ——F+-FA=1+—H At 31st December 2011 and

k-E--—£-f-A1 at 1st January 2012 26,418 93,085 119,156 3,825 242 484
FAKE Charge for the year 11,664 39,743 44,554 597 96,558
HEREE Eliminated on disposals - (315) (1,449) - (1,764)
WZZ——F+-FA=+—H At 31st December 2012 38,082 132,513 162,261 4,422 337,278

REE Carrying amounts
R=ZZF-—F+=-A=+—H8 At 31st December 2012 259,788 172,664 112,396 2,214 547,062
WZZE——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2011 271,452 211,392 152,847 2,011 637,702
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17. ¥ HMBRREZ

R-BE-——F+-A=+—R BFERHEEH
252,097,000 7T (ZF ——% : 263,147,000/
L) EEREAREMRE - RRITERZER (R

B R R MI5E36) o

W-E-——F+-"A=+—-8B KM £BK
REFAEREREREBANBEZEEY
168,000/ 7T (=& — — 4 : 326,000/ 7T) (R Bf

TEMERMFEI7) ©

18. HELHER

B} % #t % B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
At 31st December 2012, buildings with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$252,097,000 (2011:
HK$263,147,000) have been pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 36 to
the financial statements).

At 31st December 2012, the carrying amounts of
furniture, fixtures and equipment includes an amount
of approximately HK$168,000 (2011: HK$326,000) in
respect of assets held under finance leases (see note
37 to the financial statements).

18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND

AR
R—A—8
EBREREME
(ZHi#19)

m+—-—A=+—8
REEE
w—A—H

FE R

nt+—A=+—8

BREE
m+—-—A=+—8
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The Group
—E——fF —T——fF
2012 2011
Fhx TR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Cost
At 1st January 587,469 521,975
Transfer from investment property

(see note 19) - 65,494
At 31st December 587,469 587,469

Accumulated amortisation

At 1st January 80,110 57,244
Charge for the year 22,867 22,866
At 31st December 102,977 80,110

Carrying amounts
At 31st December 484,492 507,359
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18. *ﬂgiﬂﬂ*&ﬁ (/f/éﬁ 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
(Continued)
XA E R EEESE The carrying amounts of interests in leasehold land

shown above comprise:

rEE
The Group
—E——F —E——fF
2012 2011
THET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BEPHEORE ZEE LM Land in Hong Kong, held under
medium-term leases 64,653 66,527

REFEBEOFE R i Land in Macau, held under

medium-term leases 419,839 440,832

484,492 507,359

RZE——F+-A=+—HB HEL#E At 31st December 2012, interests in leasehold land with
% AR E B £9419,839,0008 T (=T — — & - carrying amounts of approximately HK$419,839,000
440,832,000/ 70) BRIFIE AR K BT E— KRR (2011: HK$440,832,000) have been pledged to secure
TERZER (BB BHREMESE) general banking facilities granted to the Group (see

note 36 to the financial statements).

19. BREYFE 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
rEH
The Group
—B-C=fF —E——F
2012 2011
FTExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
w—HA—H At 1st January - 73,580
BRI EERRE Transfer to property, plant and
(ZHiF17) equipment (see note 17) - (8,086)
BREHETMES Transfer to interests in leasehold land
(ZH7#18) (see note 18) - (65,494)
mn+=ZA=+—H At 31st December - -
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19. ]:Qﬁ%% (HZE_ 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)
NR-ZTE——%F—F—H - #73,580,000/ T 2% At 1st January 2011, an investment property of
BYEREATEEEREZHELHRET 1 HK$73,580,000 was transferred to leasehold land
BEBUSEREXAERMTEFTGHEERABR and buildings at its fair value, which was determined
EBREAETIHERE - on the basis of a valuation carried out by Grant

Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuers, as at the date of transfer.

20. }‘J'/\\\WE //:\\E_Mgﬁ_é 20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

b /N

The Company
—E——&F —E——%F
2012 2011
FERT Fi&T
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
LMD EHXAE Unlisted shares, at cost 1,028,888 1,028,888
ERRAZRERBE Impairment loss recognised (961,892) (30,299)
66,996 998,589
NG E R Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,392,075 2,490,800
ERRZRERBE Impairment loss recognised (1,180,095) (1,215,586)
1,211,980 1,275,214
1,278,976 2,273,803

Best Mind International Inc. (AR Rz 2 &M E
DR D EN AR — IR EEBHMEL
WEHREEE RN ERN BHE_T—_F+_=
A=T—HLFE AAREFERNBERE -
EEEHMSERNEBHRE THRRRTEER
ERAZATWNEGRE AR NIRESHESIRE
EREBYMSRFBRR ML EEEHEYME
EZREBBRERD - BRZEE RIE
N E 2% & BRTE B #)931,359,000/4 L E R 1E ©
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Best Mind International Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, has rights in sharing of profit streams
from gaming promotion business generated from a
casino VIP room located in Macau. During the year
ended 31st December 2012, the directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amounts of cost of
investment based on past performance, management’s
expectation for market development and certain key
assumptions. There were substantial drop in rolling
turnover derived from the VIP gambling due to the
intense competition in the VIP gambling market
since the opening of new casinos. Based on these
assessments, the carrying amount of approximately
HK$931,359,000 of investment in subsidiaries was
impaired.
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20.

FAM B A R (42

Turbo International Company Limited (A2 &2
MBARRESHEREER (EERFHTER
BER) BEEELEE RBEE-_Z——-F1+=
A=T—HILFE RAREEFREBTERR -
EEEHMSER ERRETEFERETHE
BRAZAIREI &5  RIEZZNE RIEL
7] 2 % & BRH B £9234,000% 7Ty B EURE ©

AR EE 2B KK B AT HKIELY
2,392,075,000/% 7T (ZZ——4% : 2,490,800,000
7S 7r) (FOBRIEE 491,180,095,0008 L (= F ——
F :1,215,586,000/8 L)) * B L~ EIEF LT
e E R

FARBEECERMBLARREAREERR 2
B mERgmE -

EANMBARRADSEER R NEEEE
B

RZE—ZFRZT——F ADRRESLERE
MEARZBFEN BeRRR - MR-
TEEA RSB R ROoR RAT S & T R B R R
BrzApke®E RT——F+-_A=+—8"
WIBZ S BAE-SIEHREBERBE K=
Z——F+-A=+—H ARRESRACHE
78 IR E °

ARRARZE—=—F+=-_A=+—BR=ZZF——
F+-_A=Z+—BzZHBRAFEBHERUBRE
GEZER

20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Turbo International Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, which engaged in distribution of TV
drama series, has already suspended to distribute of
TV drama series and remained inactive. During the
year ended 31st December 2012, the directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amount of cost of
investment based on past performance, management’s
expectation for market development and certain key
assumptions. Based on these assessments, the carrying
amount of approximately HK$234,000 of investment in
subsidiaries was fully impaired.

Amounts due from subsidiaries of approximately
HK$2,392,075,000 (2011: HK$2,490,800,000), net of
impairment of approximately HK$1,180,095,000 (2011:
HK$1,215,586,000) included in non-current assets are
interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed recoverable
terms.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in current
assets are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on
demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

In 2012 and 2011, the directors of the Company
assessed the recoverable amounts of the amounts
due from subsidiaries after considering profitability,
cash flow position, financial position, forecast
business development and future prospects of the
subsidiaries. At 31st December 2012, based on these
assessments, no further impairment loss was required.
At 31st December 2011, the directors of the Company
considered sufficient impairment have been made.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31st

December 2012 and 31st December 2011 are set out in
note 49 to the financial statements.
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21. ﬁ% 21. GOODWILL
rEH
The Group
—=E——F %
2012 2011
FERT FiET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
2% Cost
Hn—HA—H At 1st January 120,708 117,678
AxEBattmEE Arising on business combination
(2 H1at42) (see note 42) - 3,030
Rt+-—A=+—H At 31st December 120,708 120,708
23R E Accumulated impairment
R—A—B Kk At 1st January and
R+ZA=+—8 at 31st December 117,678 117,678
REE Carrying amounts
w+=ZA=+—H~ At 31st December 3,030 3,030
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21, BB (&
BERENR

BAREBEN  PEERELEU([REE
AEMDAEZHEREENT

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amounts of goodwill were allocated to groups of cash-
generating units (“CGUs”") as follows:

TEE

The Group
—E——fF —T——%F
2012 2011
FExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
$HE P BRI E M@ Sales of Chinese health products 3,030 3,030

SRR BB E B Rights in sharing of profit streams for

i A2 R the gaming promotion business 8,975 8,975
BERIE Film production 108,703 108,703
120,708 120,708

HEMRBEEREENBRRFRE) 2 EER

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated

SEEBEMMAT ¢ impairment) at the end of the reporting period were
allocated to CGUs as follows:
rEHE

The Group
—B-C=F —Z——%F
2012 2011
FTExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HERBRREE R Sales of Chinese health products 3,030 3,030

Dh R BB E XS Rights in sharing of profit streams for

i A 2 BT the gaming promotion business - -
B RUE Film production - -
3,030 3,030

HEEREREBEMZRCELEBUMAEZ AHE
B—E——Ft+A-t+LtHBEBAHELE (R
IR R M RE42) o
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Goodwill associated with the CGU of sales of Chinese
health products arose on 27th October 2011 from
business combination (see note 42 to the financial
statements).
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21.

ﬁ']_ = (/'E

BMERENR (F)
RZE——F+_A=+—AHARZE—F+=
B=+—8 &2 Té%“%éﬁi BIREER

21.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

At 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011, the
directors of the Company assessed the recoverable

EMPETIEERARET ZEENGHEEPE amount of the CGU of sales of Chinese health
1%1LFDDZEE%E$ Sz AU E € 58 - RN products with reference to the valuation performed

MEFRTEARHEETRAREERZRESES
BAORERBRE -

HEFRBERBEMZACELABMAIKEEET
BRECREBENELAET R EEFERLER
EHAZ AFHRFRBEEAEE RS REN
LA&¢1613%(:§——¢3¢1653%)2
WIRERAE  AFUEZBERNMERTFE3% (=
T——F GE3%)HHEEEREAEELE %

by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuers, and determined that no
impairment loss associated with the CGU of sales of
Chinese health products was recognised for both years.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of sales of
Chinese health products has been determined based
on a value in use calculation, which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and

discount rate of 16.13% per annum (2011: 16.53% per

MERDIBEBEESERTER X &EBHE annum) and cash flows beyond that five-year period
BEXTHRMERE -FHEBEAEECEE are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate per
BRBEBESTRA RHLE AR BIEEEHEE annum (2011: 3% per annum). This growth rate is

BMREAN ZMAFHREECZBERRARER
BRpmissR BN - EREMRE TWZSH
F (e G EERZERE) 2 TAA R e
B FEREEFRRRERREGEFEN 242
FHEBRHETFERRERBSELSEM 2T
U [B] 48 5 o
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based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Key assumptions for the value
in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's
past performance and management’'s expectations
for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the
CGU of sales of Chinese health products to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU of sales of
Chinese health products.
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292. ,ﬂ\E\}BﬁE 22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
DERF 2 R [:L: EFB&Z @t
Rights in
sharing of Customers
profit streams  Trademarks relationship Total
TET FET FET FEx
REE The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ﬁJZZF Cost
—E——%—f—H At 1st January 2011 989,205 - - 989,205
I%ﬁ%é\fﬁfﬁéi Arising on business
(ZhHiiF42) combinations (see note 42) - 7,345 2,454 9,799
RZZ——F+-A=t—H" At 31st December 2011,
RZZE-——F—-—A—-HkK at 1st January 2012 and
RZE-—_F+_A=+—H at 31st December 2012 989,205 7,345 2,454 999,004
R BHERAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
—T——%—-A—H At 1st January 2011 197,973 - - 197,973
ﬁmiﬂ Charge for the year - 130 87 217
BHRRZREERE Impairment loss recognised 700,085 - - 700,085
T——E‘I' A=+—H At 31st December 2011
—T-—%—-A—H and at 1st January 2012 898,058 130 87 898,275
FRZHE Charge for the year - 735 491 1,226
BHRRZREERE Impairment loss recognised 24,327 - - 24 327
——%+=-RA=+—H At 31st December 2012 922,385 865 578 923,828
REE Carrying amounts
R-ZE--f+=-B=+—H At 31st December 2012 66,820 6,480 1,876 75,176
—E——%+-A=+—H At 31st December 2011 91,147 7,215 2,367 100,729
RAEERCAFEH DGR 2 ERIN - B Other than the rights in sharing of profit streams,
BEREGEERTIIEIREE which has indefinite useful lives, intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
periods:
5L 10 Trademarks 10 years
BEPBF 5% Customers relationship 5 years
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BIEE (&)
FBEZ CAEEREPHED AR B ——4F
S5 612 — W1 (RM IS HRAN E42) ©

EREEAFHZ2EVEEZRENR

SUREARME - D5 N Z MR U 2 B
ERHA B FMETNEERS RS EL B -

BEREMEEN RN 2 EREER B IR
— RS EEREEZ0.4% R EHB 2 EH -
BHREREERXRNRAREE) K-

B 2 EAERZ B RN AR IRE R
PFIBRGFEE - ARREFERR AEEKY
BRENFEEEBY TN ARRE - Bt - A2 7
EERRENEENZENBBZEE RN AR
REREERFYH FEBRAKERPERNRS
MAFE - BomEN 2 ENBRZEERNA
BB SR EERTEERFHMARSBL -
EEgFETRENN  BEHBRTRE B
B T LARUE -

RZB-—"H+-A=+—H FRAEFEZ
ZBUAERBEMLEMPEFEHERDAME
HzmESRS ERBERRESRE N EFGHR
BEBNARKRBHED BB ZEN) FF - ET
BEZUKREEE VETEABZETVEER
6 4924,327,000% 7T (= Z —— 4 : 700,085,000
BT
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22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above trademarks and customers relationship are
purchases as part of a business combination in 2011
(see note 42 to the financial statements).

Impairment testing of intangible asset with indefinite
useful life

For the purpose of impairment testing, rights in sharing
of profit streams are allocated at acquisition to the CGU
that are expected to benefit from such intangible asset.

The intangible asset associated with the rights in
sharing of profit streams from the gaming promotion
business represented the rights in sharing of 0.4%
of rolling turnover generated from a casino VIP room
located in Macau for an indefinite period of time. Such
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment, if any.

The junket licences associated with the rights in
sharing of the profit streams is renewable annually by
the Macau government. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group would renew the
junket licences continuously and has the ability to do
so. Therefore, the directors of the Company consider
that the junket licences associated will the rights in
sharing of the profit streams have an indefinite useful
life because it is expected to contribute to net cash
inflow indefinitely. The junket licences associated with
the rights in sharing of the profit streams with not be
amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.

As at 31st December 2012, the directors of the
Company have assessed the recoverable amount of
intangible asset by reference to the valuation report
issued by Grant Sherman Apprasial Limited, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers, which
valued the rights in sharing of profit streams pursuant
to the respective junket representative agreement using
the discounted cash flow method and determined that
intangible asset associated with it was impaired by
approximately HK$24,327,000 (2011: HK$700,085,000).

165



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

o RS A R A F

BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

22,

mEEE(#&
DEREBREEESEN 2N BEELS
fLzaEl & BHREERAEA}EELET %
HEAFECERERAZ TRV HAEEAE
EZReREA - UREBF19.79% (ZT——%F:
BF20.83%) 2TREXFE  AFUELEZRER
RREFENERSRREEHAEE - ZER
EDREEHEELLEREN  BYEBEABE
EFPHRMEREX - FHABEAEEZEZERS
BBSRA/ MLET AR BEEANE R
ERTBE  ZEFTDERBEBTERRERER
MSER2EDR - ERERE  TAZERRE (A
WESHEERZERR) 2ERNAETEEET
TERDMREEHEEES AN 2 EF 2R E
EEENZBERERBS L REBYHEREER
B 2NN S EEEMN 2 A REASEE -

BE-_Z——F+-A=+—ALFE %EH
DA R M 2 R TR 2 R 518 £ /24,327,000
B (ZZF ——4% 700,085,000 L) + £ Bk
BUTHEE:

. MRNTIRESHE I HEERIEYTIHE M
REE R

. BEEEBYEL ZRABHBIR -

NERREEBERRSREET -

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the rights
in sharing of profit streams from gaming promotion
business has been determined based on value in use
calculation, which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period and discount rate of 19.79% per
annum (2011: 20.83% per annum) and cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
a zero growth rate for both years. This growth rate
is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Key assumptions for
the value in use calculations relate to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which include gross margin,
growth and discount rate, such estimation is based
on past experience and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of
the CGU of the rights in sharing of profit streams from
gaming promotion business to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the CGU of the rights in sharing
of profit streams from gaming promotion business.

For the year ended 31st December 2012, impairment
loss recognised in respect of rights in sharing of profit
streams amounted to approximately HK$24,327,000
(2011: HK$700,085,000) was mainly attributable to the
following factors:

° intense competition in the VIP gambling market
since the opening of new casinos; and

. the rolling turnover from the VIP gambling has
dropped substantially.

The above factors were considered in cash flow
projections.
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23. At [F] 4 4 1E Bl R % 23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
rEH
The Group
—_EBE-_—F —E——fF
2012 2011
FHT THRT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AR E RS 2 R B AR Cost of investments in jointly controlled
REE - FLM entities, unlisted in Hong Kong 30,000 30,000
JE {i L [R] 22 1 (& RS W B 12 15 18 Share of post-acquisition losses and other
REAMEEBRA - comprehensive income in jointly controlled
k2 AR S entities, net of dividend received (1,361) (1,344)
28,639 28,656
AREB ZHRAEZSEERN T —=—F+= 8 Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at 31st
=+—BRER-E——F+-ZA=1+—"HZHEH December 2012 and 31st December 2011 are set out in
B 78 R T 5150 o note 50 to the financial statements.
AREFHFZFEZE 2B BREREM T - Summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s jointly controlled entities is set out below:

2% —T—%
2012 2011
FTExT FET

HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
MEVEE Current assets 57,302 57,324
RBAE Current liabilities (24) (12)
FEE Net assets 57,278 57,312
7 3 A R4 ) fE A2 Group'’s share of net assets of jointly

AEFE controlled entities 28,639 28,656

S Turnover - -
AR Loss before tax (34) (2,688)

NEE GRS EEEE Group’s share of losses of jointly

controlled entities 17) (1,344)
7 3 A R4 ) fE A2 Group’s share of other comprehensive
Z HE 2 mEmKA income of jointly controlled entities - -
167
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168

HE-_T——F+-A=+-BLFE £5£H
AL DA 2 KRR EER3,105,0008 T (ZF
—— % 14,939,000 7T) - RERZ RFTEERN
£12,362,0008 7L (ZF ——4% : 9,257,000/ 1)

AREER-ZE——FHEARE7767E TR —FF
=7 URBE B FLE A PR A A)13.33% FE IME R o

EREZERRFA/BER RERAUEEFEH
Yo B 5

REBBRLRAFTN -_T——F+-_A=+—AK
—F A=t AZHBERMEERE
BiEE51 ©

24. )‘j@ﬂﬁﬁéﬁ n ﬁ_]*gé 24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
rEH
The Group
—E—_F —TE——4F
2012 2011
FERT FiET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
REEERNE 2 IRERAK Cost of investments in associates:
PORFT - FEET Unlisted in Macau 23 23
WEB - FELET Unlisted in Hong Kong - -
23 23
FEMREEE R R B R EE Share of post-acquisition losses and other
LEMEEmBA - comprehensive income in associates,
kB WA S net of dividend received (23) (23)
JE WA B N B SRR Amount due from an associate 2,377 7,977
2,377 7,977

The Group has not recognised losses for the associates
amounted to approximately HK$3,105,000 (2011:
HK$4,939,000) for the year ended 31st December
2012. The accumulated losses not recognised were
approximately HK$12,362,000 (2011: HK$9,257,000).

In 2011, the Group acquired 13.33% additional interest
of Avatar Limited from a third party at a consideration
of HK$7,767.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed recoverable term.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31st December

2012 and 31st December 2011 are set out in note 51 to
the financial statements.
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24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is set out below:

[
IS
[

—F-=F —T——%
2012 2011
FExT FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BmEE Total assets 48,461 73,037
BEE Total liabilities (89,340) (101,901)
BEFHE Net liabilities (40,879) (28,864)
AEBEGHERAEESTE Group’s share of net assets of associates - -
] Turnover 18,366 21,733
FEEE Loss for the year (12,015) (16,058)
REBEEEEAREE Group’s share of losses of associates - (8)
NEBEEEBE QA Group’s share of other comprehensive
Hfh2mERA income of associates - -
i
25. ﬁ_ﬁ 25. INVENTORIES
EEE
The Group
—E-CF —E——%
2012 2011
FExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
B kEHE Food materials and supplies 53,331 38,625
2R oh Finished goods 14 14
53,345 38,639
169
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26. MELRL 26. STOCK OF PROPERTIES
rEHE

The Group
—B-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BRABPIFIEEEDE Properties under development held for sales 561,976 550,312
RZE——F+_A=+—"HRZZE—F+= The stock of properties at 31st December 2012 and
A=+—H DEFELNNRM - LIiYEFE 31st December 2011 is located in Macau. The carrying
ZEEEENT amounts of stock of properties shown above are as

follows:
rEE

The Group
—=% —F—F
2012 2011
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BREFHAONBMAFEZ Properties under development held
BREPCBEREME for sales in Macau, held under

medium-term leases 561,976 550,312
B E E 49561,976,0008 T (& — — F : Properties under development held for sales with the
550,312,000 L) < BERF 2 HIEFEWMEES carrying amounts of approximately HK$561,976,000
R—FRBERK - (2011: HK$550,312,000) are expected to be completed

after one year.
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== /,
27, &= IR AE 27. FILM RIGHTS
THET
rEH The Group HK$’ 000
B Cost
R-Z——%—H—H At 1st January 2011 300,919
NE Additions 500
T MRS Expiry of film rights (25,281)
RZZE——F+=-A=+—8" At 31st December 2011, at 1st January 2012
RZT——F—HF—H8 and at 31st December 2012
ER-_ZF——F+-A=+—H 276,138
Rt BEREE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
R-T——%—H—H At 1st January 2011 279,598
RNEFHH Amortisation for the year 1,441
EERZMEEE Impairment loss recognised 619
IR LD Expiry of film rights (25,281)
RZE——F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 and at 1st January 2012
ERZZ——F—A—H 256,377
ERRZRERBRE Impairment loss recognised 1,605
R-FE—-——F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2012 257,982
IREE Carrying amounts
R-ZB-——f+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2012 18,156
RZE-——F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2011 19,761
S MERERR Impairment testing of film rights
MBEIRATS  EYMEDSRES T RER For the purpose of impairment testing, film rights have
B B oEABN BB BB been allocated to the CGU of film production operation.
HBH20%E - Amortisation of film rights will not exceed twenty years.
R-ZE——F+-A=+—H AQFE=EZR At 31st December 2012, the directors of the Company
EBVABRELEEMTPBRIEERATE assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of film
AvEE SHEEmEyRSELRSM AR rights with reference to the valuation performed by
B8 WETEEREREL,605,00057T (= Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent
T——% 619,000 7T) o qualified professional valuers, and determined that film

rights was impaired by approximately HK$1,605,000
(2011: HK$619,000).
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27 == E’HE*E (/,E 27. FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

EREZRERE (&) Impairment testing of film rights (Continued)
EXEZESEASBN 2O S %E I RIBE The recoverable amount of the CGU of film rights has
FREEMELET B rFREERENE been determined based on a value in use calculation
CHEHBBELAEEYBHSTEREI URE which uses cash flow projections based on financial
F1927% (ZF——F : §F19.80%) 2, H X budgets approved by management covering a five-year
FE RAFUEZRERAMEFEDNFERTE period and discount rate of 19.27% per annum (2011:
REEE ZERXVEBHEBEETLHES 19.80% per annum) and cash flows beyond the five-
ERER - FREBFEEZIERRAESRA year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate
SRR REEEEEERERNE 12 for both years. This growth rate does not exceed the
RERFAE ZEARKEATLCRLERE average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
EﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁéEZ?ﬁ,ﬁﬁ cEBREMRE ANZEHRE Key assumptions for the value in use calculations
(T EEEERZERR) 2AMEETEED relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
WABHEYIREZBAEEEBRRBELZRE LA include budgeted sales and gross margin, growth
Yl &8 o rate and discount rate, such estimation is based on

past experience and management’s expectations
of the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions on which recoverable amount is based
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of film
rights to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of

film rights.
BE-_Z——F+-A=1+—R1LEE #E¥ For the year ended 31st December 2012, impairment
Hﬁ%ﬁ@auﬁﬁéﬂﬁi’\]1 605,000 L (ZE——%F: loss recognised in respect of film rights amounted to
619,000/ 71) * EEEMEEE R approximately HK$1,605,000 (2011: HK$619,000) was

due to worsen marketability of respective film rights.

28. %ﬂzp‘: @é% 28. FILMS IN PROGRESS
rEH

The Group
—E——F T ——%F
2012 2011
FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
Rn—H—H At 1st January 3,150 19,038
"E Additions 40 40
B BRERZBEEE Less: Impairment loss recognised - (15,928)
R+Z—A=+—A~ At 31st December 3,190 3,150
BUEREZARAR R RE (AT E - The films in progress were measured at cost less

accumulated impairment, if any.
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HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

HEDER (&
BEMBEREMAINZAEESFHEE K&
ER_F—=—F+=-_A=+—BRZZE—F
TZA=ZT—BEREBEEREL ZEIERE
SFEET O EmETRERNR

EREFEEZRRNE  ASETHEEEYE
Bz HE  NFHBERIESHEF ZATH -
BE-ZT——F+-A=+—HIEE HRE
AMR ARABEEATEEETEATAZ
ERBRZEFHEE REE_T——F1+=A
“+-—BLFEE BEFELREREERARARE
RMEEE(ZFT——F 1 15,928,000 7T) °

BEZEWRERN

RAFEE AEEZESEEERIKE : ()E
ERIEERE  (NVEREERE (iEZETR(v)
PEREERBEE °

28.

29.

FILMS IN PROGRESS (Continued)

In accordance with note 3(r) to the financial statements
of the Groups’ accounting policy, the Group performed
impairment tests at 31st December 2012 and 31st
December 2011 by comparing the attributable carrying
amounts of the films in progress with the recoverable
amounts.

In light of the stage of film production, the Group
regularly reviewed the progress of film production to
assess the feasibility of continuing the production of
each film. During the year ended 31st December 2011,
the directors of the Company decided to suspend
the production of certain films in different stage of
production due to prevail market circumstances. During
the year ended 31st December 2012, no impairment
loss was made and recognised in the consolidated
income statement (2011: HK$15,928,000).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables arose from (i) hotel
and gaming service, (ii) gaming promotion, (iii) film
distribution and (iv) Chinese health products sales for

the year.
rEH
The Group
—EF-=F —
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
KETNEE2ESEWKEER :  Trade receivables from:
B E R SR T Hotel and gaming service 323,711 135,963
BRI E Gaming promotion 544 1,332
BEREIT Film distribution 3,947 3,692
FRREERBEE Chinese health products sales 3,330 3,539
331,532 144,526
B REREE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,595) (1,518)
329,937 143,008
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29. R EWEES (& 29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
BERZOHZN EFEWERBRERE 2 The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,
BRI HITINT - presented based on the invoice date and net of

allowance for doubtful debts:
AEE

The Group
—E——fF —T——%F
2012 2011
THT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
0£30H 0 to 30 days 326,074 138,166
31&260H 31 to 60 days 1,138 912
61ZE90H 61 to 90 days 702 1,580
HBiB90H Over 90 days 2,023 2,350
329,937 143,008

RTEPZVHREHRYB0ENATE -

RZFB-—ZF+-A=+t—H E5RKEHSE
#8#7322,634,000/8 7T (—F —— 4 : 134,429,000
BIL) TRAKRBMZMEFZARFER - LEH
thEF 158 5 KR AR 5% L o

The average credit period granted to customers ranges
from 30 to 90 days.

At 31st December 2012, trade receivables with the
amounts of approximately HK$322,634,000 (2011:
HK$134,429,000) is due from the Group’s two largest
customers. There is no other customers who represent
more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.

FARBRE2EZHOT The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:
TEH

The Group
2% —T—%
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
®—A—H At 1st January 1,518 1,157
ERRZBIEEE Impairment loss recognised 200 394
SNES T H MR (518D Foreign exchange translation gain/(loss) 8 (31)
Bl o /2 s 1B i 0 81 2 RUIB Amounts written off as uncollectible (131) (2)
R+=ZRA=+—8H At 31st December 1,595 1,518
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HEZT—

29.

BEZRWERR (&

1B R R B 2 B 2 FE W AR 3R 4 £2:200,0007 7T (=
——%F : 394,000 T) BERRERER - R
BREMREBR EHIAREREDEREEE
BExAEA2Y MzEeEWRATIKE -

29.

=<

EXFBEECESREERBRERRENRE B
MzeB(RTXREAN) @ EARKELE I
EHHERBRERE DTHAREEERELESAK
28 MixFEBMEGESATKE - AEEILE
HREERTETAERR -

ATREBHERREZEZRUERZRED

ZHE+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with a balance
of HK$200,000 (2011: HK$394,000) which are past due
at the end of the reporting period. The allowance for
doubtful debts recognised because there has been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
considered irrecoverable.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts
(see below for aging analysis) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful debts because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables

e which are past due but not impaired:
AEE

The Group
—E——F —F——%F
2012 2011
THT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HBiE90R Over 90 days 2,023 2,350

EETRZRUER A REIER  ARAESR
EERESREBRFZEERENSIRL AN
EEMERZEMES -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the directors of the Company consider any change
in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the
date credit were initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period.
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BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

30 B EAKEREMEY 30

T

IR

Hipzd Other deposits
REEZS Deposits for investment
B HIE Prepayments

H fh JE U FUR Other receivables

% & 12 ©360,000,000& TR —EARAAZE2E
Bi & A A]Bestjump Holdings LimitediR & &2 A 2
AMITEERFTERTERARL L (HALEA
BERTZEN) A B EModern Vision (Asia)
Limited &zReform Base Holdings LimitedZ &
BEERRHREEERMIT Lz EE BRI
2Rk HERZZT—Z-F-A+HBRE
KRE  RGFHBHNUMBREMT47(a)

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

r5E ¥ N
The Group The Company

—E2-—F% —2——F —E-C-F —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
THERT FTiET THERT FTET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
19,897 16,949 72 72
- 360,000 - -
8,467 8,880 294 487
14,458 10,557 - -
42,822 396,386 366 559

Deposits for investment of HK$360,000,000 represented
the cash deposit paid by Bestjump Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement entered with Ms
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, an executive director and
a substantial shareholder of the Company having
significant influence over the Group, in respect of
the acquisition of the entire equity interest of Modern
Vision (Asia) Limited and Reform Base Holdings
Limited and outstanding loans which has been refund
to the Company on 15th February 2012. Details of the
transaction are set out in note 47 (a) to the financial
statements.
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HE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

ﬁﬂzﬁ%}ﬁﬁ 31. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS
rEH
The Group
—B-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
FERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FmES Listed securities:
REBET 2 E®EF Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
ERFEE at fair value 30,189 50,797

RBEMR MEEBBRENAFEENEZE
MEEGURFEEIEK  EHREFZAFER
T2EMBzMISEAEMERE -

RHEZEVBERRAY AEBREB LT
HHEHFZ N FBELX A32,748,000/5 7T °

B () BEAR S
Y e

AEE

e, () B A/ RS RAREE
B 2R RARBEREE]

A=W/

= ©

LA
B —FEBERARFELAELN RERARE
SKEF AT Y [E o
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32.

At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
at FVTPL are stated at fair value. Fair values of listed
securities are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices.

The fair value of the Group’s equity securities listed in
Hong Kong at the date of approval of these financial
statements were approximately HK$32,748,000.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
ASSOCIATES/NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The Group

The amounts due from/(to) associates/non-controlling
interests are unsecured, interest-free, recoverable and
repayable on demand.

The Company

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable on demand.

o
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H ¥t # B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-ZZ——F+=-H=+—HI5E For the year ended 31st December 2012
33- EE%&%E{TIIH% 33'

RITERRFHFEGFE  UFRRNOHETR
THRZAEERT EHEHERZERA—H
EZAALE RIAEBARREFTEME

VTEREAZERERERMNEN T E50.12%

F2.00% (ZF——F : §F0.26%%2.05%) Y E
FE o

A BHeRERMS  RERBITEBERETF
ERSRBRTHREREHEBRTFHR - RZE—=
F+ZA=+—AKR=ZE——F+=ZA=+—H
FHRERERERLINRZRE RRITHEH AT HE

HEBEEERMT

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and
placed with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. Short-term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates ranged from 0.12% to 2.00% p.a.
(2011: 0.26% to 2.05% p.a.).

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances include cash on hand
and cash at banks and short-term time deposits. Cash
and bank balances at 31st December 2012 and 31st
December 2011 as shown in the consolidated statement
of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items as
follows:

ARH
The Company

AEE
The Group

e - B =~
2012 2011 2012 2011
FHT FET FHT FET

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FER S METTIRE  Cash on hand and
cash at banks
EHIEHER Short-term time deposits

B MIRTTHEH

R-ZE——F+-A=Z+—H AEEAZBER
WITHEHP  E0 BPIE BERARES R
5T 1A #) /880,000 7T (ZZ — — 4 : 220,000/
TT) 24,222,000 7T (Z & — — £ : 23,640,000
HIT) ~ 371,000 7T (ZF——4 : 603,000/ 7T)
%.3,003,000/% 7T (ZF ——4F : 2,493,000%7T) °

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—HB ARAZH
CRBTESHT ELRARESRGFELY
/258,000 7t (Z T — —F : 54,0008 L) &
342,000/ T (ZZF ——4F : 288,000/ 7T) °

ARBEGBVFITEREB E%  BELS
HrEeXPRBNETHNIIMNEE IR - A&
BEUARBINEBE R RBITEBRRBHURE
BB EARZINEE H o

Cash and bank balances

85,456 92,753 10,625 20,479
493,407 810,341 242,510 220,000
578,863 903,094 253,135 240,479

At 31st December 2012, the Group’s cash and bank
balances denominated in USD, MOP, EUR and RMB
are approximately HK$880,000 (2011: HK$220,000),
HK$24,222,000 (2011: HK$23,640,000), HK$371,000
(2011: HK$603,000) and HK$3,003,000 (2011:
HK$2,493,000) respectively.

At 31st December 2012, the Company’s cash and
bank balances denominated in USD and RMB are
approximately HK$258,000 (2011: HK$54,000) and
HK$342,000 (2011: HK$288,000) respectively.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the foreign exchange control promulgated imposed
by the PRC government. Majority of the Group’s cash
and bank balances denominated in RMB are located
in Hong Kong and Macau which is not subject to the
foreign exchange control.
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34.

SREEOIBTL
LER( =%
BREE0ET)

EERA

n-A—8H

R A Bt (B M)

BRABIR (2 M it (i)

A I (2 M e (iin)

B+-A=1+-H

BETRBRRA:

R-A—8

BRRR(ZHia)

RERR (M)

BiAA b (EHEe)

BRABIR (2 M ite(in)

REERZETTRG (2H2d)

TiEBRIE(EHite)

T LmARER

W+-B=1+-H
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
(2011: HK$0.01 each)

Authorised:

At st January

Share consolidation (see note c(i))
Capital reduction (see note c(ii)
Capital increase (see note c(iii)

At 31st December

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January
Repurchase of shares
(see note a)
Placement of shares
(see note b)
Share consolidation
(see note c(i)
Capital reduction
(see note c(ii)

Issue of new shares upon rights issue

(see note d)

Exercise of share options
(see note e)

Exercise of listed warrants

At 31st December

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

KRG E EX
Number of shares Amount
F-cF “TF
2012 2011
FAL FET
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
- (45,000,000) - _
- - - (450,000)
- 45,000,000 - 450,000
50,000,000 50,000,000 500,000 500,000
1,964,721 4,333,933 19,647 43,340
(624,235) - (6,242) -
- 577,855 - 5778
- (4,420,610) - -
- - - (44,206)
- 1,473,541 - 14,735
- { - -
345,432 1 3,454 _
1,685,918 1,964,721 16,859 19,647
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34, BARIRAES (&£ 34. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
(Continued)
Biat - Notes:
(a) FERAATEERSEEAERAHNT (a) During the year, the Company repurchased and

cancelled its own shares as follows:

BREE0.0178 T

EERHAE BRE® ERNRE
=R Date of No. of ordinary share Price per Consideration
Cancellation of HK$0.01 each share paid
TR BT TET
000 HK$ HK$’' 000
—Z——%+—A%H 5th November 2012 376,132 0.35 131,646
—E-—F+-ANH 9th November 2012 242,195 0.35 84,768
—T——F+—R+AH 15th November 2012 5,908 0.35 2,068
624,235 218,482

Fit RS D T ABE[E 14 3T 4 o The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
B EXHEEEN BEAATZHE AT Other than as disclosed above, none of the Company’s
NERER - HeEER AR FRY - subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company'’s shares during the year.

(b) N-E——F—F=++H  KARIEF0.07 (b) On 27th January 2011, the Company allotted and
BT 7 BB BB K& 1T 4 $£577,855,0000% & issued an aggregate 577,855,000 new shares of
BEECOIEB T ZHBRN T B IIREE -5 HK$0.01 each to independent investors at a price of
FXIE % 58 #4939,895,0005% 7T Jb AR E Uk BE 17 7Y R HK$0.07 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
F9Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE)& HK$39,895,000 were used as part of the consideration
6B EE « FECHLER « FoDHER K& FE6EHER ([3% of the acquisition of the property leasehold rights over
EWR|)MERSEZBHRE (FHUOEAAD R Lot 6B, Lot 6C, Lot 6D and Lot 6E located in Macau at
R E——F—B+HFfAHK) ([RESEE]) - Zona de Aterros do Porto Exterior (ZAPE) (the “Sites”)

as announced by the Company on 7th January 2011

(the “Acquisition”).
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34. RARIRES & 34. SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

et - (%)

(c)

RARB ZZE-——FAARNEBETZBRRE
Retb BBT -BEFBIIRERAMERRT

ZRAETIIE

(if)

(iif)

(TEXEA) :

Bt a6 8+ REREECOIET
ZEBETRRBETRERNAHAR
RA—REREEA0E T2 A MR
D ([& 6B 1)

B AEIR : (WEEHEARRRAFF
BB 2174 SR 150.09%8 T 2 R ik
A EDRE AR AR 2 BBEITRA - AR
BREBTEHRG ZEEHI0E
TR E0O1A T (M FTE & B %
M2 EEHRERABTERES R
0.0 TTHIR AN A B 2 3& AR » A
B AR R R 2 % T BR 78 500,000,000
# 7T (9 /5,000,000,0008% & 4 B%
) Bl B Z£50,000,0008 T (2 A
5,000,000,000/% & & ™ 1£0.01% 7Tt 2
MRM) 0 R)EEIRAD R B ETR
KEAZERBBERARAZHA
B8R R

EMBRA : KRB ZEEREEH
50,000,0007% 7t (% 45,000,000,000
BEREE.01B T ZHBKM)
#1£500,000,0008 T (D A
50,000,000,0000% & A FEE0.014& 7T 2
MRM) -

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c)

At a special general meeting of the Company held

on 6th May 2011, a special resolution was passed to

approve the following changes to the capital of the

Company (the “Capital Reorganisation”):

)

(if)

(iif)

Share consolidation: every ten issued and
unissued existing shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each be consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each of the
Company (the “Consolidated Share”)

Capital reduction: (1) the issued share capital
of the Company be reduced by the cancellation
of the paid-up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.09 on each of the then issued
Consolidated Shares such that the nominal
value of each issued Consolidated Share will
be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; (2) the
authorised share capital of the Company be
reduced by reducing the nominal value of all
Consolidated Shares from HK$0.10 each to
HK$0.01 each resulting in the reduction of the
authorized share capital of the Company from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000
Consolidated Shares to HK$50,000,000
divided into 5,000,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each; and (3) the credit arising from
the reduction of issued share capital of the
Company be transferred to the contributed

surplus account of the Company; and

Capital increase: the authorised share
capital of the Company be increased from
HK$50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$500,000,000
divided into 50,000,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

The Capital Reorganisation was completed on 9th May
2011.

EREHER-Z——FHANBTEMK °
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34. RARZERER (&

Hiet - (%)

(d)

R-FTE——FXA-_+TAE A2FNUHE
BAXERBEESRO 2B LB R AT
1,473,540,870/k @ R EE0.01E T 2 A A A
HRRG (THEBRERG])  BERR_T——4F
NAtBERAE-—RBERGEE = RERRK
3 o BT 15 3K 78 % %8 £0364,148,000/8 7L » 49
360,000,000 7t B FIER 4 % B Z S B A7
FESR/IHBERAERAEE —REEES -

REBE-ZFE-——F+-A=Z+—-RLFE"
—RBERESEATEBRE ROTEESK
0.14478 7T R 11,2430 A 0 © 17 (£ B8 A i 2 P
BREFRHR/ITIET -

RZBE——F+ZA=+—HB AQFAAMH
RITEE 2 R GRIRERE RS : 972)([=
—TEREAEFE]) 4111,523,000/ 7T + Th
DFREESR1010BT (AIREERT
N —H )27 AR T —FF R
A+RRARE-_Z——&XA+HNA (8
EEWA) LEHBERTE REER =2
——F+—A+/\B D IRE BB % M AE
AFh%0.835%8 7T ©

REEZZ—=—F+=-A=T—HIEFER
%Tza’aﬂﬁ{ﬁ f20.835 BT H M T —TFRK
EF BB EIT82, 266 ¥R c AT =T —
TFERBREETIRE AR -

o

#f Notes to the Financial Statements
——F+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

34.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 29th June 2011,
issued 1,473,540,870 rights shares (“Rights Shares”)
of the Company of HK$0.01 each per share at a

the Company allotted and

subscription price of HK$0.25 each on the basis of
three Rights Shares for every one share held on 7th
June 2011 by way of rights issue. The net proceed was
approximately HK$364,148,000, of which approximately
HK$360,000,000 was intended to be used to fund the
financial needs for developing the Sites and/or the

remaining for general working capital of the Group.

During the year ended 31st December 2011, an option
holder exercised her option right to subscribe for
1,243 shares at exercise price of HK$0.144 per share.
The net proceeds from the exercise of option rights

amounted approximately to HK$179.

WARRANTS

(a)

At 31st December 2011, the Company had outstanding
warrants (warrant code: 972) (the “2010 Warrants”) of
approximately HK$111,523,000 were issued at an initial
subscription price of HK$1.010 per share (subject to
further adjustment, if necessary) and exercisable at
any time during the period commencing on 15th June
2010 to 14th June 2012 (both days inclusive). The
subscription price was adjusted to HK$0.835 per share
on 18th November 2011 upon distribution of special
dividend.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, 82,266
new shares were issued upon conversion of the 2010
Warrants at the subscription price of HK$0.835 per
share. The remaining 2010 Warrants were expired on

the expiry date.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

B

34. RERDBRER (&

EXEEAC D)

(b)

RZZ——FRNAZ+TNAB  ARARERZ
E-——FMA+N\AEMzHBRERERR
HERBROBET—HAFNRREE -&H£HOR
73,677,000/ 7T 2 RIRREE (RARIEFE R
1056) ([ZZ——5RREF]) BRI RE
BER0.25E T (ATAR ER TIARE) #ET
WA E——F~AZ+NLBE=ZZE—=F
+TZAZTN\B (BEERMX) L BAHEERT
- REER_Z——F+—-A+/\BESIK
BRIREMARZE0207H T WR T —=
FHZAtBRRZABME-—FTAEEZGR
0.0697 7T °

REBE-_EZ——+-_A=+—RHILtEERN"
A9 T ——FRREFR 17345349911
1 - E 340,226,148 57 #% (5 125,123,763
% 37 AR 17 9 Bl 3% R B (B 8 180.2077% T &k & AR
0.0697% T X2 © 2,407 201 RF R H R =
——FRREBINHEAELRITAR T —=F
—AZH%T BT_T——FRREZFIR
FHRAEE -
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34.

(Continued)
WARRANTS (Continued)

(b)

On 29th June 2011, the Company issued one bonus
warrant for every five Rights Shares taken up under the
rights issue as announced on 18th April 2011. Total
amount approximately to HK$73,677,000 warrants
(warrant code: 1056) (the “2011 Warrants”) were issued
at an initial subscription price of HK$0.25 per share
(subject to adjustment, if necessary) and exercisable at
any time during the period commencing on 29th June
2011 to 28th December 2012 (both days inclusive). The
subscription price was adjusted to HK$0.207 per share
on 18th November 2011 upon distribution of special
dividend and further adjusted to HK$0.069 per share
on 7th December 2012 upon the Bonus Issue.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, total
345,349,911 new shares were issued upon the
conversion of the 2011 Warrants, of which 340,226,148
new shares and 5,123,763 new shares were converted
at the subscription price HK$0.207 per share and
HK$0.069 per share respectively. 2,407,201 new
shares were subsequently issued on 2nd January 2013
upon the conversion of the 2011 Warrants before its
expiry. The remaining 2011 Warrants were expired on

the expiry date.
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35. 35. RESERVES
HRARAZ T8k Bx  REBEH/
RiiE #ARE FEGE FERR HigE  (RiHER) EH]
Retained
Share-based  Convertible Capital earnings/
Share  Contributed payment bonds reduction  (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

FiEn Tin Tin TiEn TiEn FiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
(Wita) (Wite) (Wite) (Hitd) (Hite)
AR The Company (Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note )

RZZ-—%-f-8 At 1st January 2011 609,421 1,076,965 59,978 - 316,008 332,153 2,394,525

TEEEERZERELE Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the year - - - - - (110.242) (110,242)

ERHE Capital reduction - 44,206 - - - - 44,08
e LmAkER Exercise of listed warrans 2 - - - - - 2
fifaRE Exercise of share aptions 1 - - - - - 1
BRES S Expiry of share options - - (6,844) - - 6,844 -
ERRTREAR R Income tax relating to transactions with

LHER owners of the Company - - - (1,937) - - (1937)
REERETHRG Issue of new shares under rights issue 353,650 - - - - - 353,650
TERS Payment of dividend - - - - - (64,836) (64,836)
BERR Placement of shares 34,672 - - - - - 34,672
BATERESRZ Recognition of the equity component

EREH of convertible bonds - - - 11,740 - - 11,740
HIRHRT Share issuing expenses (4792) - - - - - (479)

RZE-—E+ZF=T-H At 31st December 2011 and
R-E--%-f-8 at 1st January 2012 992,954 1121171 53,134 9,803 316,008 163,919 2,656,989

TEREERZEBELE Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the year - - - - - (973.844) (973 844)
IEELTAREE Exercise of listed warrants 67,39 - - - - - 67,395
BOkf Repurchase of shares (212.240) - - - - - (212.240)
R ERAR L Share issuing and cancellng expenses  (3,612) - - - - - (3612)
RZE-ZE+ZA=+-A At 31st December 2012 844,497 1,121,171 53,134 9,803 316,008 (809,925) 1,534,688
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35.

ZHE+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company can be
used in paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to members of the Company as fully paid

bonus shares.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Company brought
forward represents the amount transferred from the
capital account due to the capital reduction effective
on 10th September 2002 and various capital reduction

subsequently.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of a company
is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot make a distribution out of the contributed
surplus if: (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii)
the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less

than its liabilities.

(c) Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount
for each period is determined by spreading the fair
value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the

share-based payment reserve.
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35. B (& 35. RESERVES (Continued)

et - (&) Notes: (Continued)

(d) BREEB G ENERR/[2HTA: 25/ (d) Under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation,
FETZABRREFTIRIAERED REE convertible bonds issued are split into their liability
BORERSD  FRAREATFEERRERE and equity components at initial recognition by
BH(RTFEEIERRARTAIRKRER 2T recognising the liability component at its fair value
SHERERE) METAERERAGENG 2 which is determined using a market interest rate for
RTBEMEZZRAUGRERDH - AFEH similar non-convertible debts and attributing to the
MEEDZEBERAIE - BZBHGER equity component the difference between the proceeds
RABRRESFE  BEEUBRRESRER(E from issue and the fair value of the liability component.
KEHEZERMDEE) XATRRESFEED (& The liability component is subsequently carried at
RISEERZREATN,/ (RFTEE)) BLE - amortised cost. The equity component is recognised

in the convertible bonds reserve until the convertible
bonds are either converted (in which case it is
transferred to share premium) or the convertible bonds
are redeemed (in which case it is released directly to
retained earnings/(accumulated losses)).

(e) RABZBRAEREHERER - NAANFHARA (e) The capital reduction reserve of the Company
71332,640,000/k B # TR th 2 EIE R B8R E represents the amount arising in relation to the
E1.00% LM = B IR EH0.05 TAME L 2 reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000 issued
SR EEARNANESFREBERRAZAAMAE shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
1291 iz —IHRFER  RAHR & A each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the
REIRAAGEREZ2E BFE A8 directors of the Company pursuant to Bye-law 129 of
B UARAAEEEERAEER HEREHK the Company’s Bye-laws, the capital reduction reserve
Hib RRARLRFERA AR - shall be applicable for meeting claims on or liabilities

of the Company or contingencies or for paying off any
loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied.
36. RITHEE 36. BANK BORROWINGS
K EH

The Group
—E——fF —T——%F
2012 2011
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AEPEITER Secured bank borrowings 400,000 450,000
EIRIRIRITE R Unsecured bank borrowings 20,875 16,674
420,875 466,674
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36. ﬁﬂ?f'ﬁg-ﬁ (/é%'f_ 36. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
rEH
The Group
—E—_F —ET——%F
2012 2011
FERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
JEEERMEE : Carrying amount repayable:
—F R Within one year 64,929 58,286
FEiE—F - BT HBMF More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 50,000 50,000
HBBME - BETEBRAF More than two years, but not more than
five years 300,000 350,000
414,929 458,286
WITERZEREE AR Carrying amount of bank borrowings
BEREHRE—FANER that are not repayable within one year
BEREREREERK from the end of the reporting period but
(nBBEETMAR) contain a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 5,946 8,388
420,875 466,674
W mEBEE TR IR Less: Amount shown under current liabilities (70,875) (66,674)
FERMBEEETRZ A Amount shown under non-current liabilities 350,000 400,000

R-E——F+-fA=+—8B AEBEzEEKMH
R 1718 & #: 58 /5400,000,0008 T (=T — — 4
450,000,000 7t) - EEARITEE D BB &K
£ E B | B £9252,097,00008 T (=& — — 4 :
263,147,000/ 7T ) % 419,839,000/ 7L (=T ——
£ 440,832,000 70) 2 EF REE T (EEA -
BEBRITEERFFNERISE (BERERFE
(5.25[@) BB A= (1.75E)) 5t 8 WARA
FRNEE T —EZE R E 512,500,000 7T 5 H
EBELRENEEET H A E2262,500,0008 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

At 31st December 2012, the Group had secured bank
borrowings with remaining balance of HK$400,000,000
(2011: HK$450,000,000). The secured bank borrowings
is secured by the Group’s buildings and leasehold
land with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$252,097,000 (2011: HK$263,147,000) and
HK$419,839,000 (2011: HK$440,832,000) respectively.
The secured bank borrowings is interest bearing
at 3.5% per annum (Hong Kong Prime Rate 5.25%
less margin 1.75%) and repayable within 5 years
by 11 equal consecutive quarterly installments
of HK$12,500,000 each and a final repayment of
HK$262,500,000 at the maturity date of the borrowings.
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RZZE——F+-A=+—H0 ~%£EBERES
BRERTHEBN ([EEFITERR]) FIER
P& IR 5T 813 1 2 4 K 7 4R 17 18 B2,000,000% 7T
(ZZF——% :3,200,0008 L) - EIEHRITEE
80%F & /& 5 Bl 1T B[R BT 2 (R &R 100% FNPH
Holdings Limited ((NPH ) 2 — & Bl I& 3 1A A #2
R EBERBBTEESFE—EREARTAE
B M2.5E 5 2 - A1Z2018 A & A $%100,000
BLTOHERRESRERERER Ao
RRBAE-

RZE——F+-A=+—8 AEEFEIKF
#OE 5 E 414,929,000 0 (ZF——4F ¢
8,286,000/ 1) - MIKFHE O E 5 EFANPHZ
—RAIRREAER BFZ—MEABBRTA
ERBIN2EFE AR —FNEE -

N E——"F+-_F=+—H AEEFHE
AR 1T {8 B 493,946,000 0 (ZF ——F ¢
5,188,000/ T) - BB E HIREEBRFRIITH
EFAERERSEEL - EEBRITEEL0%
BB B R RI1T R BT &R & 100%ENPHZ —
FRAIRRBEAER BKHRTIEESFR
ABBRITREREM2EEFE  HBEERITRE
A& A1050008 T R EEREREIMAAE
BRTURBERERERER BAUoEA
TMENAME o

PR BRITIEEHNETEE -
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36. SRITEE (&

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31st December 2012, the Group had unsecured bank
borrowings of HK$2,000,000 (2011: HK$3,200,000)
that granted under the Special Loan Guarantee
Scheme of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”). The unsecured bank
borrowings is 80% guaranteed by the government
of HKSAR and 100% personally guaranteed by an
ex-shareholder of NPH Holdings Limited (“NPH")
respectively. The unsecured bank borrowings is interest
bearing at 2.5% per annum over 1 month HIBOR,
repayable by 20 equal consecutive monthly installments
of HK$100,000 each and contains a clause of repayable
on demand and thus classified as current liabilities.

At 31st December 2012, the Group had unsecured
import trade loans of approximately HK$14,929,000
(2011: HK$8,286,000). The unsecured import trade
loans are personally guaranteed by an ex-shareholder
of NPH, interest bearing at 2% per annum over 1 month
HIBOR and repayable within 1 year.

At 31st December 2012, the Group had unsecured
bank borrowings of approximately HK$3,946,000
(2011: HK$5,188,000) that granted under the Special
Loan Guarantee Scheme of the government of HKSAR.
The unsecured bank borrowings is 80% guaranteed
by the government of HKSAR and 100% personally
guaranteed by an ex-shareholder of NPH respectively.
The unsecured bank borrowings is interest bearing at
2.5% per annum over 1 month HIBOR, repayable by
37 consecutive monthly installments of approximately
HK$105,000 each and a final payment for the remaining
balance at the maturity date of the borrowings and
contains a clause of repayable on demand and thus
classified as current liabilities.

All interest-bearing bank borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar.
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HEZT—

37.

LREHEREM
258
—ER
E_ZERER

B RRBBER

HMERHKZRE

BRBRERET
iR Z 3R

FRBABRT
R Z 308

Amount payable under
finance leases:
Within one year
In the second to fifth years

Less: Future finance charges

Present value of lease obligations

Less: Amount shown under
current liabilities

Amount shown under
non-current liabilities

REASEYE  EETRERERERERA -
RAEEE  FHREHATF -FMERMERE
BEHEZHBREREESGZENAHET N
T & F5.00%£5.99% 2 (ZF ——F : 5.00%
£599%) - FTAMEYATHEE MAETT

KAMEE MRz ZHE -

AEB REAEEBEUEBAAEREAY
168,000 (ZF——4 : 326,000/ 1) v FHE &
BRI - TEREREBHEIABITIIE -

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

—HF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE
LEASES

rEE
The Group
EE#HE EEHEEZHRE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

e - B =~
2012 2011 2012 2011
FH7 FiBT FBT FiE7

HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

138 155 111 128
48 186 43 153

186 341 154 281
(32) (60) - -
154 281 154 281
(111) (128)

43 153

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its equipment
under finance leases. The average lease term is 5 years
for both years. Interest rates underlying all obligations
under finance leases are fixed at respective contract
dates ranging from 5.00% to 5.99% (2011: 5.00% to
5.99%) per annum. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets
with the carrying amount of approximately HK$168,000
(2011: HK$326,000). All obligations under finance
leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

=T
I
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TEEREDT

RZTE——FtA+LtH RAAETALHE
350,000,000/ 7T 2 & # # AT 4 ik & 25 Tk 1B 5
W% E B R AR 22 & KB A alEternity Finance
Group Limited (F1#8 [ Wingo Consultants
Limited]) - 5 R G F8EF B - BEFIHHEAT
RZZT—R"FLA+7NBE 8 AR EA R
HERETR044B T (AIRFERTARE) K
HEBRARARLEERG BREN_-FT——F
TR+ NBES KRR EMEEZ 80.36
B URZFE—ZF+ZAEARIREART
HE—SAEEGROA2EB T - WEFREER -
AR _ZE—REL AT BRALED - A[#
& &5 A B TTHIME -

BEHFemmERD (RERERD) - EaiBh
RESATARBEESREEIZ5 - AESBHZ
BB R ) 20 HE BB /38.837% ©

BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

38. AR E % 38.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
The Group and the Company

On 7th July 2011, the Company issued unsecured
convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 to Eternity Finance Group Limited
(formerly known as “Wingo Consultants Limited”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Eternity Investment Limited.
The bonds are interest bearing at 8% per annum.
The holder of the bonds may convert the bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time before the
maturity date on 16th July 2016 at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.44 per share (subject to adjustment,
if necessary). The conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.36 per share on 18th November 2011 upon
distribution of special dividend and further adjusted to
HK$0.12 per share on 7th December 2012 upon the
Bonus Issue. If the bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed on 16th July 2016 at principal
amount. The convertible bonds are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

The bonds contain two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element is presented in equity
under the heading of “convertible bonds reserve”. The
effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition is 8.837%.

FHEIT
HK$’ 000
BITFI{S 508 Proceeds of issue 350,000
RETH ZBEHBMH Liability component at the date of issue (338,260)
7 7 &6 1 Equity component 11,740
RETHZBES D Liability component at the date of issue 338,260
FMELZH (EHE10) Interest expenses (see note 10) 14,582
B RERF B Interest paid and payable (13,655)
R—ZE——F+=-A=+—H Liability component at 31st December 2011 and
k=—Z——"%—HF—HZzafE®M{ atistJanuary 2012 339,187
MBX M (ZHZ10) Interest expenses (see note 10) 30,044
B RERF R Interest paid and payable (28,000)
R-_ZE——F#+-_F=+—Hz2 Liability component
BEHm at 31st December 2012 341,231
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39. EEHEARE 39. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
EEH The Group
NTAAEERAZIEEENBEEEREER The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
FHEES and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon:

BENEARZ RENEL
APEERE  TRREF LTEELD @t

Fair value Fair value

adjustment changes of

on acquisition ~ Convertible investment
of subsidiaries bonds property Total
TER FER TER FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000

RZE——F—-f—H At 1st January 2011 80,888 - 7,175 88,063
ﬁ&ﬁﬁéﬁ B Recognised directly in equity - 1,937 - 1,937
BREBAME Acquisition through business combination

(BHitaz) (see note 42) 1,617 - - 1,617
SFAGAMAK Credit to the consolidated income statement (36) (153) (7,175) (7,364)
f——¢+ A=+—H  At31st December 2011 and
—#-f—H 1st January 2012 82,469 1,784 - 84,253
qu/\i‘*/\HﬁU\i% Credit to the consolidated income statement (202) (337) - (539)
—Z#+ZHA=t—H  At31st December 2012 82,267 1,447 - 83,714
REEHR  NE BB 441,184,000 7T (= At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
T —— 4 : 399,493,000/ 7r.) A LI 44 B 18 % F unused estimated tax losses of approximately
JABEEHBEE c AR KRETE BB HK$441,184,000 (2011: HK$399,493,000) available for
F o W EERELIRIBEE  MARRZHIE offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
BB AT REMER B AL S been recognised due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams and unrecognised tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.
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39. jﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ% (é"g 39. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)
b NN The Company

TYAR AR T EREFEEBREER The followings are the major deferred tax liability and

HE#E) assets recognised by the Company and movements

thereon:

AR E S

Convertible bonds

FAT

HK$’ 000

RZE——F—HF—H At 1st January 2011 -

EERERER Recognised directly in equity 1,937

PUEA R 0B Charge to income statement (153)

R-ZB——F+-A=+—HBEK At 31st December 2011 and

—E——_%—A—H at 1st January 2012 1,784
RUA K kR Charge to income statement (337)
RZE-——_F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2012 1,447
RI|EE K - AR Al #EA #116,738,000/% 7T (= At the end of the reporting period, the Company
T ——14F : 103,142,000/ jt) AT 4 K 35 B 18 ) F has unused estimated tax losses of approximately
CARBEANBEE R KREETBR 2R HK$116,738,000 (2011: HK$103,142,000) available for
FRAERZTIBEBEAGERBLEN  HIE offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
BRRERIBEE - been recognised due to the unpredictability of future

profit streams and unrecognised tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

40. %%Eﬁﬁl‘ﬂﬁ?ﬁ 40. TRADE PAYABLES |
AAREE  AEEE SR EZRKA>)EERE The Group’s trade payables arose from (i) hotel and
YR - ()EHBT R(i)h BRI ESNE - gaming service, (ii) film distribution and (iii) Chinese
health products sales for the year.
AEE
The Group

—E——& —F——F
2012 2011
FTExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

RETHEE2ESEMNERK:  Trade payables from:

B IE RIER R Hotel and gaming service 233,972 122,545
BRELT Film distribution 4,275 4,107
FRREEREE Chinese health products sales 13,574 12,428

251,821 139,080

192
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40. B ENES (& 40. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)
UNTAESRMNBERLEBEZAH BRI The following is an aging analysis of trade payables,

based on the invoice date:

AEHE

The Group
—=E——F %
2012 2011
FHET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
0£30H 0 to 30 days 230,385 128,025
31260H 31 to 60 days 5,358 3,855
61290H 61 to 90 days 2,659 1,765
#BiB90H Over 90 days 13,419 5,435
251,821 139,080
HERS T FHKBRERA30E90H o The average credit period granted by suppliers ranges

from 30 to 90 days.

41. 2 qﬂﬂyjﬁﬁ N @E—flﬁ B &Eﬂﬂ 41. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
@1\ hig OTHER PAYABLES
AEE ADT
The Group The Company
ST =+ EEEEA -T--%
2012 2011 2012 2011
TET TET TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B WEZ & Deposits received 14,444 14,449 10,166 10,000
fEETIA R Accruals 51,183 46,294 16,860 15,918
RERBE R HEE Provision for long services
payment 1,437 1,060 - -
H fth A 5B Other payables 8,102 6,441 845 368
75,166 68,244 27,871 26,286
193
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41.

42.

BIRIES « i EE kA
7B 508 (4

RORBARBEEZEHNOT

41.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The movement of provision for long services payment is
as follows:

rEH

The Group
—E——F —E
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
n—HR—H At 1st January 1,060 -
NEFEH 2 BE Provision made for the year 392 -
RAFEEHA Utilised during the year (15) -
BREBEE Acquisition through business combination - 1,060
W+=-_BA=+—H At 31st December 1,437 1,060

ASERREEERBGOERAREFELZA
BERTKERBRG ARG - RBEHK - BET
RIEER RASERE MR BRI Z 7 R KA
R RAEMETEL -

E¥ad
HE-_F——S+-A=+—-HLEFE
RZZE——F+A=++8 NEEWENPHZ
2 EPR% 42 - 4 K {8 550,000,000 7T © UK EE
BHERAREEAR BRUBEEHEELAZHE
© %8/53,030,000/8 70 e NPHIt B &R B R E
R BEED REEMEL2EESRER T
BEERTERARTBLARY

42.

The Group provides for probable future long services
payment expected to be made to employees under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The provision
is based on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the employees
from their services to the Group at the end of the
reporting period.

BUSINESS COMBINATION
For the year ended 31st December 2011

On 27th October 2011, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in NPH at a total consideration of
HK$50,000,000. This acquisition has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the acquisition was HK$3,030,000.
NPH is engaged in sales of Chinese and other medicines
pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and
dried seafood products to wholesalers and retailers as
well as Chinese clinical services.

FET
EHRoRE Consideration transferred HK$’ 000
Re Cash 50,000
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

U BEFE B AR AN 49110,0008 TE R EE R 2 R Acquisition-related costs approximately to HK$110,000
B REBEZE——F+_A=+—BILEE have been excluded from the consideration transferred

EHEAWARANERBAS -

and have been recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement during the year ended
31st December 2011.

s 2 AR B E LA IER ERINE H HirE The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

/N

which recognised at the acquisition date are as follows:

VB zREE QVEERER DYV EE

Carrying amount

before Fair value
acquisition  adjustment Fair value
FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FriiiE 2 & B FE - Net assets acquired:
W R RE Property, plant and
(ZHaE17) equipment (see note 17) 1,973 - 1,973
FE Inventory 40,291 - 40,291
B BE(AMiF22) Intangible assets (see note 22) - 9,799 9,799
B 5 R Trade receivables 2,595 - 2,595
BffiEe - BAHE Deposits paid, prepayments and
e & S other receivables 15,269 - 15,269
e RIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 21,914 - 21,914
B 5 EAER Trade payables (9,611) - (9,611)
BEliEe - ERTIER Deposits received, accruals and
Ko Eo A 5 5RIA other payables (8,777) - (8,777)
E#IE Tax payables (1) - (1)
MERERED Obligation under finance lease (21) - (21)
BE Borrowings (24,818) - (24,818)
JRE W SE 2 PR 7 2 FRIE Amount due from non-controlling
interests (26) - (26)
RIEBIBEE (Z477£39) Deferred tax liabilities (see note 39) - (1,617) (1,617)
AEREENABFE Net identifiable assets and liabilities 38,788 8,182 46,970
WHEE 2 HE Goodwill arising on acquisition 3,030
50,000
195
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42.

—E——F+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

42, £BEH (&

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of NPH because
the cost of the combination included a control
premium paid to acquire the business. In addition,
the consideration paid for the combination effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected
synergies, revenue growth, future market development
and the assembled workforce of NPH.

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

FAT

WEENPHZ &7 H R Net cash outflow on acquisition of NPH HK$’ 000

BENBEeNRE Cash consideration paid 50,000
B FTEZRE R Less: Cash and bank balances acquired

RITHEER (21,914)

B F Net cash outflow 28,086

RBEE-_T——F+_A=T-HLEFEZEE
W&t ANPHZE 4 2 58 51 % 7% fE (564,000 7T ° I
BE-Z——4F+-_A=t-RALFEzL%8
15 5 BANPH 2 28,464,000/ T °

HBBEFEERN _T——F—A—BTK BHEZ
E——F+ A=+ HLEFEAEEARSEEE
fE4)51,159,479,0008 TR EE T ——F+=
R=1+—BIEFEEIEEL/R651,704,0004 T °
BEEREEGBRARZ TEAZEHMIES
FR-_E——&—A— A%k AEEEREE
B2 ERAREE  BETTEREEARRE
E2TEA -

Included in the loss for the year ended 31st December
2011 was HK$64,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by NPH. Turnover for the year
ended 31st December 2011 included HK$28,464,000 in
respect of NPH.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1st January
2011, total group revenue for the year ended 31st
December 2011 would have been approximately
HK$1,159,479,000, and loss for the year ended 31st
December 2011 would have been approximately
HK$651,704,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1st January 2011, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.
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42. %ﬁ%éﬁ (/é%'f_ 42. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)
WNPHREBEZ - ——F+_A=+—HILFE In determining the ‘pro forma’ revenue and loss of the
FOWWE NETAEE[HZ] RANREIE Group had NPH been acquired at the beginning of the
B EE: year ended 31st December 2011, the directors have:

o HECKBEYME BERIERER E . calculated depreciation of property, plant and
ENREERAHRBUS ST RENE equipment acquired on the basis of the fair
EZAFEE MIFNER B B RRE ® values arising in the initial accounting for the
REREE & business combination rather than the carrying

amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements; and

. EBTEERRAR  EETVARNEBNES . determined borrowing costs based on the
S BIREKE EETRERER X funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
FEIKF o position of the Group after business combination.

43. HERIE 43. LEASE COMMITMENTS
AEBEREBAA The Group as lessee
rEE
The Group
—E——F T
2012 2011
TET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HARBKBEEROIF 2 Minimum lease payments paid under
&K ERIEB : operating leases during the period:
IES Premises 16,255 6,366

197
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43.

44.

HERIE (& 43.

RBEHMR - AEBERBER THBRER 2 TR
BEEEBEN BREEBSAEWT

LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:
AEH

The Group
—E—_F —E——4F
2012 2011
AR THR
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
—FN Within one year 17,966 9,494
FEERFNA In the second to fifth year inclusive 19,175 5,803
37,141 15,297

REBHNFERAREMERN 2ES - BOHE
SR P MEE R -

BHREE 44.

AETIREECEECHFER  RAKREZR
THEERR (AP BEHRRMEIS)

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable
by the Group for its premises. Leases are mainly
negotiated for an average term of two years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group (see
note 36 to the financial statements):

gF Buildings
HE L Leasehold land

AN AEBBMERERS (BRHBREM T
7) UL BAHEEEE ZBAIEER - Z
SEEZEREMEA168,0008 T (2T ——F
326,000/ 7T) °

—E——fF —E——fF
2012 2011
FTET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
252,097 263,147
419,839 440,832
671,936 703,979

In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance
leases (see note 37 to the financial statements) are
secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets,
which have carrying amounts of HK$168,000 (2011:
HK$326,000).
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45.

ZHE+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following outstanding commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

ERERDATA - BEAREE:

Authorised and contracted,

but not provided for:

PRFIM R FE T H

properties in Macau

WK B R R (2 7E47(a)

AR NZR5

BER-ZZE——FE A+t NBETZARARK
RERRKELBRBZ—BRER ARARMNT
— BB S ([FBRERED) -

RRA DR SR AR 8 ([E R AT 81))
ERZE-—"FAA-tREER FtBERE
BT REERRETEMEL - EAAR L
EmaTRERBREA TSRO M A RITEZBR
RRAMDRER - LA RIBEBBE B ZIERT
PATTIE -

BBz T2 R T

(i) AEEESARFRARNLHESERS
BERDBEE  UMEARERAKE K
AEERARAERE 2 EMEE ([HKREK
EEBDER2ERMRAIEER 2 B
BEAE

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

46.

Development expenditure of

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(see note 47(a))

rEE
The Group

—E-C—fF —T——F
2012 2011
THET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
26,532 -
- 540,000
26,532 540,000

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 28th June 2012, a new
share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Option Scheme”) was expired on 26th May 2012,
no further options can be granted under the Old Option
Scheme thereafter. However, all outstanding share
option granted under the Old Option Scheme prior
to the said expiry shall remain valid and exercisable
in accordance with the provisions of the Old Option
Scheme.

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(i) The purpose is to enable the Company to grant
options to selected eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group or any entity
in which the Group held an equity interest (the
“Invested Entity”).
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46. UBRHZRNZXE (& 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

200

AN

(ii) SERSEEREAEENAMFEIRER (i)~ The eligible participants include full time or part
BB RBES (BEARG HEM time employees of the Group or any Invested

(iii)

(iv)

&
2
G ] DGE TR T E L] P
i

Entity (including any directors, whether executive

EMES > ERATHIERITRERIBL or non-executive and whether independent or
B REBEMETEMES ZEMNE not, of the Company or any subsidiary of the

BN RAEE SRR E 688 2 17
EBREECERH ABH REEA
FOER BBA HER FERAR
BA TP HEABEBEEAIFEAN)
HOWEE  FIRAF (BREERIBER)
RANFEEEL2RBNBERRIC ALY
$§EJZE@%&&@E%VF&EEKZE@
A o

REFERETEI TR 2 EREER
BB AN 2 B & B A ] £ B AR AR 51 21 AT A
BREZEREMS R ZBHEE ERTE
BBARARNIENEREFEBH
BEEBITIRA Z10% » i £ BR AT /B A% 58 A B
BARE ERH - RITER BN ERIER 3
MEMEMERES (RIEEERE
Z)EREMAMATEZBRIERETZ
B ERBEETESHBBTIREEITRNZ
30% °

FRIFBESS AR E - REf + (B A AR
TELAERSEEZBEE (BECT
- CEEHRARITEELRE BITER
EETRBBETZRNABRTFEBTE
BEETRDZ1% -

REZABRLBH (BHEZE) L2
FTZEAARARRAEZETERR(EE
RERmES EMRA ([ EmHRA]) %
HAMSABBALTRBILIIERITESER
HAEMBMBEATER 2 BRE(BEETT
- EEHRMARITERERE) BITER
BRIEBTFETZRMDEHE : (a)d
TMEHRBAR AR BEITRD 20.1%  K(b)
BESAREBHARARF KD 2 W ELT
g BEETEEIES000000% T &
JEIES AR R AL -

(iii)

(iv)

Company or any Invested Entity); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including
any sub-tenants) of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any person who, in the sole discretion
of the board of directors of the Company, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group or
any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme together with options which
may be granted under any other share option
scheme for the time being of the Company must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of approval of
the New Option Scheme and such limit might
be refreshed by the shareholders in general
meeting. The maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme (including the Old Option
Scheme) must not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time
to time unless the same is approved by the
shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)) of the Company or any of its respective
associates or an independent non-executive
director or any of his associates (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant must not: (a)
representing in aggregate over 0.1 per cent.
of the shares of the Company in issue; and (b)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares of the Company at the date
of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, unless
the same is approved by the shareholders.
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LAHQ@S‘Z{‘J‘Z/\ 3 (“A) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(viy fIEHaEEFENREBRERRE A (vi)  The exercisable period should be determined by
REMERLT  TMHAERLE A #HE+ the board of directors upon grant of the share
Fo option but in any event should not exceed 10

years from the date of offer for grant.

(i) HBREFErATRABELEBEEREZZY (vi)  Save as determined by the board of directors
FRETRRAN - T4 38 F BB AR RE R A E AT Al provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
VR G EM&ERA - share options, there is no general requirement

that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.

(vii)y A AERE L A L0 A EHER (viiij  The acceptance of share option, if accepted,
() - WARARAZMETZ must be made within 30 days from the date of
NAJIRIZEFRIA o grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1

from the grantee to the Company.

(ix) HEREZTEESEAUTSEZESSE (ix)  The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. REXH B EARR R G RRGH a. the closing price of a share of the

ATz WmE Company on the Stock Exchange on the

date of offer;

b. EEEHBHABEEER (AR b. the average closing price of a share of
EWRAFTIL RE) KRB FR the Company from the 5 business days
fn 2 FHRmE - & (has the meaning stated in the Listing

Rules) immediately preceding the date of
offer; and

c. REHBBHARAREREKRO 2@ c. the nominal value of a share of the
(=K Company on the date of offer.

(x) BN ST 2R M BB R1I0F A - (x) The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years

from the date of adoption.

RERR  BIEFTEREASIREERETZ At the end of the reporting period, the number of shares
ERERERITEZBREETERATERETZ which may be issued upon exercise of share options
[& 17 1 B /8,928,594 (=& ——% : 3,013,112 granted and remain outstanding under the New Option
) HERARBIRZBEZBEETRD Z20.53% Scheme and the Old Option Scheme was 8,928,594
(ZE——%:015%) BHE-_ZT—Z—-F+=-A (2011: 3,013,112), representing 0.53% (2011: 0.15%)
=+ — Bk 3 AR A TR IR AT Bl E R of the shares of the Company in issue at that date. As
AR IS ST B - at 31st December 2012, no share option was granted

under the New Option Scheme since its adoption.
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46. L}Hﬁﬁjz{:}ZfE% (Hﬁ/éﬁ_) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
TEEBADNRIERE EF AEEEER The following table discloses details of the Company’s
HmBEEMBAARBEREZFBEREEZS share options held by the Company’s substantial

shareholders, directors, the Group’s employees and
other participants and movements in such holdings:

RZB--F
tZR=1-8 R-%-Z%
R=F--% R=%-=% 128
SR -f-8  RZ%--F RZF--F RZF--% -f-8  RZ¥-ZF RZF-cf =t-f
SREEN 4B TEER 4o HAGE L} ELS i HARTE L2} B HRTE
Outstanding
asat
Exercise  Outstanding Expired Adjustment Exercised 31122011 Expired Asjustment Outstanding
Category price as at during during during and during during as at
of Participants Name of scheme Exercisable period* per share* 01.01.2011 201 2011* 2011 01.01.2012 2012 2012 31.12.2012
AT
HKS
ARATERR BEREHE 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 6,046 - (5,004) - 1022 (1,022) - -
REF 0ld Option Scheme 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 40714 12,480 - (10,368) - 2112 - 4224 6,33
Substantial
shareholders
and directors of
the Company**
18,526 - (15,392) - 3,134 (1,022) 4224 6336
NGl £ ERREtE 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 30,208 - (25,172) - 512 (5,126) - -
Director of the 0ld Option Scheme 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 40714 62,39 - (51,838) - 10,558 - 21,116 31674
Company™** 13.06.2010 - 12.05.2011 1440 19,327,275 (1932727)  (17,394,548) - - - - -
19,419,969 (19%2721)  (17471,558) - 15,684 (5,126) 21,116 31,674
15EER BEREHE 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 151,493 - (125,855) - 25,638 (25,6%8) - -
Employees of 0ld Option Scheme 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 40714 214,494 - (178,196) - 36,208 - 72,59 108,894
the Group 13.12.2004 - 12.12.2014 37509 407,692 - (338,699) - 68993 - 137,986 206,979
04.02.2005 - 03.02.2015 38829 655,774 - (544,798) - 110,976 - 201,952 332,928
30.12.2005 - 29.12.2015 17.454 235,48 - (195,437) - 39811 - 79622 119,433
21.11.2006 - 20.11.2016 19.981 400,602 - (340,286) - 69,316 - 138,632 207,948
25,05,2007 - 24.05.2017 30310 1,025,920 - (852,305) - 173615 - 347,30 520,845
27.06.2007 - 26.06.2017 30.158 674,205 - (560,111) - 114,094 - 228,188 342,82
23.10.2007 - 22.10.2017 14,326 2,355,569 - (1,956,936) - 398,633 - 797,266 1,195,899
21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 1848 8811062 - (7,320,033) - 1491029 - 2,982,058 4,473,087
07.01.2010 - 06.01.2011 0172 R0 (32327,075) - - - - - -
13.06.2010 - 12.05.2011 1440 117005515 (11,700427)  (105,303,845) (1,243) - - - -
164273649 (44027502)  (117.716,501) (1,243) 2528403 (25,638) 5,005,530 7,508,295
Htp8E BEREE 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 371.400 30,299 - (25,171) - 5128 (5,128) - -
Other participants ~ Old Option Scheme 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 40714 40,551 - (33,687) - 6,864 - 13,728 2059
13.12.2004 - 12.12.2014 37509 78916 - (65,562) - 13,354 - 26,708 40,062
04.02.2005 - 03.02.2015 33829 155,648 - (129,308) - 26,340 - 52,680 79,020
30.12.2005 - 29.12.2015 17.454 283,991 - (235.933) - 48,058 - 9,116 144,174
21.11.2006 - 20.11.2016 19.981 163,841 - (136,114) - ann - 55,454 83,181
25,05,2007 - 24.05.2017 30310 403,867 - (335,521) - 68,346 - 136,692 205,038
23.10.2007 - 22.10.2017 14.326 479,162 - (398,074) - 81,088 - 162,176 243,264
21.08.2008 - 20.08.2018 1848 1,116,789 - 927,803) - 188,986 - 377,972 566,958
07.01.2010 - 06.01.2011 0.172 47,986,400 (47,986,400) - - - - - -
13.05.2010 - 12.05.2011 1440 109,165,925 (10916593 (98,249,332) - - - - -
159,905,389 (58.902.993)  (100,536,505) - 465,891 (5,128) 921,526 1,382,269
343617535 (104863202)  (235,739,956) (1,243) 3,013,112 (36,914) 5952,39 8,928,594
NETHAEE Weighted average exercise price 049 031 1.44 39.32 371.40 1173
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46.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

*

ok

The exercise prices and numbers of share options
have been adjusted with effect from 7th December
2012 and/or 29th June 2011 due to the Bonus Issue
and/or the rights issue announced on 18th April 2011

respectively.

Represented the share options held by Mr. Heung Wah
Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the substantial
shareholders and directors of the Company.

Represented the share options held by Ms. Li Yuk

Sheung, a director of the Company.

The exercisable period commenced on the date of

grant of the relevant share options.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or
cancelled for the year ended 31st December 2012. No
share option was granted, lapsed or cancelled for the
year ended 31st December 2011.

T S5 e T %
IR e

.r;@'gm ‘I

‘/’- - -
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47.

EABEALRE

BRUBBRRAZBEMBREEIN

AEBEBEAL

I NS

R-ZZEZEAFMAE-_+HhhB —EAA
7z 2 &M B A AlBestjump Holdings
Limited ([ Bestjump]) B AR A RITE S
REZERFHRBRLZLT (Rt (H
REBARERTEN)IL—HEEW
- WA E K EModern Vision (Asia)
Limited &2Reform Base Holdings Limited
(RBRIBERA] 22 HREER A
K BER A ERR&Z & $£750,810,007
BrozER(CTHEZIE]  #RE
#$900,000,000% 7T (7] ¥ 3 #) (1% K
El) - ZR{EINER &% $£360,000,000
BT ARABTETZABRKRES
350,000,000/ 7T K& #:%8191,000,0007% 7T
LAIR & Sk A STk B B AT AR IR A o i
EHRMBEFERECAEREELSRE
ARFIEEBAM 2 EEEE - BIZRE
ATHE -BERRIZEFEZEERBER
Over Profit International LimitedZ & 3%
75% % EEHE % o Over Profit International
Limitedi® i — [ & P 2 AlLegstrong
Construction and Investment Company
Limited (DEFI A A])) MEHEE —BLR
RPIE AL TE + RSS2 B R - &
BIEERTEICETHE | 2 i ([RFI
i)z 2k

47.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

(a)

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited
(“Bestjump”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Ms Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
(“Ms. Chen”), an executive director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company having
significant influence over the Group, in respect
of the acquisition (the “C7 Acquisition”) of the
entire equity interest of Modern Vision (Asia)
Limited and Reform Base Holdings Limited
(collectively referred as the “Target Companies”)
and outstanding loans in aggregate amount
of HK$750,810,007 due by the Targeted
Companies to Ms. Chen at an aggregate
consideration of HK$900,000,000 (subjected
The
Consideration shall be satisfied by cash deposit
of HK$360,000,000, of which HK$350,000,000
convertible bonds to be issued by the Company
and the balance of HK$191,000,000 in cash
or by the issue of promissory note upon

to adjustment) (the “Consideration”).

completion. The Consideration is subject to
adjustment in case the total gross floor area
granted by Macau government is less than
the gross floor area previously published in
the Macau Official Gazette. The major assets
of the Target Companies are their aggregate
75% equity interests in Over Profit International
Limited. Over Profit International Limited, through
a Macau company, Legstrong Construction
and Investment Company Limited (the “Macau
Co"), indirectly owned 100% beneficial interest
in a lot of land, namely “Lote C7 do Plano de
Urbanizacao da Baia de Paria Grande”, located
in Nam Van Lakes Zone, at Avenida Doutor
Stanley Ho (“Macau Land”).
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EXBREALRE (&

(&)

BIEETRENE4AE  CTRESERR
ABER S BHCTRESEZFHEE
RARBRZZTZENFNA+ERAFEZ
B WX SGER_ZEENEARA=ZAE
TZARRIBRRERN ARG LESHE - %
BEZHIIARE—SEREE-_T——F
+=-—A=+—H-

TR 2 — A BFIBUT FIEmEMR[C
@By EESIMEMRARREELY RIE
SIMER 2t (F ikt - BPIRRFAR
FBRNARZEZE—FN\ATHBEEI R
FIL ISR < & RE RBEPIBITAR(A
FYFPFIE) R-ZE-—ZTEF=FF
BBz — 30 - BRPIERATEFERMT
REREHEENE 2 REBS TR B
BHEZWTERCERSE Al B
PIBT M R BER B D RIS 2 EF -
RZE——F-_A+HA CTHREEE
EFURELEREZESERE « RIFFHBHN
AARBRHMA-_E——F#-_A=-+—A2

NERN -

RZE——F—A+—8 X2FA2EKH
J& X FlExceptional Gain Profits Limited
([Exceptional Gain]) #SIM-Z&EBR A
A ([SUIM- & |) AT L ek + Btk » SIM-
% &/ E &K & MExceptional
GanBKHREBERMBESBES
RAR ((MEHBE]) EBTRBRD
Z1%% # 4 25 &.Charm Faith Holdings
Limited ([Charm Faith ) (— &% %A
KEERREAER QA ([LH]) BT
R D1%s N F) B EITRA1%Z I
TR - 8RB A13,000,007.80/ 7T °
RiE TR A E14A13(N)(b)IE - Z X
IWRBARARZBERS - ZEHEL
RZZE——F—A=+—H%k  MARQ
BE BHEAEBEESEIE « Charm Faith X
751 %REER - RIFBHRAR
AARAE-T——F—A+—HZRAEA -
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The C7 Acquisition is regarded as a connected
transaction pursuant to chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of the C7 Acquisition
were set out in the Company’s circular dated
17th August 2009. The transaction has been
approved in a special general meeting of the
Company held on 3rd September 2009. The
longstop date of the agreement had further
extended to 31st December 2012.

One of the conditions to completion is the
publication by the Macau government of a
master zoning guideline for the “C” area of
Nam Van Lakes Zone and the results of a new
amendment to the land grant under which the
Macau Co holds the Macau Land from the
Macau government executed on 14th August
2001 to be submitted by Macau Co having been,
in light of the master zoning guideline, gazetted
by the Macau government. In the third quarter
of 2010, the Macau government invited Macau
citizens as part of this process to submit their
conceptual planning proposals for the Nam Van
area with a view to optimising the benefits to
the city’s infrastructures as a whole. Afterwards,
the Macau government has not yet issued any
update on the master zoning guideline. On 15th
February 2012, C7 Acquisition was terminated
and the deposit was refunded. Details of the
termination were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21st February 2012.

On 11th January 2012, Exceptional Gain
Profits Limited (“Exceptional Gain”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and SJM
— Investment Limited (“SJM-I") entered into
agreements pursuant to which SJM-| has agreed
to sell or procure the sale of, and Exceptional
Gain has conditionally agreed to purchase, 1%
equity interest of the issued quotas in Hotel
Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited (“Hotel LKF”)
and 1% equity interest in the issued share
capital of Charm Faith Holdings Limited (“Charm
Faith”), a company beneficially owned 1% of
the issued quotas of Classic Management &
Services Company Limited (“Classic”), at a
total consideration of HK$13,000,007.80. The
transaction was considered as connected
transaction for the Company according to
Rule 14A.13(1)(b)(i) of the Listing Rules. The
agreements were completed on 31st January
2012 and the Company become interested in
51% equity interest in Hotel LKF, Charm Faith
and Classic. Details of the transaction were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 11th
January 2012.
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ERBEALRE (#F

47.

(c)

W=ZZ—=—F=H+3HHA  China Star
Entertainment (BVI) Limited ([CSBVI )
HmEt (UAEEEEEXRTEDN)
AVERHEEGE Bk mEE
ERHERELEMCSBVIEKRHERE
& EMost Famous Enterprises Limited
([ Most Famous]) & #8 B 817 & A& K 49
277,420,000 T2 HEEFH BHRER
618,000,000/ 7T ([ =5 W BE £18 ) -
Most Famousz * 2B E AHERBEHEH
B E B BT R B AR (D 2 49% % 7 K Charm
Faith(—HE =B LB E FTRERSG
1% N E)) BEITIRE 249% M 1 - 1R1F
FHRA BESRBEIEEK AR A
—HIBFEARKBEEIBER S
WARARRABIRRRARABHAZ
REFFRIAREG FRER - FAEE - AR
ARARRAT b E R BEEEHED
JBJE » Charm Faith & 4 88 7 519%% 1 12
o FU RS EE E A TR - Most
Famous * BB E « Charm Faith & 4€
G REARE 2 ENBRER - BES
WHEEEFEENARAFBEHR - —Z
FRAZTEBZEH - BELHHRAUZE
14AT - BEHWEEEWRSHEERS -

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

On 15th February 2012, China Star Entertainment
(BVI) Limited (“CSBVI”) and Mr. Heung, who has
significant influence over the Group, entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Mr. Heung has conditionally
agreed to sell and CSBVI has conditionally
agreed to purchase the 100% of the entire
issued share capital of Most Famous Enterprises
Limited (“Most Famous”) and a sale loan
amounted to approximately HK$277,420,000 at
total consideration of HK$618,000,000 (the “LKF
Acquisition”). The major assets of Most Famous
are its 49% equity interests of the issued quotas
in Hotel LKF and 49% equity interest in the
issued share capital Charm Faith, a company
beneficially owned 1% of the issued quotas
of Classic. The LKF Acquisition constituted a
very substantial acquisition and a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and thus is subject to the approval of
the independent shareholders of the Company
in a special general meeting to be convened
by the Company. As the Company has already
owned 51% equity interest in each of Hotel
LKF, Charm Faith and Classic as at the date
of this agreement, Most Famous, Hotel LKF,
Charm Faith and Classic will become wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company upon
completion of the LKF Acquisition. Details
of the LKF Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 27th June 2012. The
LKF Acquisition was regarded as a connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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ERBEALRE (#F

RZE—ZTF+ZAZ+=8 4217
2 2 &M B R ETriumph Top Limited
([Triumph Topl) » "2 7] » Sociedade
de Turismo e Diversdes de Macau,
SA([SIM]) kMt (MAEEARE
REEBEN)FISLAGRERZE B SIM
BBHERELEMTriumph Toph 4 E
% 12 X (8550,000,0007% 7T W FESIMAR &
BB RZSMRELECHEMRFEZ
MERERE (ERZSHMB 2 EAETE
W ZE FTriumph Top) ((WEEE]) -
RFEETHRA WEEEBKAQR—HE
FFERNBEBETERBERS  UR_FT
——ERNALRBRTZERRENIAG L#
RRBBURRAE WBEEER T
——ERXATHZTK - WESEFBHR
RARIR—E——FRA-THF# A
A RAR ET R B FE14AE - IIES1E
WEEBERS -
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47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

On 23rd December 2010, Triumph Top Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(“Triumph Top”), the Company, Sociedade de
Turismo e Diversées de Macau, S.A. (“SIJM”) and
Mr. Heung, who has significant influence over
the Group, entered into a conditional agreement
pursuant to which SUM has conditionally agreed
to sell and Triumph Top has conditionally agreed
to purchase the property leasehold right held by
SJM under the leasehold granted by the Macau
Government over the Sites (and the inherent
transfer to Triumph Top of the legal title of the
Sites) at a consideration of HK$550,000,000
(the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition constituted
a very substantial acquisition and a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules and was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in a special
general meeting held on 7th June 2011. The
Acquisition was completed on 10th June 2011.
Details of the Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 20th May 2011,
The Acquisition was regarded as a connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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47 EABEEALTRE (& 47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() MNEAR AREEEBERFL IR

(e)

During the year, the Group entered into the

R following transactions with its related companies:
—E2—=F —ET——%F
2012 2011
FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
REME Nature of transactions
RKEBERNTZHA Income received from associates:
HEBEEEERBUWA KR Other ancillary hotel revenue
NSES $- 95 and utilities fee 6,010 5,141
EREWA Management fee income 816 1,845
T FEEE AR ZBIS :  Expenses paid to associates:
ENIRENETREREM  Entertainment and staff messing paid 7,243 10,071

() PSR BEBALZXDEHRFE
BRI IS RER M 24 32 -

() ITEEBAEZHS
FR BEREGBTEEEENKE ZFHH

()

Details of the balances with related parties at the
end of the reporting period are set out in notes
24 and 32 to the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other

N

members of key management during the year

was as follows:
—E——fF —E——fF
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
e M E A ER, Salaries and other allowances 15,966 14,250
IRORAE I FT B 50 Retirement benefits scheme contributions 92 83
16,058 14,333

EXRTIRERABZHFMIBFHEE
SREBHBARBLRTGBEMERE °
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The remuneration of directors and key
management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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48. TRANSACTION WITH NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

48. HFERERZZR S

(i) W B BS 1 158 JF Je Charm Faith,2 1% /% 1 (i) Acquisition of 1% equity interests in Hotel LKF
and Charm Faith
RZE—ZF—A+—H AEHE— On 11th January 2012, the Group further
FUWEEHHESBEE BITREBRN 21% acquired 1% equity interest of the issued
P tE#E s KCharm Faith (—ERES quotas in Hotel LKF and 1% equity interest
KEEBEITRERN 21% 22 F) B & in the issued share capital of Charm Faith, a
TRAZ %K EEZ AREEE K company beneficially owned 1% of the issued
EBERBAEY AL - Charm Faith 48 8 quotas of Classic. As a result of the acquisition,
2B HERS0%IE INES1%  BREDH B the Group’s shareholding in Hotel LKF, Charm
13,000,000/ 7T © A5 B R IE 15 IR i Faith and Classic increased from 50% to
B £96,566,00078 7T & AR A B A% R FE A 51%, at a total consideration of approximately
18 %25 > #96,434,00078 7T © HK$13,000,000. The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$6,566,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$6,434,000.
(ii) W fE B )8 J& R Charm FaithZ 49% (i) Acquisition of 49% equity interests in Hotel LKF

R

RZTE—ZFEtA+EtH KNEEK
#Most Famousz 25 k% KER
618,000,000/ T ° Most Famous2Z £ &
BEABHENNED HITRERD 249%
% # & Charm Faith (— i & &= #E B 4¢ &2
BRATRBERMD 21%2 A7) B ETR
A249%MKHE - ANBEFE  KEEHE
BB - Charm FaithR &8 2 2
MRE FNEERBFERER DD
341,107,000/8 7t R A X A1 i B A FE {5 #
%R D #7276,893,000/8 7T ©
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and Charm Faith

On 17th July 2012, the Group acquired the
entire equity interests in Most Famous at a
consideration of HK$618,000,000. The major
assets of Most Famous are 49% equity interest
of the issued quotas in Hotel LKF and 49%
equity interest in the issued share capital of
Charm
of the
the acquisition, the Group owns 100% of the

Faith, a company beneficially owned 1%
issued quotas of Classic. As a result of

equity interests in Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and
Classic. The Group recognised a decrease
in non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$341,107,000 and a decrease in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$276,893,000.
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49. B A 7 ﬁ% 49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
TREVEZSRATBEYERERXENEEY The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
ARNAMBLR -BEFERR - 2HHMMERR
ZEHGEREBNILE -

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

210

directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

it/ fihe/
RIBR/ 8/ FRAMBERTRE/ BRR
il ek EBRERA % ARERER AMEREELH HERE/RER IEXH
Country/ Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal
Form of place of quota capital/ value of issued Issued and fully
business incorporation/ registered capitaliregistered capital paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation capital held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-f ZB-Zf
2011 2012
% %
Asiatop Data Limited ek A LRk 100 100 10RBREEETZEBR REREARS
Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 10 ordinary shares of Provision of nominee
HK$1 each services
Best Combo Limited i ABROES Lk 100 100 1REEIZTZRA REER
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
FEERAT FalliA Bk R - 100 1REEIELLEBR RERR
Best Joyful Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
Best Mind International Inc. Al a AERAES 2Bk 100 100 10REREEIETZREA RERBBYRERH
(ZHih) Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 shares of US$1 each YBia A2 55
(see note b) Investing in operations
which receive profit
streams from the
gaming promotion
business
Bestjump Holdings Limited ek AERIES LR 100 100 L EIEESA ) REER
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Bond Supply Company Limited &3z ZERAEE Lk 100 100 L EIEESA ) REER
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Business First Limited Fia A ABRUES LAk 100 100 1REEIZTZRA FERGELE
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US1 Holding of cable right
Charm Faith Holdings Limted &Mz ABRAEE Lk 50 100 100REREEIZTZRA RERR
(Zhi) Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 100 shares of US§1 each Investment holding
(see note )
Charming Era Investment LA AERAEE Lk 100 100 1REEIZT 2R RERR
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
TEEHHERARLA i 2 TRER 100 100 10000075 % TYEERRRE
(Zhin) Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 Immovable property
China Star Creative development and
Development Limited Investment
(see note b)
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49. MB LA TS (&) 49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
i/ iR/
RIER,/ 8/ ARAREERATRE/ BRAR
il kR EBRRRA % EREREH EREREELA HERE/ERER IBER
Country/ Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal
Form of place of quota capital/ value of issued Issued and fully
business incorporation/ registered capitallregistered capital paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation capital held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
8% ZB-If
2011 2012
% %
China Star Entertainment il EBRRER Lk 100 00 200REREEIZTZED FEZK
(BVI) Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 200 shares of US$1 each Investment holding
TEEREERARLA Rl Bk Lk 100 100 2RBREGIET SRR REBR
China Star Entertainment Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 11,000,000 8 REE1ET Investment holding
Holding Company CEREEELREH0)
2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each and
1,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
(see note d)
TEEEERTARLA il B Lk 100 100 100,000 &R & BYRERERHET
China Star HK Distribution Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1AL ERR Distribution of motion
Limited 100,000 ordinary pictures and television
shares of HK$1 each drama series
TEEERREARAA e (3 £k 100 100 1000000R5HEEET BEMERTRRARR
China Star HK Entertainment Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary LERR Distribution of video rights
Company Limited 1,000,000 ordinary and investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
China Star International a4 ABROES Lk 100 100 8,001 EREE EYRERELRL
Distribution Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary Ed ) Distribution of motion
(Efiita) 8,001 shares of pictures and television
(see note a) US$1 each drama series
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49. HEBRTEE (& 49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
iRt/
i/ 8/ ARAREERATRE/ BRAR
il T RHARES RIER/4%  ERERE EREREELA HERE/HRER ITER
Country/ Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal
Form of place of quota capital/ value of issued Issued and fully
business incorporation/ registered capitallregistered capital paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation capital held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-—-F CZE-CZE
2011 2012
% %
hERRSYRARLA il A (3 LRk 100 100 15,0005 &R A REEERH
China Star Laser Disc Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1002 LBk Provision of management
Company Limited 15,000 ordinary services
shares of
HK$100 each
hREEERRAA i i1y ERAL 100 100 100,000%7% NEEREER
(Zhin) Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 REREER
China Star Management Property project
Company Limited management and
(see note b) construction project
management
HEESYERLA A 5 Lk 100 100 MEkREE 230
China Star Movie Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary AT ERR Film production
2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
HEEYEERAT i Bk LER 100 100 dhEREE RESTME
China Star Pictures Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BT EBR Holding of film rights
2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
China Star Trademark Limited 55 U ABRAEE £k 100 100 RERIZTZRA REBERRNE
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US§1 Holding of trademark
and copyrights
China Star Worldwide B i Erel 100 100 AWOREBRAE BYREREAMLN
Distribution B.V. Incorporated Netherlands Ordinary 10 REZ EBR Distribution of motion
(Zfiita) 400 ordinary shares pictures and television
(see note a) of Dutch Guilders drama series
100 each
BEEERBARLA A 2 TEER 50 100 100,000 F5 % RERESERRY
(Elinks) Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP100,000 Provision of casino
Classic Management management service
& Services Company
Limited (see note b & f)
Exceptional Gain Profits e AERAES Lk 100 100 L GEIEE S ) REER
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
First-Up Investments Limited Hs AERAES Lk 100 100 1REEIET KRG REREARS
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US1 Provision of agency
services
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49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
ikt
it/ &8/ ARARKERORE/ BEfR
KEARER AR RYEF/ %% EREAEH AMEAEELH HERE/HRER IBEH
Country/ Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal
Form of place of quota capital/ value of issued Issued and fully
business incorporation/ registered capitallregistered capital paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation capital held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“E-F ZB-Zf
2011 2012
% %
BRERARAT e (36 LRk 100 100 IREEIEL Rk EPuE
Gold Choice International Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Film production
Limited
High Productive Trading il (74T AERAES Lk 100 100 L EIEESAS) REER
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
AR EEERAT Rl ! TEEL 50 100 50,0007 & REFREEERBR
(bR Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP500,000 WERE  RBERR
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Provision of hotel services
(Macau) Limited in Macau and property
(see note b & f) investment, and
investment holding
Intrinsic Valu Limited il 174 AERNES LER 100 100 1REE 1T RG REARR
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
EEURERAT il (0 LRk 100 100 1REEIEL EBR REBR
Joyful Noble Development Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1 ordinary share of HKS$1 Investment holding
Most Famous Enterprises EauizAn AEREE Lk - 100 2REREEIETIRSD RERER
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 2 shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Most Trade Enterprises a4 B LRk 70 0 2000EEREEETL EEZERK
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Lk Trading of ginseng and
20,000 ordinary dried seafood products
shares of HK$1 each
NPH Holdings Limited il AERIES TRk 100 100 50000R EREBIZT LR M RERR
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 50,000 shares of US$1 each Investment holding
LA BEARAT i &k LR 100 100 oREBRERIETZEER REBR
NPH Sino-Meditech Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 2 ordinary shares Investment holding
of HKS1 each
B2 EENERAR Al Bk LR 100 100 12000k 8kEE BEERESREE
Nam Pei Hong Sum Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 100% T2 LBk Ginseng & dried
Yung Drugs 12,000 ordinary seafood trading
Company Limited shares of HK$100 each and retail
2% (EE)ARAT A B Lk 100 00 ORERAEEVETZERR RENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 2 ordinary shares Property holding
of HK$1 each
~BFEFARLT B (3 3]s 100 100 3,000,000 & E(E 2
One Hundred Years of Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BTz Ak Film production
Film Company Limited 3,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each
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49. MEB DTG (& 49. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
iR/
it/ 8/ RRAREERARE/ BRAR
il e EBRERA RYEF/ 4% EREAEH AREREELA HERE/HRER ITER
Country/ Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal
Form of place of quota capital/ value of issued Issued and fully
business incorporation/ registered capitaliregistered capital paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure formation capital held held by the Company registered capital Principal activities
“I-F C§-IE
2011 2012
% %
REERR(AI)ERAT Rl HE it 100 100 3,000000A R ¥ PEEREARTE
(EMistcke) Incorporated PRC Registered RMB 3,000,000 Ginseng & dried
Poo Yuk Loong Food seafood trading
(Shenzhen) Company and retail
Limited (see note ¢ & )
RIEERLA A B Lk 100 100 3S00RERER REAHRS
Poo Yuk Loong Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordlinary 100872 & &R Provision of administration
3,500 ordinary shares sevices
of HK$100 each
BERZERAA FRiiAa Bk LER 100 100 dRBREE PEEYREREES
S & W Entertainment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1AL ERBR Production of motion
2 ordinary shares pictures and television
of HK$1 each drama series
RYREBRAA il &k Lk 100 100 1REBIET L EBR REBR
Star Choice Investments Limited ~ Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
REARARLA A B Lk 100 100 RERIET SRR REER
Star Joy International Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
Triumph Top Limited Rauf A HERGEE LAk 100 100 1REEIET KRG REER
Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
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it -

(b) FERPILEET -
(c) EREEEET -

(d) ERREECERNERLEEN D ZTZARAR
B BUZARBRAGZBE HEZEX
SYEGLREZEN HBERBTTAEAE
EA DI ©

(e) REERR(RIDBERRAIBEINELE -

(f) RZZF——F+-A=+—8 —fRBEH
B JE R Charm Faith& B 49% 1% 1 2 # A ik
HERBREAAAZREREEERTE - B
it BAEEE -« Charm FaithREEHEERES
BIGRRARDAZHMEBAR - 1% BEEER
WES B EETKE - BESBEJE - Charm
Faith RS EHEK AR R Z2ANB AR °

Best Combo Limited  Best Mind International
Inc. » China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited &
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V.F3 A2 ]
BEEA MAAEMHEBLREBARRBE
E -

BEBEAEN WEARZIELEXMHAE
78 o

PRAM B A RN 4 Qs Frh E RS ERE
B2 E#ES o
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) Operating internationally
(b) Operating in Macau.

(c) Operating in PRC.

(d) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no
rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to

participate in any distribution on winding up.

(e) Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen) Company Limited is a

wholly foreign owned enterprise.

() At 31st December 2011, one of the common
shareholder of Hotel LKF and Charm Faith who holding
49% voting power has agreed to follow the voting and
management decision of the Company. Therefore,
Hotel LKF and Charm Faith and their direct investment,
Classic are considered as subsidiaries of the Company.
After the completions of the 1% Acquisition and the
LKF Acquisition, Hotel LKF, Charm Faith and Classic

became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Best Combo Limited, Best Mind International Inc., China
Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited, Turbo International
Company Limited and China Star Worldwide Distribution
B.V. are directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

50. HEE4|ERES 50. PARTICULARS OF JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
RNMEER AEB Z KREHEESHEBOT Details of the Group’s jointly controlled entities at the
end of the reporting period are set out below:
iR/ HIER/ AREAHCRT
REEHARAR BRES % R B8N RAmEELAH BRARARRE E:5
Countrylplace of Proportion of nominal
Name of jointly Form of incorporation/ Class of value of issued capital Issued and fully
controlled entity entity formation shares held held by the Group paid share capital Principal activities
“2--% CB-ZE
2011 2012
% %
HEESYREARAR Rl ERRTHE Tk 50 50 0REREE RERR
China Star Film Group Limited ~ Incorporated British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 1,000,000/ T2 EB& Investment holding
60 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000,000 each
THESYREERLA e Bk ik 50 50 1REEIATZ EBR EVAE
China Star Film Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1 ordinary share of Film production
Limited HKS1
FERREHER T BLERBATS - All their principal place of operation is in Hong Kong.
51. BA& N TR 51. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES
R|MERR  AEBZBEQRFBOT Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the
reporting period are set out below:
ift/RIAR/  FERS/ REBFEERARE/ BRAR
BERRER EBRRRA ] ERERES AREREELA HERE/HRER ITER
Form of Countrylplace of Class of Proportion of nominal value of Issued and fully
business incorporation/  shares/quota issued capital/registered paid share capital/
Name of associate structure formation capital held capital held by the Group registered capital Principal activities
—E--% ZE-Zf
2011 2012
% %
WMABERDA(EH:E) i A EEEL 40.0 40.0 60,0001 % gekEE
Avatar Limited (see note) Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP60,000 Spa operations
BEERAA(EHH) i R TEAR 245 25 30,0002F7% RERSRE
Merit Noble Company Limited Incorporated Macau Quota capital MOP30,000 Provision of catering
(see note) services
BREARAT Al B Lk 50.0 50.0 100k REE REER
Noble Million Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BT ERR Investment holding
100 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
Miat . TERPIEE T - Note: Operating in Macau.
BRBEEERPEN BEARNZEELENHARE Except otherwise stated, the principal place of

& o

operation of the associates is Hong Kong.
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ZHE+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31st December 2012 and 2011,
the Group did not have major non-cash transactions.

#
52. TRIRER5H
REE-_FT-——_FR-F——F+-A=+—H
LFE AREYREFEFRERS
53. REMRER

(a) MB|EHE AEB-_T——FRRE
#2407 201N —FE— =4
— A Z BB R REE ST R0.0697% T #
Tolbte ARABWEA M KRITEZR
i RE o

(by RZE—=F+—A=Z+H ' XQRAE
i BEBERALAFABRRENREENAE £
i B RAREEFEEHEAR
DR E IR XA A B TAIFIRR (D - &
EER-_Z——F+-A AEHEE—
AR A R D BB MR AL R AR 5 - I KY
BEEREERIWEA AT RRES A
BREZEZE2HREH TR G H#E
M FEUARE EmRAIZES.08(1)(a)F ©
RZTE—=F—ANBTRIKRXALR
B - AN A A B 17514,463,056% 41 FIl B2
19 & 48 & 5828,471,249.347% Jr 7] & i
% 18 & #%0.017% 7T (7] 4R #&% 41 A1 7] #2 Ak
BEEzTEREBETURAR WF2)E
1 52,847,124,934F% §% 19 2 41 F| ] 3%
IR &% o

(c) RMEHRE SRR =_FT—=F—F7
TAABRZE—=F=ZA+HA Bk
AR B B 180.0148 JT##29,000,000% 7T
2 KL F T] 2 BR (& %5 121,000/ 7T 2 41 F)
A # AR (& % - 317 )2 B2 $£900,000,000
B A% 15 K. 100,0008% % 17
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52.

53.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

Subsequent to the reporting period, 2,407,201
new shares were issued on the conversion
of the 2011 Warrants at the subscription
price of HK$0.069 per share on 2nd January
2013. Thereafter, the Company has no more
outstanding warrants.

On 20th November 2012, the Company
announced that pursuant to a mandate granted
by the shareholders of the Company at the
SGM, the board of directors of the Company has
resolved to implement the Bonus Issue for the
issue of Bonus Shares by the Company on the
basis of two Bonus Shares for every one existing
share held on 6th December 2012 with an option
to elect to receive the Bonus CBs in lieu of all
or part of their entittement to the Bonus Shares
in order to comply with Rule 8.08(1) (a) of the
Listing Rules. Upon completion of the Bonus
Issue on 9th January 2013, the Company issued
514,463,056 Bonus Shares and Bonus CBs in
an aggregate amount of HK$28,471,249.34
convertible into 2,847,124,934 shares at
conversion price of HK$0.01 per share (subject
to adjustment in accordance with the deed poll
of the Bonus CBs, if necessary).

Subsequent to the reporting period, 900,000,000
shares and 100,000 shares were issued and
allotted upon the conversion of HK$9,000,000
Bonus CBs and HK$1,000 Bonus CBs at the
conversion price of HK$0.01 per share on 16th
January 2013 and 14th March 2013 respectively.
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53. MEMRBR (&

(d)

RZZ—=F—A+H AQFHEE
REBFTZREE RS BROEEUEGR
0.147% 7t 2 B 1% I & & % 400,000,000
BEREEOBITZHBRG FH LK
BEHE -RZZT—=F—A=1+08 RE
AAREEEARARZE—Z—_F-A
ZtTNBETZRRBEFAE LERT
2 — M #E - 3£ 17400,000,0000% ¥ &
12 o BT 15 5} 18 ¥ &8 955,300,000/ 7T #E
AREBMERE -

RZE—=F_A—H A2QaRR
HEIR & ML L 2 2 B B A FlStar
Hope Investments Limited ([ & 75 ]) £
Wing Shan Int'l Limited ([& 7)) 8T
BEZEmZE Bt BEHAEBEKEGERE
KEmMEFEEKRHRAEHEKES
ERAB (TERERAF])) 22 #8TR
KNP E B EE1.000 T 2 B 5 R4
29,603,055 T 2 HEER - BRER
93,700,000/ T - BEERRIZEEA
EAMRNEB YD E1 3% MiE ki
T2 W% - R171F 79,220,000/ 7T K&
5,400,000 A & % (%948 % 506,750,000
BRI ZANRBES WEEFER T
— =A==+t N\Bxk BRBEZERQA
RAEAEBZZ2EWB AR - BHEXIR
HERE ARREENHETHKEER
HAEB ZZZ o

54, #tEMKEREK

FUBBEN_E-—=F=A -+ HEE=Z
HOAE BRI T EE o

53.

54.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(d)

On 10th January 2013, the Company entered
into a placing agreement with a placing agent to
place on a best effort basis up to 400,000,000
new shares of HK$0.01 each to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.14 per share.
400,000,000 new shares was issued on 30th
January 2013 under the general mandate
granted to the directors of the Company at
the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28th June 2012. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$55,300,000 were intended to
apply for property investment in Hong Kong.

On 1st February 2013, Star Hope Investments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company incorporated after the end of the
reporting period (the “Purchaser”) and Wing
Shan Int'l Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
acquire and the Vendor has conditionally agreed
to sell 1 share of HK$1.00 each in the entire
share capital of Well Full Limited (the “Target
Co”) and a sale loan amounted to approximately
of HK29,603,055 at a total consideration of
HK$93,700,000. The major assets of the Target
Co are a property located at Cockloft Floor and
the Ground Floor of Nos. 1 and 3 Mercer Street,
Hong Kong, bank deposits of HK$9,220,000 and
Renminbi bonds of RMB5,400,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,750,000). The acquisition
was completed on 28th February 2013 and the
Target Co became a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group. The directors of the Company are still
assessing the impact of the acquisition to the
Group up to the date of this report.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26th March 2013.
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B

BE+-_A=+—-BLEE

For the year ended 31st December

BREBATEA, (BE)

M

FERN/ (BE)

AT ALREIE

FEEN/ (BR) :

Results

Turnover

Profit/(loss) before tax

Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:

EN/NSIE FEN Owners of the Company
FEERE R Non-controlling interests
EEREE Assets and liabilities
BEHRE Total assets
BEEHE Total liabilities
KABHER A Equity attributable to owners
G of the Company
FEE MR = Non-controlling interests

ANNUAL REPORT 4E %t 2012

=T
I

S T —F —T-TF —TTNF —FTEN\F
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
THERT FHET FAET FAET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,464,979 1,096,762 864,261 543,429 227,747
93,991 (661,525) 26,219 167,243 63,149
535 7,419 (1,392) (2,848) 2,441
94,526 (654,106) 24,827 164,395 65,590
53,360 (683,234) (8,083) 204,388 90,604
41,166 29,128 32,910 (39,993) (25,014)
94,526 (654,106) 24,827 164,395 65,590
R+=—HA=+—8
As at 31st December
= B —T——F —T-TF —TTAF ZTTN\F
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
THET FHET FET FAT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
2,780,606 3,407,540 3,345,092 3,190,275 2,605,167
(1,193,396) (1,132,631) (765,136) (870,882)  (902,192)
1,587,210 2,274,909 2,579,956 2,319,393 1,702,975
1,587,401 1,968,592 2,302,775 2,075,122 1,418,711
(191) 306,317 277,181 244,271 284,264
1,587,210 2,274,909 2,579,956 2,319,393 1,702,975
219
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BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December 2012

BA st 4
Rt i 88 T A BEEE
1 B 8 E TR ER BRIBH (FAER) (FFER) YPXAR rEEER
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area
Stage of completion  (square (square Group’s
Location Lote number  completion date feet) feet) Usage interest
2FZona de Quarteirao 6 FEM R ZERF 57,000 732000 EE - FEREES 100%
Aterros do BB C ENEE
Porto Exterior DRE
Zona de Lot B, C, Development 4th quarter 57,000 732,000 Commerical, 100%
Aterros do DandEin stage of 2016 Residential

Proto Exterior,

Quarteirao 6

and Carparking

Macau
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